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Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
Jim Gray
Mayor

January 11, 2012
Dear Citizens,

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, reflects significant improvements in the financial
management of the government, a top priority for my administration.

We built our budget around preserving government’s core services, like public safety and
economic development, while reducing (largely through attrition) the number of employees in areas that
are not core governmental responsibilities. We have asked our remaining employees to continuously
improve the city’s efficiency and effectiveness.

Employee health insurance has been a key focus of our financial reform efforts. In recent years, the
government has been heavily subsidizing the cost of employee health insurance. Now, we are moving to a
fee for service model that shifts more costs to employees, while also offering employees ways to save
through an employee health clinic and pharmacy, and wellness initiatives.

While we have cut back, we are also putting together a plan to invest in our city brand through the
Rupp Arena, Arts and Entertainment Task force. Like any good business, we must make both cuts and
investments to improve our economy so it can attract the best jobs for our citizens.

We have also invested in improving our Rainy Day Fund, a step that was long overdue.

Henry Clay saw his adopted hometown as a Great American City. He dreamed big dreams for
Lexington. As we seek to follow in his footsteps, we can do no less.

Sincerelv.
Jim Gray
Mayor

FOLLOW MAYOR GRAY: www.facebook.com/Mayor[imGray
www.twitter.com/[imGravlLexKY

200 East Main Street * Lexington, KY 40507 ¢ (859) 425-2255 ¢ www.lexingtonky.gov
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Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

Jim Gray Jane C. Driskell
Mayor Commissioner
January 11, 2012

Citizens of Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Honorable Mayor Jim Gray

Members of the Urban County Council
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government

Dear Citizens, Mayor and Members of the Urban County Council:

As Commissioner of Finance, I present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Lexington-
Fayette Urban County Government (the Government) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The CAFR has been
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the reporting standards of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The CAFR includes all funds of the Government and its
component units.

The report is organized into three sections: an introductory section, a financial section and a statistical section. This
introductory section provides general information on the Government’s structure, as well as information useful in
assessing the Government’s financial condition. The financial section contains the independent auditor’s report on
the financial statement audit, the management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements, required
supplementary information, and information on individual funds not separately provided in the basic financial
statements. ‘The statistical section provides a broad range of trend data covering financial, demographic and
economic activity useful in assessing the Government’s financial condition.

This CAFR was prepared by the Division of Accounting, with assistance from staff in the Departments of Finance,
Revenue, and Budgeting. These entities are responsible for both the accuracy of the data presented and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is desighed to protect the
Government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for preparation of the
financial statements in conformance with GAAP. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the
cost of internal controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from their use and that such cost-benefit
evaluation requires estimates and judgment by management.

State statute and the Charter of the Government both require that an independent financial audit be conducted
annually. The accounting firm of Dean Dorton Allen Ford, PLLC performed the audit for the fiscal year ended June
30,2011,  The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of
the Government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are free of material misstatements. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded that there was a reasonable basis for rendering
an unqualified opinion that the Government’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are faitly
presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component in the
financial section of this report.
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Additionally, the audit engagement also included an audit of federal grants meeting the requirements of federal
grantor agencies, as outlined by the Federal Single Audit Act of 1984, the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996, and
related OMB Circular A-133. These standards require the auditor to report not only on the fairness of the
representation of the financial statement, but also on the internal controls and compliance with legal requirements of
the federal awards. These reports will be available in the Government’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

Profile of the Government (As of December 31, 2011)

Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (LFUCG) is an urban county with the powers of both a city of the
second class and a county created from the merger of the City of Lexington and the County of Fayette in 1974.
LFUCG operates pursuant to Chapter 67A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. The Urban County Government
operates under a Mayor-Council form of government, where executive and administrative functions are vested with
the Mayor, and legislative authority is vested with the Urban County Council.

The Mayor is the chief executive officer and is elected to a four-year term. The Urban County Council has 15
members, including 12 members elected from districts, who serve two-year terms, and three at-large members who
serve four-year terms. The Vice-Mayor is the at-large member who receives the most votes in the general election.

The Mayor is assisted in the administration of the government by two senior advisors, a Chief Administration
Officer (CAO) and six Department Commissioners. The senior advisors, CAO, and Commissioners are appointed
by the Mayor with the approval of the Urban County Council. This senior leadership team is responsible for
administering programs and implementing policies. Each department is divided into divisions that are managed by
division directors who are civil service employees.

The Chief Administration Officer is charged with the responsibility of providing supervision, direction and
management to the six Departments of the Urban County Government. The six Departments of the Government
are: Environmental Quality and Public Works, Finance, General Services, Law, Public Safety, and Social Services.
The CAO ensures that policies established by the Mayor, Council and Charter are followed and develops programs
to meet current and future organizational and community needs. Additionally, the Offices of Risk Management,
Computer Services, Government Communications, Enterprise Solutions, Grants and Special Programs, Historic
Preservation, Planning, and Purchase of Development Rights report to the Chief Administration Officer.

The Chief Administration Officer is charged with providing leadership to all of government in technology and
communications. The Office includes the Division of Computer Services and the Division of Government
Communications. Computer Services provides mainframe and microcomputer support, database development and
information services to LFUCG and some outside agencies. Government Communications prepates and
distributes information about the city in a variety of ways including LexCall (a One-Stop call for city hall services),
GTV3 (the city’s cable television station) and the city’s website.

The Department of Finance includes the Divisions of Accounting, Central Purchasing, Revenue, Budgeting, and
Finance. ‘This Department is responsible for the custody, investment and disbursement of all funds; debt
management; retirement fund administration; coordination of the annual financial audit; and publication of the
CAFR. The Division of Budgeting works with the Mayor and other executive leadership to prepare the annual
operating budget and the Capital Improvement Plan that the Mayor recommends to the Council each year,
coordinates with the council as they review the Mayor’s recommendations and ultimately authorize revenue and
expenditure levels for government for the fiscal year. The division also monitors the spending of the various
Departments throughout the fiscal year and ensures all units stay within the expenditure levels adopted by the
Council.

The Department of Public Safety is the largest in the Urban County Government. It includes the Divisions of
Community Corrections, Police, Fire and Emergency Services, Emergency Management, Enhanced 911 and Code
Enforcement. Readers should be familiar with the services provided by Corrections, Police and Fire, but may not
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be as familiar with the other Divisions, which provide a variety of services including emergency communications
and management, disaster preparedness, inspections of properties for code violations and nuisance abatement.

The Department of Social Services provides services to Fayette County residents by helping families become self
sufficient, offering specialized programs to help Lexington youth and providing financial and social services to
eligible senior citizens in the community. The Divisions in this Department include Adult Services, Family Services
and Youth Services. Other programs in the Department include Aging Services and management of the Cardinal
Valley Center, which works to bridge cultural gaps among neighbors.

The Department of General Setvices includes the Divisions of Fleet and Facilittes Management and Parks and
Recreation. The Division of Fleet and Facilities Management handles the acquisition, maintenance and repair of
more than 1500 vehicles and pieces of equipment owned by LFUCG, in addition to maintaining the city’s primary
buildings, as well as minor renovations. The LFUCG real estate holdings comptise approximately 4 million square
feet of space under roof. The Division of Parks and Recreation operates 103 parks consisting of more that 4,500
acres with green space areas, 6 golf courses, 6 community centers and 9 aquatic facilities. In addition, the
Commissioner’s Office oversees the management of the Urban County Government telephone system, utilities and
parking garages.

The Department of Law provides legal services for the Government. The Corporate Counsel Division prepares all
legal instruments of the Government and provides advice to its elected officials, employees and agencies. The
Litigation Division represents the Urban County Government in civil cases and administrative hearings and
coordinates representation of cases handled by outside attorneys. Claims management, insurance procurement and
administration of the self insurance fund are also handled in the Department of Law. The Commissioner also
oversees the Department of Human Resources, which manages all hiring of employees and benefits administration.

The Department of Environmental Quality and Public Works was first established as part of the July 1, 2007,
reorganization and includes the Divisions of Environmental Policy, Water and Air Quality and Waste Management,
Engineering, Streets and Roads, and Traffic Engineering. The Department consolidates environmental functions
together under one umbrella, allowing LFUCG to take a more streamlined, focused and effective approach to
protecting the environment.

Significant Events (as of December 31, 2011)

Infrastructure Highlights

e Construction began on the long awaited Clays Mill road widening project with completion expected in FY
2012.

e The renovation of the intersection of Harrodsburg Road and New Circle Road began at the end of FY
2011. The design for this project incorporates an innovative traffic pattern called a ‘double crossover
diamond’ and is considered highly progressive. It allows for increased traffic flow and enhanced safety by
routing traffic through a non-traditional road pattern.

e Street improvement on the South Limestone corridor, which connects downtown to the University of
Kentucky, continued. The street was re-opened to motorist traffic and the streetscape enhanced.

e Streetscape projects along Main Street, including new sidewalks and landscaping, were completed.

e  Construction commenced in Triangle Park with planned improvements including a seasonal ice rink and
permanent food concession stand.

Bluegrass Economic Advancement Moverment

The Bluegrass Economic Advancement Movement (BEAM) was initiated as a partnership between Lexington and
Louisville dedicated to the development of a joint regional business plan supporting the growth of high quality jobs
in advanced manufacturing. BEAM will leverage private sector and government resources, with the help of the
Brookings Institution, to create a ‘super-region’ of expert manufacturing that can compete on a global scale.
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Enhanced Recycling Facilities

The Manchester Street recycling center added capacity to accommodate 600 tons of recyclables. Additionally $3.7M
in new equipment has been installed to speed the recycling process and allow for single-stream recycling, meaning
residents no longer must separate glass from other recyclables. The enhancements process three times the volume
of recyclables, which translates into cost savings by reducing annual landfill disposal fees. Revenue from recycling
operations has also increased.

Consent Decree

The Consent Decree requires Lexington to address structural, operational, and procedural issues within its storm
and sanitary sewer systems in accordance with the schedule developed jointly with the United States Environmental
Protection Agency. To date Lexington has met every Consent Decree deadline. In fiscal year 2011 Lexington
completed the $5.3M Group 1 Sanitary Sewer Assessment, the first phase of a multi-year assessment project. Near
term sanitary sewer upgrades completed in FY 2011 include the South Elkhorn Force Main and Pump Station
($15M), sewer rehabilitation to reduce inflow and infiltration ($2M), and treatment plant initiatives ($2.5M).
Additionally construction began on the Dixie and Deep Springs pump stations.

Eastern State Hospital Project

In FY 2011 the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Public Facilities Corporation, acting on behalf of the Lexington-
Fayette Urban County Government, was able to expedite the original Eastern State Hospital financing schedule by a
year and provide permanent financing for this collaborative effort through the issuance of its lease revenue bonds,
secured by a lease among the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Public Facilities Corporation, the Finance Cabinet of
the Commonwealth, and the Cabinet for Health and Family Services of the Commonwealth. The proceeds of the
bonds were used to refund the general obligation notes and to provide additional funds to complete the Eastern
State Hospital project. The lease payments from the Finance Cabinet of the Commonwealth and the Cabinet for
Health and Family Services of the Commonwealth are to be applied to the payment of debt service on the bonds.
Neither the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government nor the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Public
Facilities Corporation is obligated to pay debt service on the bonds.

Arena, Arts, and Entertainment Task Force

The Arena, Arts, and Entertainment Task Force was appointed by Mayor Gray in March. The Task Force is
composed of forty-seven community leaders and is charged with the responsibility to make recommendations to the
community about the future of Rupp Arena, the Lexington Center, and a proposed arts and entertainment area.
The members of the Task Force will consider ways to integrate the city center with other Lexington landmarks,
including the University of Kentucky and the Distillery District.

Legacy Trail

The Legacy Trail is a 12-mile walking, biking, interpretive trail and public art venue beginning in the East End of
downtown Lexington at the Isaac Murphy Memorial Art Garden and running to the Kentucky Horse Park. Over
8.5 miles of the trail are off-street and paved to accommodate a variety of uses. The Legacy Trail will ultimately link
to the University of Kentucky and to other significant destinations and projects in the urban area and become a
showpiece of Downtown Development.

Strengthening Fiscal Management

Introduction

FY 2011 continued to be a challenging year due to economic conditions. Like all American cities, Lexington faced
the dilemma of declining revenue streams and high unemployment. The Government implemented an expense
reduction plan that identified opportunities to operate more efficiently and effectively with available resources.
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Factors Aftecting Financial Condition

Following is a brief discussion of critical factors affecting the financial condition of the Government. Additional
detailed information and discussion of the Government’s financial condition can be found in the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis section.

Local Economy

The unemployment rate in Fayette County was 7.6% in June 2011, down from 7.8% in June, 2010. The June 2011
rate is below the national and state rates of 9.2% and 9.6% respectively. Employment as measured by a household
survey, which is by place of residence, was 147,052 in June, 2011 compared to 142,196 in June, 2010.

Budget Control and Financial Management

The Mayor of the Urban County Government submits a proposed annual operating budget and a five-year capital
improvement budget to the Urban County Council at least sixty days prior to the beginning of each succeeding fiscal
year. The Council, upon receipt of the proposed budget, conducts a series of public hearings on the proposed
budget. The Charter of the Urban County Government provides that the Urban County Council may amend the
budget; however, the adopted budget shall provide for all expenditures required by law and for all debt service
requirements. Other budgeting polices include that the budget must be balanced for each fund, and total available
funds must equal or exceed total anticipated expenditures.

The Urban County Council adopts a line-item budget ordinance and must approve all budget amendments moving
money within the personnel category or from one category to another (personnel, operating, capital). Budgetary
control is maintained at the division level and is facilitated by the use of encumbrance accounting. As purchase
orders are issued, corresponding amounts of divisional appropriations are reserved for later payment. Requests for
disbursements which will result in an overrun of budgeted expenditures must be accompanied by a request for a
budget amendment.

Long-Term Financial Policies

Annually, the Government adopts a Capital Improvement Plan prior to the completion of the annual operating
budget. The development of the capital improvement plan budget is coordinated with the development of the
operating budgets. Requests for capital projects are accompanied by estimates of project impact on annual
operating costs and revenues. Additionally, multi-year forecasts of revenues and expenditures, including operating
and capital expenditures, are prepared throughout the year to monitor the adequacy of funding resources and debt

capacity.

Cash Management and Investment Policy

The Department of Finance is responsible for the custody, investment and disbursement of all funds of the
Government in accordance with the procedures and standards adopted by the Urban County Council. It is the
policy of the Government to invest funds in a manner that will provide the highest investment return with the
maximum security of principal while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Government. The Government’s
investments are governed by state statues (KRS 66.480) and an investment policy approved by the Urban County
Council. In FY 2011, all funds were invested in either obligations of the United States and its agencies of
instrumentalities, mutual funds comprised of those securities, repurchase agreements, collateralized Certificates of
Deposit or commercial paper.

Awards and Acknowledgements

For the 18" consecutive year, the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for the Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Lexington-Fayette
Utrban County Government for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards
for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

200 East Main Street *  Lexington, KY 40507 ¢ (859) 425-2255 ¢ www.lexingtonky.gov
HORSE CAPITAL OF THE WORLD
7



In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the Government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to the program standards. This report
must also satisfy generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for the period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program requirement, and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine our eligibility for another certificate.

Preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the professional, efficient and dedicated
setvices of the staff of the Departments of Accounting, Finance, Revenue, and Budgeting. Further appreciation is
extended to the Mayor, the members of the Urban County Council, Commissioners and Division Directors for their
cooperation and support.

Respecttfully submitted,

MC.M

Jane C. Driskell, Commissioner
Finance
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting
Presented to

Lexington-Fayette Urban
County Government, Kentucky

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2010

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

Lo . Sandor

President

Executive Director
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Council Office
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Council Clerk's Office
Office of the Mayor

Office of the Chief Administrative Officer
Grants and Special Projects
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Purchase of Development Rights
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Budgeting
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Finance
Accounting
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Revenue
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Waste Management
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Law
Corporate Counsel
Litigation
Human Resources
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Building Inspection
Code Enforcement
Community Corrections
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Fire and Emergency Services
Police

Social Services
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Family Services
Youth Services

General Services
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FINANCIAL SECTION
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DEAN || DORTON || ALLEN | FORD_

The Honorable Mayor, Members of the

Urban County Council and Citizens
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Lexington, Kentucky

Independent Auditors” Report

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented components units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (the Government) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Government’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Government’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Lexington Transit Authority, Lexington
Convention and Visitors Bureau, Lexington Public Library, Lexington-Fayette Urban County Airport
Board, Lexington-Fayette Urban County Department of Health, and the Lexington Center Corporation,
which represent 99% of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the discretely presented component units.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us,
and in our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Lexington Transit Authority,
Lexington Convention and Visitors Bureau, Lexington Public Library, Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Airport Board, Lexington-Fayette Urban County Department of Health, and the Lexington Center
Corporation, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Government’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

106 West Vine Street First Trust Centre
Suite 600 200 South Fifth Street
Lexington, KY 40507 Suite 201 South
8592552341 phone Louisville, KY 40202
8592550125 fax 5025896050 phone

5025819016 faxr
www.ddafipa.com



In our opinion, based upon our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Government, as of June 30, 2011,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective Budgetary Comparison for the General Fund and Full Urban Services District Fund for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued under separate cover our report
dated January 11, 2012 on our consideration of the Government's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered
in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 through 27 are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplement ary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit it and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government's basic financial statements. The accompanying
Introductory Section on pages 1 through 11, Combining and Individual Fund Statements on pages 99
through 104 and 109 through 124, Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards on page 108, and the
Statistical Section on pages 127 through 153 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards on pages 105 through 107 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Combining and Individual
Fund Statements, Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Schedule of Expenditures of State
Awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors,
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us
and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

Doocen Dotlon (0o Forncd AU

Dean Dorton Allen Ford, PLLC
January 11, 2012



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents a discussion and analysis of the Urban County Government’s
financial performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. It is supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and is intended to provide a readable explanation of the
information within the basic financial statements. It should be read in conjunction with the Letter of
Transmittal (which can be found preceding this narrative on page 3) and the financial statements immediately
following the analysis.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Government — Wide Highlights

The assets of the Urban County Government exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $1.1 billion
(net assets).

e Total assets of the primary government exceeded total liabilities by approximately $1,136.79 million at
the close of fiscal year 2011. This amount includes a deficit of approximately $77.03 million in
unrestricted net assets.

e Total net assets decreased by approximately $37.28 million.

e Governmental Activities’ net assets were $843.85 million at the end of fiscal year 2011.  Of this
amount, $921.24 million was invested in capital assets, net of related debt. The investments in capital
assets, net of related debt comprises 99.4% of total net assets.

e Business-Type Activities held a balance of $292.94 million in net assets. The unrestricted fund balance
at June 30, 2011 is $33.0 million, or 44.6% of Business-Type Activity expenditures.

Fund Highlights

e As of June 30, 2011, the Urban County Government’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $90.16 million, a decrease of $30.17 million compared to the previous fiscal year.
This includes an unassigned deficit fund balance of $0.41 million.

e The General Fund, the primary operating fund of the Urban County Government, held an unassigned
fund balance of $0.56 million or .2% of General Fund expenditures. The assigned fund balance
designation for economic stabilization held a balance of $18.2 million, of which $14.47 million is
available for spending in the event of an economic downturn or unforeseen event. The remaining
$3.73 million represents funds required for the 27" payroll scheduled to occur in 2017.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the finances of the Lexington-Fayette
Urban County Government. Three key elements comprise the basic financial statements, including:

A) Government-Wide financial statements;

B) Fund Financial Statements, and,;
C) Notes to the Financial Statements
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A. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
Urban County Government’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements report
financial information about the entire Government, except for fiduciary activities and provide both short-term
and long-term information about the Government’s financial position, and assist in the assessment of the Urban
County Government’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year. The statements are prepared using the
flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. They take into account all
revenues and expenses of the fiscal year regardless of when cash is received or paid. The Government-Wide
Financial Statements include two statements: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Assets reflects the financial position of the Urban County Government at fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011. Accordingly, the Urban County Government’s net assets, the difference between assets (what
the citizens own) and liabilities (what the citizens owe) are one way to determine the financial condition of the
Urban County Government. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets are one indicator of whether the
financial health of the Urban County Government is improving or deteriorating. However, additional factors
such as changes in the Urban County Government’s revenue structure, its tax base, and its level of assets held,
should be considered in order to assess thoroughly the overall financial condition of the Urban County
Government.

The Statement of Activities reflects the Urban County Government’s revenues and expenses, as well as other
transactions that increase or decrease net assets. Program revenues are offset by program expenses in order to
provide better information regarding program costs financed by general government revenues.

Both of the Government-Wide Financial Statements divide the Urban County Government’s activities into three
types:

1. Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (federal grants), namely occupational license fees, property taxes, and
service charges. Most services normally associated with local government fall into this category,
including police, fire, solid waste, parks and general administration. Internal Service Fund balances
are reported as part of Governmental Activities.

2. Business-Type Activities — These activities normally are intended to recover all or a significant portion
of costs through user fees and charges to external users of goods and services provided by the Urban
County Government. The Business-Type Activities of the Urban County Government include the
operations of various Enterprise Funds, including sanitary sewer services, landfill and disposal costs,
and leases and operating costs for public facilities related to debt issues.

3. Discretely Presented Component Units — The Urban County Government includes nine separate legal
entities in its reports. Although legally separate and possessing independent qualities, the Urban
County Government maintains financial accountability for these entities.

B. Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The Fund Financial Statements report the operations of the Urban County
Government in greater detail than the Government-Wide Financial Statements by providing information about
the Government’s most significant funds. Local ordinance or bond covenants may require the creation of some
funds; others may be created at the discretion of the administration for management and fiscal control of
financial resources. All funds of the Urban County Government can be divided into three types of funds:
Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, and Fiduciary Funds.

1. Governmental funds — Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as Governmental Activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. However, unlike
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the Government-Wide Financial Statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year.

Most of the basic services performed by the Urban County Government are reported in the
governmental funds category. These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the Government-Wide Financial
Statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for Governmental Activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Urban County Government’s near
term funding decisions. The governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and Governmental Activities.

2. Proprietary funds — When the Urban County Government charges a fee for services which is intended
to cover the cost of providing those services — whether to outside customers or to other units of the
Urban County Government — those services are generally reported in the proprietary funds category.
The subcategories of the proprietary funds include enterprise funds and internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as Business-Type Activities in the
government-wide financial statements.

Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the various functions
of the Urban County Government. The Urban County Government uses internal service funds to
account for its health, general liability, auto, property and worker’s compensation self-insurance.
These services predominantly benefit Governmental Activities rather than Business-Type Activities;
hence, they have been included with Governmental Activities in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements.

The proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the government-
wide statements but the fund statements provide more detail. The Urban County Government
considers the Sanitary Sewer Fund, the Public Facilities Corporation Fund, the Public Parking
Corporation Fund and the Landfill Fund as its major proprietary funds.

3. Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the programs of the Urban
County Government. The accounting used for the fiduciary funds is similar to that used for proprietary
funds. The Urban County Government is trustee, or fiduciary, for two employees’ pension funds, the
City Employees’ Pension Fund and the Policemen’s and Firefighters’ Retirement Fund.

C. Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. They are an integral part of the financial
statements and focus on the primary government and its activities.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Analysis of Net Assets

Net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In Table 1 below, the Urban
County Government’s combined net assets (Governmental and Business-Type Activities) totaled $1.14 billion
as of June 30, 2011, a decrease of $37.28 million from the previous year. Total depreciation expense
government wide was $60.59 million.

The largest proportion of the Urban County Government’s net assets, $1.13 billion, is invested in capital assets
(e.g. land, infrastructures, buildings and improvements and equipment), minus any related debt, which is still
outstanding and used to acquire those assets. The Urban County Government uses these capital assets to
provide services to its citizens. As such, these assets are not available for future spending.

Table 1
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Summary of Net Assets
For Years As Stated
(in thousands)

Total Net Assets
(in thousands)

FY2010
FY 2011 (Restated) Change
ASSETS
Current and other assets $292,815 $294,351 (1,536)
Capital assets 1,433,885 1,451,226 (17,341)
Total assets 1,726,700 1,745,577 (18,877)
LIABILITIES
Current and other liabilities 59,468 56,460 3,008
Long-term liabilities 530,439 515,045 15,394
Total liabilities 589,907 571,505 18,402
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 1,130,514 1,160,605 (30,091)
net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 65,869 38,322 27,547
Debt Service 7,939 7,939 0
Depreciation 3,021 3,247 (226)
Grants 546 116 430
Maintenance and Operations 5,901 5,851 50
Unrestricted (76,999) (42,008) (34,991)
Total net assets $1,136,791 $1,174,072 ($37,281)
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Approximately $83.3 million, or 7.33% of total net assets, are subject to external restrictions regarding their
use. Restricted net assets of governmental funds include fund balances of the general fund, the urban services
fund and various special revenue funds. Please refer to the fund analysis beginning on page 23 for more
information.

Table 2 indicates that the net assets of Governmental Activities totaled $843.85 million, or 66.4% of total
assets, a decrease of $45.82 million from the previous year. Of these net assets, $921.24 million is invested in
capital assets (e.g. land, infrastructures, buildings and improvements and machinery and equipment), minus any
related debt, which is still outstanding and used to acquire those assets.

Table 2
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Summary of Net Assets
For Years as Stated
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities

FY2010
FY 2011 (Restated) Change
ASSETS
Current and other assets $174,725 $199,255 ($24,530)
Capital assets 1,096,527 1,104,106 (7,579)
Total assets 1,271,252 1,303,361 (32,109)
LIABILITIES
Current and other liabilities 50,281 42,458 7,823
Long-term liabilities 377,117 371,233 5,884
Total liabilities 427,398 413,691 13,707
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
net of related debt 921,237 920,939 298
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 32,094 20,110 11,984
Grants 546 116 430
Unrestricted (110,023) (51,495) (58,528)
Total net assets $843,854 $889,670 ($45,816)
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Table 3 shows the net assets of Business-Type Activities totaled $292.94 million at the end of Fiscal Year 2011,
an increase of $8.53 million from the previous fiscal year. Of these net assets, $209.28 million, or 71.4%, is
invested in capital assets, minus related debt outstanding, used to acquire those assets. The Urban County
Government uses these capital assets in the same way as the capital assets held by Governmental Activities.

Table 3
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Summary of Net Assets
For Years as Stated
(in thousands)

Business-Type Activities

FY2010
FY 2011 (Restated) Change
ASSETS
Current and other assets $118,090 $95,096 $22,994
Capital assets 337,358 347,120 (9,762)
Total assets 455,448 442,216 13,232
LIABILITIES
Current and other liabilities 9,188 14,001 (4,813)
Long-term liabilities 153,322 143,812 9,510
Total liabilities 162,510 157,813 4,697
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets
net of related debt 209,277 239,666 (30,389)
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 33,776 18,213 15,563
Debt Service 7,939 7,939 0
Depreciation 3,021 3,246 (225)
Maintenance and Operations 5,901 5,851 50
Unrestricted 33,025 9,488 23,537
Total net assets $292,939 $284,403 $8,536

Governmental Activities

As indicated in Chart 1, the Urban County Government funds its Governmental Activities from revenue
received from four significant categories. A clear majority, 58%, of the Urban County Government’s revenue is
provided through licenses and permits. This category includes fees placed on Employee Withholdings,
Business Returns, Insurance Premiums, and Franchise Fees. Charges for Services were 22%, which was the
second largest contributing category to governmental activity revenues. Revenues collected in this category
include charges collected from the Detention Center, EMS charges, golf course collections, fees for building
permits, and fees associated with parks and recreation programs. Property Taxes comprised 13% of
governmental revenues just ahead of Federal and state grant funding which represents 6%. The remaining 1%
Other category represents miscellaneous revenues collected by the Government.
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Chart 1
Distributionof Governmental Activity Revenues
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As indicated by Table 4, revenues from Governmental Activities totaled $387.1 million, which was an increase
of 3.55% from the previous fiscal year. Licenses and permits totaled $224.4 million, representing 58% of total
revenues. As stated earlier, this category includes Employee Withholdings in the form of an occupational
license fee (OLF). This fee is comprised of an assessment of 2.25% on the total wages received by individuals
employed in Lexington-Fayette County and an assessment of 2.25% on the net profits of businesses operating in
the Lexington-Fayette County area. Licenses and permits increased by $9.2 million, or 4.28% from the
previous fiscal year. This is due in part to an increase in issuance of building permits over FY2010. Property
taxes increased $1.41 million from the previous fiscal year, up 2.75% which was largely due to an increase in
new development. Charges for Services increased primarily due to increased Medicaid and Detention Center
revenues.

As noted on Table 4, total expenses of Governmental Activities were $434.17 million; an increase of $26.12
million from the previous fiscal year. Expenditures were increased in several program categories, including
$8.04 million in Insurance claims, $4.49 million in Finance, and $3.99 million in Fire and Emergency Services.
This increase was offset primarily by a decrease of $1.16 million in Social Services program expenditures.

Business-Type Activities

Also indicated on Table 4, revenues from Business-type Activities increased $6.49 million from the previous
fiscal year. This is primarily due to an increase in revenues collected for services provided by the Government.
Also noted on Table 4, total expenses of Business-type Activities remained relatively stable as compared to
FY2010, increasing by $1.72 million. This is primarily due to an increase in Sewer and Stormwater program
expenses of $2.77 million. This increase was offset primarily by a decrease of $0.55 million in Enhanced 911
program expenses. The largest program among these activities is the Sanitary Sewer system, which utilized
$42.47 million at the end of the fiscal year, representing 57.4% of all Business-Type expenses.
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TABLE 4

Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government

Summary of Statement of Activities
For Year as Stated
(in thousands)

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General revenues:
Property taxes
Licenses and permits
Grants and unrestricted contributions
Other general revenues
Total revenues
Program expenses
General Government
Administrative Services
Health, Dental, Vision, Workers Comp,
General Insurance
Chief Information Officer
Finance
Public Works
Public Safety Other
Police
Fire and Emergency Services
Community Corrections
Environmental Quality
Social Services
General Services
Parks and Recreation
Law and Risk Management
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Sanitary Sewer System
Public Facilities
Public Parking
Landfill
Right of Way
Extended School Program
Prisoners' Account System
Enhanced 911
LexVan Program
Stormwater
Total expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets before
Transfers
Transfers
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets, July 1
Adjustment to Opening Net Assets (Note 2.D)
Net Assets, June 30

*Numbers may not total due to rounding.

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$84,619 $74,348 $83,162 $77,553 $167,781 $151,901
13,849 20,193 13,849 20,193
7,079 10,435 7,079 10,435
0
52,548 51,143 52,548 51,143
224,400 215,197 224,400 215,197
2,176 2,251 2,176 2,251
2,430 254 580 (305) 3,010 (51)
387,101 373,821 83,742 77,248 470,843 451,069
24,197 22,727 24,197 22,727
1,386 1,299 1,386 1,299
0
34,755 26,712 34,755 26,712
9,713 9,162 9,713 9,162
28,516 24,047 28,516 24,047
63,671 61,841 63,671 61,841
11,163 11,260 11,163 11,260
71,715 70,695 71,715 70,695
67,107 63,116 67,107 63,116
31,105 30,894 31,105 30,894
23,500 21,516 23,500 21,516
10,673 11,837 10,673 11,837
14,243 14,629 14,243 14,629
19,064 18,321 19,064 18,321
10,227 9,301 10,227 9,301
13,132 10,692 13,132 10,692
42,473 41,453 42,473 41,453
10,741 10,806 10,741 10,806
907 928 907 928
6,582 6,642 6,582 6,642
313 313 313 313
2,207 2,457 2,207 2,457
1,287 1,422 1,287 1,422
3,084 3,634 3,084 3,634
84 58 84 58
6,280 4,528 6,280 4,528
434,167 408,049 73,958 72,241 508,125 480,290
(47,066) (34,228) 9,784 5,007 (37,282) (29,221)
1,250 1,738 (1,250) (1,738) 0 0
(45,816) (32,490) 8,534 3,269 (37,282) (29,221)
889,445 934,590 289,618 286,349 1,179,063 1,220,938
225 (12,655) (5,214) (4,989) (12,655)
$843,854 $889,445 $292,938 $289,618 $1,136,792  $1,179,062

21



During the year personnel related expenses for Police, Fire, and Community Corrections which are covered by
collective bargaining agreements decreased approximately $24.24 million. Salary and Wage costs including
benefits, for non-collective bargaining employees increased 2%. Please see Chart 2 for more information on
personnel costs for Governmental Activities during FY 11.

Chart 2
Governmental Activities Personnel Costs with Benefits
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Chart 3 displays the distribution of total costs by governmental activity.
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FUNDS OF THE LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT

As discussed earlier, the Lexington-Fayette Urban County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and other finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The Urban County Government’s total governmental funds for the year ended June 30, 2011 reflect a combined
ending fund balance of $90.16 million, a decrease of $30.17 million from the previous fiscal year. The Urban
County Government reports fund balance as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned (refer
to Note 1 for detailed information on the fund balance classifications). The Urban County Government had
$0.56 million of unassigned fund balance available in the General Fund at June 30, 2011. Unassigned fund
balance of the General Fund (Urban County Government’s main operating fund) represents approximately 0.2%
of total general fund expenditures for fiscal year 2011.

At the end of Fiscal Year 2011, the fund balance held by the General Fund totaled $24.19 million, a decrease of
$7.33 million, or 23.3%, from the previous fiscal year. This was primarily the result of a prior period adjustment
decreasing beginning fund balance by $7.95 million. Employee withholdings tax collections were higher than
fiscal year 2010.

The Urban Services Fund is used to finance solid waste collection, streetlights, and street cleaning services for
properties within designated property tax districts. At the end of the fiscal year, the Urban Services Fund held a
total fund balance of $20.42 million, a decrease of $5.56 million over the prior fiscal year. This decrease is
primarily due to capital equipment purchases in the current fiscal year. Restricted fund balance totaled $20.42
million and reflects 49.4% of Urban Services Fund expenditures. Revenues of the Urban Services Fund
increased $1.91 million from the prior fiscal year due to increases in Property Taxes allocated to the Urban
Services Fund. This increase was a result of increased assessed tax values and an increase in new development.

The Federal and State Grants Fund held a balance of $0.55 million for fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, an
increase of $0.43 million compared to the previous fiscal year. This fund balance represents grant revenues
received, but not spent, that are restricted for specific activities. During the 2011 Fiscal Year, expenditures
were lower than revenues and the fund balance increased.

The Other Governmental Funds primarily relate to costs associated with various capital bond projects. As of
June 30, 2011 $28.87 million has been expended on these projects. Bond issues in the amount of $15.26 million
were issued to reimburse these expenditures and cover any additional costs associated with the projects. An
additional issuance of $4.47 million partially refunded a prior year bond.

Proprietary Funds

The Urban County Government’s proprietary funds statements provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Total net assets for the Urban County
Government’s proprietary funds totaled $292.94 million as of June 30, 2011, an increase of $3.32 million.

The Sanitary Sewer Fund held total net assets of $209.15 million, an increase of $4.79 million over the prior
year. A prior period adjustment to reduce beginning net assets partially offset the increase. Of the total net
assets held by the Sanitary Sewer Fund, $49.18 million is restricted by bond covenants for maintenance,
depreciation, capital projects, and debt service. Unrestricted net assets totaled $13.94 million.

The Public Facilities Corporation (PFC) was created by the Government to act as an agency and instrumentality

of the Government to finance and operate public projects. The net assets of the Public Facilities Corporation
were $33.75 million, a decrease of $3.35 million from the prior year.
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The Public Parking Corporation (PPC) was created in a similar fashion to the PFC. The Public Parking
Corporation, an agency and authority of the Urban County Government, was established to acquire, finance,
and operate public parking facilities for the Urban County Government. The net assets of the Public Parking
Corporation totaled $16.2 million, a decrease of $46 thousand from the prior year.

At fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the total net assets of the Landfill Fund held a balance of $23.68 million, a
decrease of $3.9 million from the prior fiscal year resulting in a 14.1% decrease.

The other enterprise funds were established to account for the acquisition, operation and maintenance of the
Government’s facilities and services which are entirely or predominantly self-supported by user charges or
where the Government has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability and other
purposes. As of June 30, 2011 the other enterprise funds held total net assets of $10.06 million, an increase of
$5.87 million over the previous year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Urban County Government. Over the course of the year,
the Urban County Council revises the budget numerous times; thus, exercising one of the primary duties of the
Council as guardian of the government’s funds. Supplemental appropriations are approved to reflect actual
beginning fund balances and to re-appropriate funds for capital projects. As the year progresses and actual
revenue collections and budgetary experience is known, amendments are processed in order to reflect the actual
results and revised expectations of future revenue and expenditures.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, General Fund revenues totaled $281.36 million, an increase of 5.3% from
the previous fiscal year. Total revenues were $10.03 million above the final budgeted amount. This increase in
actual revenue is the result of a slight rebound in the U.S. economy, which positively affects both employee
withholdings and business returns.

General Fund expenditures of the Urban County Government totaled $283.95 million, a decrease of $25.28
million, or 8.2% over the previous year. Expenditures were $4.98 million below the final budgeted amount.
Personnel expenditures accounted for 66.4% of General Fund expenditures and this category accounted for the
largest decrease among all expenditures, approximately $32.01 million over the prior year. The decrease was
realized by personnel savings in the divisions covered by collective bargaining agreements. Personnel
expenditures from these divisions account for 44.1% of the general fund expenditures. Please see the Table 5
below for more details regarding the distribution of general fund personnel cost and the changes from prior
year.
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Table 5
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Summary of General Fund Personnel Costs with Benefits
For Years Stated
(in Thousands)

% General
Fund
Departments 2011 2010 Change % Change  Expeditures
Non-Collective Bargaining Divisions
Administrative Services $1,167 $949 $218 23.0% 0.4%
Chief Information Officer 5,476 5,201 275 5.3% 1.9%
Department of Finance 6,131 6,624 (493) -1.4% 2.2%
Department of General Services 8,810 8,583 227 2.6% 3.1%
Department of Law 2,229 2,466 (237) -9.6% 0.8%
Department of Public Safety 5,446 5,147 299 5.8% 1.9%
Department of Social Services 5,610 5,799 (189) -3.3% 2.0%
Department of Environmental Quality 5 - 5 0.0%
Department of Public Works & Development 11,374 11,678 (304) -2.6% 4.0%
General Government 5,909 5,485 424 7.7% 2.1%
Parks and Recreation 11,061 10,949 112 1.0% 3.9%
Total Non-Collective Bargaining Divisions 63,218 62,881 337 0.5% 22.3%
Divisions with Collective Bargaining
Police 53,751 71,565 (17,814) -24.9% 18.9%
Community Corrections 21,112 21,518 (406) -1.9% 7.4%
Fire and Emergency Services 50,433 64,562 (14,129) -21.9% 17.8%
Total Collective Bargaining Divisions 125,296 157,645 (32,349) -20.5% 44.1%
Total Personnel Costs with Benefits $188,514 $220,526 ($32,012) -14.5% 66.4%

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Urban County Government’s investment in capital assets totaled $1.1 billion as of June 30, 2011. This
investment includes land, buildings, equipment, park facilities, roads, bridges, and sewer systems. For
Governmental Activities, the recorded capital investments, net of related debt totaled $921.24 million.
Governmental activity capital assets, net of related debt decreased by $7.58 million over the prior year. The
assets of Business-Type Activities totaled $337.36 million, a decrease of $9.76 million from the previous fiscal
year.

This year’s major changes in capital assets included:

e The decrease in construction in progress of $25.65 million over the prior year was primarily
responsible for the overall decrease in capital assets in the Governmental activity. In addition,
infrastructure assets decreased $10.4 million from the previous fiscal year. Infrastructure includes
roads, bridges, storm water, fiber optics, traffic signals and similar items. This decrease was offset by
capital additions of $28.47 million overall within Governmental activity.

e Capital Assets for Business-Type Activities decreased by $9.76 million.

e Construction in Progress (CIP) totaled $29.47 million in the Governmental Activities and $3.07
million in Business Type Activities accounting for a total decrease in CIP of $40.7 million.
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TABLE 6
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Summary of Capital Assets

For Years as Stated
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government

2010 2010 2010
2011 (as restated) 2011 (as restated) 2011 (as restated)
Land $56,317 $53,356 $47,942 $47,206 $104,259 $100,562
Purchase of Developmental Rights 67,938 62,877 67,938 62,877
Intangibles 6,580 4,128 30 213 6,610 4,341
Buildings and Improvements* 100,625 95,754 61,525 65,851 162,150 161,605
Vehicles, Equipment and Furniture 34,824 28,221 2,358 3,041 37,182 31,262
Land and Leasehold Improvements* 10,641 6,240 14,127 16,031 24,768 22,271
Infrastructure 776,973 787,372 204,243 193,464 981,216 980,836
Construction in Progress* 29,467 55,119 3,066 18,110 32,533 73,229
Developments in Progress* 13,162 11,039 4,066 3,204 17,228 14,243
Total $1,096,527 $1,104,106 $337,357 $347,120  $1,433,884 $1,451,226

*Restated

Additional information on the Government’s capital assets activity can be found in Note 3.B. beginning on page
73 of the report.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Government began issuing General Obligation (GO) bonds in fiscal year 1999 because of changes in state
law that had previously precluded this type of financing. Since GO bonds are backed by the full faith and credit
of the Urban County Government, they carry a higher credit rating than other forms of debt and have lower
interest rates. As a result, future debt issues on behalf of the Urban County Government will be GO debt unless
such debt is secured by Enterprise Fund activities.

Prior to the issuance of GO bonds, mortgage revenue bonds were issued through various public corporations in
order to finance public projects. For mortgage revenue bonds, the Urban County Government enters into annual
renewable lease agreements automatically with the corporations whereby lease payments from the Government,
combined with revenues generated by the operation of the facilities, are sufficient to meet debt service
obligations. The underlying security for the bond is the annual lease agreements and the underlying mortgages
on the property. Revenue bonds, where only the revenues from the operation of the facilities are pledged as
security for the bonds, are issued to finance improvements to the sanitary sewer system.

At the end of Fiscal Year 2011, the Urban County Government had $441.02 million in bonds and notes
outstanding; Governmental Activities’ debt decreased by $12.49 million with total debt decreasing $3.8 million
resulting from the issuance of bonds related to FY 2011 approved capital projects, offset by principal payments
made in the current fiscal year on outstanding debt. In addition, the Governmental activity restated beginning
fund balance within the General Fund by $7.95 million related to the elimination of the Eastern State Hospital
bond. This bond issuance is no longer considered an obligation of the Urban County Government. For more
information on this prior period adjustment, please refer to Note 2.D. The Business-type Activities debt
increased $8.7 million due to an increase in notes payable, primarily to be utilized along with other available
funds of financing for the construction of major additions, betterment and extensions to the sanitary sewer
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system. Additional information on the Governments long-term debt can be found in Note 3.D. beginning on
page 76 of the report.

Despite recent legal changes that provide for the issuance of GO debt, legal limits remain on the total amount of
GO indebtedness that may be incurred. The Kentucky Constitution provides that the total principal amount of
GO debt cannot exceed 10% of the value of taxable property in the county, or $2.5 billion. State law provides
the same limitation as set forth in the constitution except that the limitation applies to “net indebtedness”, which
excludes self-supporting obligations, revenue bonds, special assessment debt and non-tax supported debt issued
prior to July 15, 1996 (the effective date of the previously discussed statutory change). The total amount of debt
subject to the legal limitation is $155.46 million.
TABLE 7
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Summary of Outstanding Debt
For Years as Stated
(in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Activities Total Primary
2010 2010 2010
2011 (as restated) 2011 (as restated) 2011 (as restated)
General Obligation Bonds, Notes, Leases $303,865 $308,355 $15,105 $318,970 $308,355
Mortgage Revenue Bonds 61,990 63,890 61,990 63,890
Revenue Bonds 60,055 64,565 60,055 64,565
Total $303,865 $308,355  $137,150 $128,455  $441,015 $436,810

The Urban County Government maintains a general obligation bond rating of “Aa2” from Moody’s and “AA”
from Standard & Poor’s. The revenue bonds of the sanitary sewer system have a bond rating of “Aa3” from
Moody’s and “AA” from Standard & Poor’s. The rating of the Urban County Government’s lease revenue debt
is “AA3” from Moody’s and “AA-" from Standard & Poor’s. The Government has not issued lease revenue
debt since 1998 due to changes in state law that provided for the issuance of general obligation debt.

Additional information regarding the Urban County Government’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3.D.
beginning on page 74 of the report.

NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Fiscal Year 2012 Budget, for all funds combined, net of
interfund transfers, is $467,101 million. Significant initiatives in the budget include:

e A commitment of $60.51 million for storm sewer projects and programs as required by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency Consent Decree
e No general obligation bonds were approved as part of the FY 2012 budget

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Government’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be
addressed to Commissioner of Finance, 200 East Main Street, Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government,
Lexington, Kentucky, 40507.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Cash $22,995,251 $18,053,380 $41,048,631 $20,888,630
Investments 57,767,086 63,619,379 121,386,465 4,567,941
Receivables (net) 20,443,339 4,184,209 24,627,548 5,074,356
Due from Other Governments 5,255,586 5,255,586 6,532,003
Due from Fidicuciary Funds 306,193 306,193
Due from Component Units 869,153 869,153 172,157
Due from Primary Government 272,139
Inventories 1,498,137 29,619 1,527,756 1,091,221
Prepaid Items 1,437,687
Net Pension Asset 35,613,328 35,613,328 680,559
Restricted Assets:
Cash 7,104,911
Grants Receivable 444,217
Investments 27,577,571 26,760,890 54,338,461 20,957,804
Other 288,119
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable 169,791,979 55,074,434 224,866,413 28,293,381
Depreciable (Net) 926,734,870 282,283,336 1,209,018,206 227,083,298
Other Assets 609,465
Unamortized Bond Costs 2,400,013 5,442,363 7,842,376 2,834,294
Total Assets 1,271,252,506 455,447,610 1,726,700,116 328,332,182
LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts Payable and
Accrued Liabilities 15,432,613 4,121,319 19,553,932 7,800,583
Interest Payable 3,645,321 636,701 4,282,022
Internal Balances 3,708,855 (3,708,855) 0
Due to Fiduciary Funds 2,086,596 2,086,596
Due to Component Units 97,501 97,501 172,157
Due to Primary Government 576,231
Unearned Revenue and Other 1,066,709 550,001 1,616,710 166,475
Claims Liabilities 24,243,593 24,243,593
Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets:
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage
Payable 269,096 269,096 699,329
Bonds and Notes Payable 5,990,000 5,990,000
Interest Payable 1,329,282 1,329,282 741,000
Non-Current Liabilities:
Due Within One Year:
Bonds and Notes Payable 18,465,000 2,026,898 20,491,898 3,093,013
Compensated Absences 3,133,563 494,189 3,627,752 534,736
Landfill Closure and
Postclosure Care Costs 5,952,949 5,952,949
Due in More Than One Year:
Unearned Revenue and Other 4,647,272 1,258,935 5,906,207 2,008,357
Bonds and Notes Payable 285,400,000 129,133,129 414,533,129 92,105,009
Compensated Absences 19,249,031 992,315 20,241,346 1,255,182
Landfill Closure and
Postclosure Care Costs 13,464,060 13,464,060
Unfunded Other Post Retirement
Benefit Liability 44,645,362 44,645,362
Unfunded Pension Liability 1,576,734 1,576,734
Total Liabilities 427,398,150 162,510,019 589,908,169 109,152,072
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT

NET ASSETS
Investment in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Governmental and Program Funds
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Depreciation
Pension
Grants
Maintenance and Operations
Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2011

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
921,236,876 209,276,568 1,130,513,444 162,795,565

225,459
32,094,257 33,775,896 65,870,153 436,377
7,938,633 7,938,633 21,658,449
3,021,480 3,021,480

533,938

546,461 546,461

5,901,351 5,901,351
(110,023,238) 33,023,663 (76,999,575) 33,530,322
$843,854,356 $292,937,591  $1,136,791,947 $219,180,110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Cash
Investments
Receivables :

Loans

License Fees

Other

Less Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts
Due from Other Governments
Due from Component Units
Due from Fiduciary Funds
Inventories and Prepaid Items
Internal Balances
Restricted Investments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts and Contracts Payable

Accrued Payroll & Related Liabilities

Internal Balances

Due to Fiduciary Funds

Due to Component Units

Unearned Revenue and Other

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted for:
Public Works
Public Safety
Capital Projects
Grants Projects
Urban Services
Assigned to:
General Government
Economic Stabilization
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2011

Other Total
Urban Federal and State ~ Governmental Governmental

General Services Grants Funds Funds
$13,437,880 $2,850 $1,388,772 $5,273,258 $20,102,760
26,819,512 22,313,758 8,633,816 57,767,086
4,602,912 4,602,912
14,940,880 14,940,880
8,370,828 355,961 519 250,293 8,977,601

(3,649,825) (4,602,912) (8,252,737)
(497) 5,256,083 5,255,586
869,153 869,153
306,193 306,193
1,493,737 4,031 369 1,498,137
11,848,604 11,848,604
27,148 27,550,423 27,577,571
62,587,861 22,676,600 6,672,522 53,556,763 145,493,746
5,622,923 692,065 1,402,328 2,005,005 9,722,321
5,056,909 393,460 88,350 2,109 5,540,828
24,989,504 1,166,303 4,115,267 6,544,385 36,815,459
2,086,596 2,086,596
97,501 97,501
546,593 520,116 1,066,709
38,400,026 2,251,828 6,126,061 8,551,499 55,329,414
1,493,737 4,031 369 1,498,137
10,357,176 10,357,176
3,117,402 3,117,402
32,094,257 32,094,257
546,461 546,461
20,420,741 20,420,741
3,931,000 410,544 4,341,544
18,200,738 18,200,738
562,360 (974,484) (412,124)

24,187,835 20,424,772 546,461 45,005,264 90,164,332
$62,587,861 $22,676,600 $6,672,522 $53,556,763 $145,493,746

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Fund balances - total governmental funds $90,164,332

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets 1,443,090,237
Less accumulated depreciation (346,563,388)  1,096,526,849

Certain charges are recognized when debt is issued in the governmental
funds. These items, however, must be capitalized and amortized in the
government wide statements:
Bond issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and deferred
amounts on refundings, net of amortization 2,400,013

Prepayment of Unfunded Police and Fire Pension Liability 35,613,328

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Bonds and Notes payable (303,865,000)
Unearned revenue and other (4,647,272)
Interest payable (3,645,321)
Compensated absences (22,382,594)
Unfunded pension liability and other post retirement benefits (46,222,096) (380,762,283)
Internal Balances due to non-governmental activities funds related to items listed above (87,883)
Net assets of governmental activities $843,854,356

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Other Total
Urban Federal and Governmental Governmental
General Services State Grants Funds Funds
REVENUES
License Fees and Permits $227,486,734 $1,329,718  $ -3 - $228,816,452
Taxes 20,992,845 31,555,264 52,548,109
Charges for Services 24,084,059 8,840 65,325 24,158,224
Fines and Forfeitures 215,493 4,956 220,449
Intergovernmental 2,441,417 23,103,815 8,077,434 33,622,666
Exactions 96,613 96,613
Property Sales 1,985,318 662,554 33,591 2,681,463
Income on Investments (2,381) (47,363) 78,208 101,375 129,839
Other 4,159,715 2,361,656 1,464,998 1,012,144 8,998,513
Total Revenues 281,363,200 35,875,625 24,647,021 9,386,482 351,272,328
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 3,799,796 3,410,634 149,656 22,464 7,382,550
Administrative Services 1,209,504 1,209,504
Chief Information Officer 7,820,811 606,707 23,110 8,450,628
Finance 7,936,589 15,993 1,319,012 260 9,271,854
Public Works 15,358,655 6,300,558 (344,810) 544,593 21,858,996
Public Safety 10,073,947 751,152 35,450 10,860,549
Police 58,208,753 2,986,962 540,830 61,736,545
Fire and Emergency Services 56,571,128 1,968,805 58,539,933
Community Corrections 29,144,338 270,851 29,415,189
Social Services 6,796,943 1,605,111 8,402,054
Environmental Quality 6,407 22,270,780 267,133 (106) 22,544,214
General Services 8,388,656 34,505 8,423,161
Parks and Recreation 16,904,498 440,592 (5,141) 17,339,949
Law and Risk Management 9,607,308 629,899 10,237,207
Outside Agencies 16,935,373 2,308,942 19,244,315
Debt Service:
Principal 20,035,000 20,035,000
Interest 13,601,644 20,798 13,622,442
Other Debt Service 64,625 16,176 80,801
Capital:
Equipment 38,271 6,949,053 1,908,565 7,795,207 16,691,096
Acquisitions and Construction 1,448,662 645,729 10,354,682 19,869,869 32,318,942
Total Expenditures 283,950,908 41,304,450 23,540,920 28,868,651 377,664,929
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (2,587,708) (5,428,825) 1,106,101 (19,482,169) (26,392,601)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of Debt 15,255,000 15,255,000
Issuance of Refunding Debt 4,465,000 4,465,000
Discount on Bonds (189,476) (189,476)
Payment to Refunded Debt Escrow Agent (4,390,779) (4,390,779)
Transfers In 3,531,504 312,153 3,843,657
Transfers Out (323,850) (130,230) (676,125) (2,642,918) (3,773,123)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 3,207,654 (130,230) (676,125) 12,808,980 15,210,279
Net Change in Fund Balances 619,946 (5,559,055) 429,976 (6,673,189) (11,182,322)
Fund Balances July 1, as previously presented 31,520,114 25,983,827 116,485 62,717,592 120,338,018
Adjustment to Opening Fund Balance (Note 2.D.) (7,952,225) (11,039,139) (18,991,364)
Fund Balances - Restated July 1 23,567,889 25,983,827 116,485 51,678,453 101,346,654
Fund Balances, June 30 $24,187,835 $20,424,772 $546,461 $45,005,264 $90,164,332

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Expenditure for capital assets
Less current year depreciation

49,269,767
(46,770,276)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets

(i.e. sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial

resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
Exaction fees

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources for
government funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net assets.

Issuance of debt

Bond issuance costs

Discount on bonds

Loss on refunding

Principal payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Principal payments

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Change in net pension asset

Amortization of current year bond (discounts) premiums

Change in unfunded pension liability and other post
retirement benefits

Change in unfunded other post retirement
benefit liability

Unearned revenue

Change in accrued interest payable

Change in compensated absences

Internal service funds are used by management to charge
self-insurance to individual funds.
The net expense of the internal service funds is
reported within governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

(19,720,000
69,745
189,476
290,000
4,175,000
20,035,000

(13,514,414)
(154,516)

65,345

(12,818,332)
(4,331,000)
490,825

(1,118,896)

($11,182,322)

2,499,491

(12,201,944)

2,122,913

5,039,221

(31,380,988)

(711,922)

$45,815,551

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES

Licenses and Permits:
Employee Withholdings
Business Returns
Individual Returns
Insurance Premiums
Bond Deposits
Regulated License Fee
Franchise Fee
Bank Franchise Fee
Vehicle License
Deed Tax Fee
Contractor Registration Fee
Filing Fee - Planning & Zoning
Animal License
Certificates of Occupancy
Hotel - Motel License Fee

Total Licenses and Permits

Taxes:

Realty Taxes
Personal Taxes
PSC Taxes
Property Tax Discount
Property Tax Commission
Delinquent - Realty & Personal
Motor Vehicle Ad Valorem Tax
County Clerk Com - Motor Vehicle
Supplementary Tax Bills
Omitted Tax

Total Taxes

Charges for Services:
Accident Report Sales
Administrative Collection Fees
Adult Probation Fees
Animal Shelter Collections
Building Permits
Computer Services Fees
Detention Center
Developer Landscape Fees
District Court Jail Fees
Domestic Relations Collection
EMS
Excess Fees And Collections
Golf Course Collections
Lexington Store
Park Land Acquisition
Parking
Parks & Recreation Programs
Rent Or Lease Income

Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Property Sales
Investments

Other Income:
Assistance Repayment
Contributions
Penalties and Interest
School Board Tax Fee
Tourist Commission Fee
Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Miscellaneous
Total Other Income
Total Revenues

BUDGETARY COMPARISON

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$149,240,000 $149,240,000 $153,648,216 $4,408,216
28,448,000 28,448,000 30,209,107 1,761,107
0 0 613 613
20,500,000 20,500,000 21,536,475 1,036,475
2,000 2,000 (16,368) (18,368)
806,180 806,180 886,433 80,253
17,600,000 17,600,000 18,135,391 535,391
1,200,000 1,200,000 1,329,715 129,715
160,000 160,000 186,835 26,835
1,300,000 1,300,000 981,398 (318,602)
325,000 325,000 351,735 26,735
120,000 120,000 118,450 (1,550)
45,000 45,000 46,950 1,950
2,500 2,500 16,845 14,345
125,600 125,600 54,939 (70,661)
219,874,280 219,874,280 227,486,734 7,612,454
17,476,000 17,752,000 17,619,943 (132,057)
1,588,000 1,517,000 1,558,538 41,538
710,000 686,000 866,560 180,560
(324,000) (328,000) (351,357) (23,357)
(811,000) (819,000) (841,909) (22,909)
53,000 53,000 168,369 115,369
1,528,000 1,475,000 1,697,174 222,174
(61,000) (59,000) (57,414) 1,586
8,000 8,000 21,429 13,429
77,000 77,000 311,512 234,512
20,244,000 20,362,000 20,992,845 630,845
5,500 5,500 4,697 (803)
17,500 17,500 13,520 (3,980)
152,000 152,000 142,032 (9,968)
30,000 30,000 20,575 (9,425)
800,000 800,000 898,171 98,171
30,000 30,000 10,958 (19,042)
5,347,850 5,347,850 6,575,254 1,227,404
5,000 5,000 9,780 4,780
140,000 140,000 712,066 572,066
8,000 8,000 5911 (2,089)
5,922,864 5,922,864 6,457,087 534,223
2,500,000 2,500,000 4,619,239 2,119,239
3,813,160 3,813,160 2,705,046 (1,108,114)
24 24
300,000 300,000 204,296 (95,704)
38,100 38,100 37,351 (749)
1,460,460 1,460,460 1,088,113 (372,347)
259,640 259,640 579,939 320,299
20,830,074 20,830,074 24,084,059 3,253,985
203,000 203,000 215,493 12,493
2,211,739 2,304,964 2,441,417 136,453
4,236,300 4,236,300 1,985,318 (2,250,982)
27,000 27,000 (2,381) (29,381)
50,395 50,395
680,409 1,912,192 1,231,783
1,884,776 1,884,776 1,236,536 (648,240)
12,000 12,000 10,000 (2,000)
2,735 2,735
45,000 45,000 (50) (45,050)
296,200 869,077 947,907 78,830
2,237,976 3,491,262 4,159,715 668,453
269,864,369 271,328,880 281,363,200 10,034,320
continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY COMPARISON
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Council Office 2,323,125 2,361,260 2,351,714 (9,546)
Office of the Mayor 1,544,544 1,741,243 1,789,272 48,029
Special Programs 831,033 1,908,007 1,689,204 (218,803)
Board of Elections 1,075,950 1,075,950 1,042,124 (33,826)
Clerk of the Urban County Council 565,405 565,405 559,893 (5,512)
County Attorney 789,622 789,622 789,622 0
Coroner 738,330 710,961 599,443 (111,518)
Property Valuation Administrator 335,400 335,400 335,400 0
Contingency 86,800 36,641 (36,641)
Circuit Judges 324,800 324,800 338,927 14,127
County Court Clerk 119,290 119,290 79,778 (39,512)
Citizens' Advocate 132,730 132,730 96,281 (36,449)
Commonwealth Attorney 72,610 68,110 69,198 1,088
County Judge Executive 18,090 18,090 31,926 13,836
Indirect Cost Allocation (6,905,890) (6,905,890) (5,900,511) 1,005,379
Total General Government 2,051,839 3,281,619 3,872,271 590,652
Administrative Services:
Senior Advisor 154,016 45,892 166,735 120,843
Office of Policy and Budget 513,700 513,800 497,032 (16,768)
Internal Audit Office 712,743 712,743 545,737 (167,006)
Total Administrative Services 1,380,459 1,272,435 1,209,504 (62,931)
Chief Information Officer
Government Communications 1,474,140 1,411,264 1,532,734 121,470
Computer Services 6,337,470 6,527,298 5,828,461 (698,837)
Chief Information Officer 590,014 592,988 459,616 (133,372)
Total Chief Information Officer 8,401,624 8,531,550 7,820,811 (710,739)
Department of Finance:
Community Development 735,290 842,723 635,298 (207,425)
Accounting 1,284,230 1,136,130 1,262,321 126,191
Central Purchasing 578,540 578,540 637,515 58,975
Human Resources 2,535,180 2,533,545 2,280,075 (253,470)
Revenue 2,561,702 2,645,150 2,451,645 (193,505)
Finance Administration 444,840 906,650 669,735 (236,915)
Total Finance 8,139,782 8,642,738 7,936,589 (706,149)
Department of Public Works:
Building Inspection 2,545,100 2,543,820 2,593,519 49,699
Historic Preservation 362,790 360,790 379,682 18,892
Engineering 1,818,020 2,577,991 2,357,478 (220,513)
Planning 1,690,910 1,734,213 1,745,795 11,582
Streets, Roads, and Forestry 4,295,670 4,459,684 4,773,410 313,726
Traffic Engineering 3,402,895 3,274,390 3,432,558 158,168
Public Works Administration 305,175 346,709 295,019 (51,690)
Purchase of Development Rights 139,065 146,850 1,050,984 904,134
Total Public Works 14,559,625 15,444,447 16,628,445 1,183,998
Department of Public Safety:
Police 59,566,470 59,613,332 58,228,313 (1,385,019)
Fire & Emergency Services 54,961,985 55,603,492 56,571,128 967,636
Community Corrections 31,496,918 31,420,444 29,144,338 (2,276,106)
Public Safety Administration 1,546,110 4,326,910 4,507,300 180,390
Code Enforcement 1,670,750 1,668,325 1,700,123 31,798
DEEM/Enhanced 911 3,541,330 3,520,455 3,866,524 346,069
Total Public Safety 152,783,563 156,152,958 154,017,726 (2,135,232)
Department of Social Services:
Youth Services 2,455,722 2,371,375 2,094,256 (277,119)
Family Services 2,786,000 2,886,156 2,386,027 (500,129)
Adult Services 1,389,030 1,388,643 1,362,972 (25,671)
Social Services Administration 1,239,080 1,222,105 957,795 (264,310)
Total Social Services 7,869,832 7,868,279 6,801,050 (1,067,229)
continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY COMPARISON

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES, continued
Dept of Environmental Quality:
Division of Water & Air Quality 316 316
Environmental Quality 1,700 1,817 117
Office of Compliance 4,274 4,274
Total Environmental Quality 0 1,700 6,407 4,707
Department of General Services:
Parks and Recreation 16,953,766 17,048,634 17,025,498 (23,136)
Fleet and Facilities Management 10,818,016 10,078,537 6,893,097 (3,185,440)
General Services Administration 1,841,361 1,779,653 1,495,560 (284,093)
Total General Services 29,613,143 28,906,824 25,414,155 (3,492,669)
Department of Law:
Law 2,085,050 2,083,207 2,070,839 (12,368)
Risk Management 5,173,210 5,252,808 7,536,469 2,283,661
Total Law 7,258,260 7,336,015 9,607,308 2,271,293
Outside Agencies:
Commerce Lexington 508,010 508,010 483,010 (25,000)
Downtown Arts Center 101,450 101,450 101,450 0
Downtown Lexington Corporation 47,450 47,450 47,450 0
World Trade Center 101,050 125,613 125,613 0
Community Development Agencies 329,410 308,859 313,984 5,125
Social Service Agencies 1,969,680 1,970,536 1,970,535 1)
Public Works Agencies 2,120 2,120 (2,120)
Lexington Public Library 13,074,810 13,218,100 13,287,501 69,401
Explorium of Lexington 187,830 187,830 187,830 0
Carnegie Literacy Center 33,300 33,300 33,300 0
Downtown Development Authority 234,700 234,700 234,700 0
Lyric Theatre 150,000 150,000 150,000 0
Total Outside Agencies 16,739,810 16,887,968 16,935,373 47,405
Debt Service:
Principal 21,761,210 19,820,431 20,035,000 214,569
Interest 11,941,053 13,812,087 13,601,644 (210,443)
Other Debt Service 736,721 974,130 64,625 (909,505)
Total Debt Service 34,438,984 34,606,648 33,701,269 (905,379)
Total Expenditures 283,236,921 288,933,181 283,950,908 (4,982,273)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (13,372,552) (17,604,301) (2,587,708) 15,016,593
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 8,638,891 3,531,504 3,531,504
Transfer to State 8,968,559 (8,968,559)
Transfers Out (323,850) (323,850)
Total Other Financing Sources 8,638,891 8,968,559 3,207,654 (5,760,905)
Net Change in Fund Balances (4,733,661) (8,635,742) 619,946 9,255,688
Fund Balance, July 1 4,775,400 4,775,400 31,520,114 26,744,714
Adjustment to Opening Fund Balance (Note 2.D.) (7,952,225) (7,952,225)
Fund Balances - Restated July 1 4,775,400 4,775,400 23,567,889 18,792,489
Fund Balance, June 30 $41,739 ($3,860,342) $24,187,835 $28,048,177

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

REVENUES
Licenses and Permits:
Bank Franchise Fee
Total Licenses and Permits

Taxes:
Realty Taxes
PSC Taxes
Property Tax Discount
Property Tax Commissior
Delinquent - Realty & Personal
Supplementary Tax Bills

Total Taxes

Charges for Services:
Rent Or Lease Income
Dumpster Permit Fees
Total Charges for Services

Property Sales
Fines and Forfeitures
Investments

Other Income:
Penalties And Interest
Commodities
Miscellaneous
Total Other Income
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government:

Contingency
Indirect Cost Allocation
Total General Government

Chief Information Officel
Computer Services
Government Communications
Total Chief Information Officer

Department of Finance:
Human Resources
Finance Administratior

Total Finance

Department of Public Works:
Streets, Roads, and Forestry
Traffic Engineering
Public Works Administratior

Total Public Works

Dept of Environmental Quality
Waste Management
Office of Compliance
Environmental Quality
Total Environmental Quality

Department of General Services:
Parks and Recreation
Fleet and Facilities Management
Total General Services

BUDGETARY COMPARISON
FULL URBAN SERVICES DISTRICT FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
$1,200,000 $1,200,000 $1,329,718 $129,718
1,200,000 1,200,000 1,329,718 129,718
31,238,000 31,896,000 31,811,888 (84,112)
224,000 216,000 381,918 165,918
(531,000) (542,000) (541,979) 21
(350,000) (350,000) (350,000) 0
6,000 6,000 198,912 192,912
10,000 10,000 54,525 44,525
30,597,000 31,236,000 31,555,264 319,264
2,500 2,500
6,340 6,340
0 0 8,840 8,840
1,087,400 1,087,400 662,554 (424,846)
25,000 25,000 4,956 (20,044)
27,000 27,000 (47,363) (74,363)
20,000 20,000 (21,713) (41,713)
2,600,000 2,600,000 2,364,102 (235,898)
9,461 19,267 9,806
2,620,000 2,629,461 2,361,656 (267,805)
35,556,400 36,204,861 35,875,625 (329,236)
(186,190) (186,190) 186,190
3,930,000 3,933,390 3,410,634 (522,756)
3,743,810 3,747,200 3,410,634 (336,566)
83,440 129,970 96,374 (33,596)
542,450 543,400 510,333 (33,067)
625,890 673,370 606,707 (66,663)
14,000 14,000 5,800 (8,200)
9,000 9,000 10,193 1,193
23,000 23,000 15,993 (7,007)
1,412,830 1,412,830 1,408,896 (3,934)
5,030,645 6,525,782 5,031,739 (1,494,043)
72,100 72,100 64,952 (7,148)
6,515,575 8,010,712 6,505,587 (1,505,125)
23,954,530 27,459,344 23,591,216 (3,868,128)
767,040 779,444 777,897 (1,547)
500,170 591,096 353,308 (237,788)
25,221,740 28,829,884 24,722,421 (4,107,463)
526,960 526,960 440,592 (86,368)
73,550 5,011,662 4,972,617 (39,045)
600,510 5,538,622 5,413,209 (125,413)
continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGETARY COMPARISON
FULL URBAN SERVICES DISTRICT FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

EXPENDITURES, continued
Department of Law:
Law
Risk Management
Total Law

Debt Service:
Principal
Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, July 1
Fund Balance, June 30

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget-Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
381,210 381,210 43,655 (337,555)
27,280 27,280 586,244 558,964
408,490 408,490 629,899 221,409
167,664 167,664 (167,664)
167,664 167,664 0 (167,664)
37,306,679 47,398,942 41,304,450 (6,094,492)
(1,750,279) (11,194,081) (5,428,825) 5,765,256
(450,594) (538,517) (130,230) 408,287
(450,594) (538,517) (130,230) 408,287
(2,200,873) (11,732,598) (5,559,055) 6,173,543
9,621,100 9,621,100 25,983,827 16,362,727
$7,420,227 ($2,111,498) $20,424,772 $22,536,270

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds

Total Receivables

Investments, at Fair Value:
Debt Securities:
US Agencies
US Government Obligations
Municipal Obligations
International Bonds
Corporate Debt
Repurchase Agreements
Other Investments:
Equity Mutual Funds
Equity Real Estate
Equity Securities - Domestic
Equity Securities - International
Total Investments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Securities Lending Transactions
Compensated Absenses - Current

Compensated Absenses - Non Current

Due to Other Funds
Payable to Property Owners
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

49

Pension Trust

Funds

Agency
Funds

$10,597,733

$646,817

1,678,325
2,086,596

3,764,921

49,036,345
18,844,535
6,078,886
9,750,028
70,528,466
16,266,296

88,468,594
41,996,320
113,226,819
106,443,951

520,640,240

0

535,002,894

2,354
16,266,296
2,494
2,494
306,193

646,817

646,817

16,579,831

$518,423,063

646,817



LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer
Employer - Administration
Plan Members
Other
Total Contributions

Income on Investments:
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments
Interest
Dividends
Total Gain on Investments
Less Investment Expense
Net Gain on Investments

Income from Securities Lending Activities:
Securities Lending Income
Securities Lending Expenses:
Borrower Rebates
Management Fees
Total Securities Lending Expenses
Net Income on Securities Lending Activities

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments
Administrative Expense
Total Deductions
Net Increase

Net Assets, July 1

Net Assets, June 30

Pension Trust
Funds

$11,465,988
2,950,487
7,896,777
54,292

22,367,544

81,412,404
8,098,509
4,117,231

93,628,144
2,562,182

91,065,962

30,850

(22,250)
21,200

(1,050)
31,900
113,465,406
42,022,938
179,232
42,202,170
71,263,236
447,159,827

__ 9518423063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2011

Lexington Lexington Fayette County Nonmajor
Center Airport Department  Component
Corporation Board of Health Units Total
ASSETS
Cash $815,042 $3,752,687  $2,709,277 $13,611,624 $20,888,630
Investments 4,567,941 4,567,941
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable 825,072 1,689,951 849,488 1,193,387 4,557,898
Other 375,040 156,320 531,360
Less Allowance for Uncollectible Account (14,902) (14,902)
Due from Component Units 172,157 172,157
Due from Primary Government 272,139 272,139
Due from Other Governments 6,532,003 6,532,003
Inventories 117,292 973,929 1,091,221
Prepaid Items 82,057 1,355,630 1,437,687
Pension Assets 680,559 680,559
Restricted Current Assets:
Cash 7,103,918 993 7,104,911
Investments 1,691,629 13,420,176 600,000 15,711,805
Grants Receivable 444,217 444,217
Other 276,445 11,674 288,119
Restricted Non-Current Investments 5,245,999 5,245,999
Bond Issuance Costs-Net of
Accumulated Amortization 2,834,294 2,834,294
Other 142,554 142,554
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable 11,791,982 8,239,905 8,261,494 28,293,381
Depreciable (Net) 47,351,641 139,926,854 5,812,493 33,992,310 227,083,298
Total Assets 68,758,818 177,941,270 9,570,607 72,061,487 328,332,182
LIABILITIES
Accounts, Contracts Payable and
Accrued Liabilities 629,098 1,052,589 1,525,490 4,593,406 7,800,583
Due to Primary Government 576,231 576,231
Due to Component Units 172,157 172,157
Unearned Revenues and Other 165,482 993 166,475
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accounts Payable 699,329 699,329
Interest Payable 741,000 741,000
Non-Current Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Compensated Absences 534,736 534,736
Bonds and Notes Payable 2,600,000 65,000 105,000 323,013 3,093,013
Due in More Than One Year
Compensated Absences 984,913 270,269 1,255,182
Bonds and Notes Payable 22,475,162 61,552,750 625,000 7,452,097 92,105,009
Other 2,008,357 2,008,357
Total Liabilities 25,869,742 66,119,025 3,240,403 13,922,902 109,152,072
NET ASSETS
Investment in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt 34,068,461 89,165,917 5,082,493 34,478,694 162,795,565
Restricted for:
Governmental and Program Funds 54,051 171,408 225,459
Capital Projects 436,377 436,377
Debt Service 5,245,999 16,412,450 21,658,449
Pension 533,938 533,938
Unrestricted 3,574,616 5,807,501 1,193,660 22,954,545 33,530,322
Total Net Assets $42,889,076  $111,822,245 $6,330,204 $58,138,585  $219,180,110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (the Government) have been prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for government accounting and
financial reporting. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as
Statements and Interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting Principles Board Opinions,
and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued on or before November 30,
1989, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, have been selected in
accounting for proprietary funds. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements
and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more significant of these accounting policies are
described below and, where appropriate, subsequent pronouncements will be referenced.

A. Reporting Entity — The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government is a merged city-county government
governed by an elected mayor and a fifteen-member council. The accompanying financial statements present the
Government and its component units (traditionally separate reporting entities), for which the Government is
considered to be financially accountable. The Government (the primary government) is financially accountable if it
appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and (1) is able to impose its will on the
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefit to or impose specific
financial burden on the Government. Additionally, the Government is required to consider other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Government are such that exclusion would cause the
Government’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The financial statements are formatted to allow
the user to clearly distinguish between the primary government and its component units.

1. Blended Component Units — The agencies and organizations listed below are, in substance, the same as the
Government, despite being legally separate from the Government. Therefore, they are reported as part of the
primary government. They have a governing body that is substantially the same as the governing body of the
Government; provide services entirely, or almost entirely, to the Government; or otherwise exclusively, or almost
exclusively, benefit the Government even though they do not provide services directly to the Government.

Governmental Fund Type

The Public Library Corporation (PLC) is an instrumentality of the Government created solely for acquiring,
constructing, equipping, and financing public projects to be used for public library purposes. The board
consists of the Mayor, Vice Mayor, two members appointed by the Lexington Public Library, and one member
appointed by the other four board members.

The Policemen's and Firefighters' Retirement Fund and the City Employees’ Pension Fund are single employer
defined benefit pension plans that cover eligible Government personnel. Members of both boards are
comprised of officials, employees and retirees of the Government.

Proprietary Fund Type
The Public Facilities Corporation (PFC) was created to act as an agency and instrumentality of the Government
in acquiring, developing and financing public improvements and public projects. The Mayor, Vice Mayor and
Commissioner of Finance serve ex officio on the board.
The Public Parking Corporation (PPC) was created to act as an agency and instrumentality of the Government

in the acquisition and financing of public parking projects. The Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioner of
Finance serve ex officio on the board.
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2. Discretely Presented Component Units — The agencies described below are included in the Government's
reporting entity because the Government appoints the governing body and the agencies are fiscally dependent on the
Government. All of these agencies are reported as discretely presented component units since the governing body is
not substantively the same as the governing body of the Government, and they provide services to the citizens of
Fayette County and the surrounding area as opposed to only the primary government. To emphasize that they are
legally separate from the Government, they are reported in a separate column in the financial statements. Fund
information for the component units, if applicable, may be found in their separately issued financial statements.
Requests for separately issued financial statements should be directed to the attention of those respective entities.

Governmental Fund Type

The Lexington Public Library’s (Library) primary mission is to maintain a free public library in Lexington-
Fayette County. The Mayor appoints all seven members of the board with approval by the Urban County
Council and they may be removed by the vote of the Urban County Council. The Government provides
financial support in the form of annual appropriations based upon property tax collections.

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Department of Health (Board of Health) has the general statutory
responsibility of promoting and protecting the health of Fayette County residents. This entity provides critical
services to the citizens of Fayette County on behalf of the Government. The Government appoints the nine
members of the Board of Health.

The Lexington Downtown Development Authority, Inc. (DDA) is a non-profit government corporation created
in fiscal year 2002 to act as an agency of the Government in various economic development, redevelopment
and physical improvement activities associated with downtown. The DDA is governed by a nine-member
board that is appointed by the Mayor and approved by the Urban County Council. The Government provides
in-kind and financial support to the DDA by providing accounting and payroll services and annual
appropriations to help meet operating expenses.

Proprietary Fund Type

The Lexington Transit Authority (LexTran) was organized to provide unification and coordination of a mass
transportation system for Fayette County. This entity provides critical services to the citizens of Fayette
County on behalf of the Government. The business activities and affairs of LexTran are directed by an eight-
member board appointed by the Government. In addition, the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Council
approves the annual budget for LexTran.

The Lexington Convention and Visitors Bureau (Visitors Bureau) was established by the Government for the
purpose of promoting recreational, convention and tourist activity in Fayette County. The Government may
abolish the Visitors Bureau by repealing the ordinance that created it. All nine members of the Visitors Bureau
are appointed by the Mayor and may be removed by a majority vote of the Urban County Council. The
Government has a statutory authority to provide funds for the operation of the Visitors Bureau by imposing a
transient room tax not exceeding four percent of qualified occupancy rental.

The Lexington Center Corporation (LCC) is a non-profit, non-stock corporate agency and instrumentality of
the Government. The purpose of the LCC is to plan, finance, develop and operate a convention, trade show,
performing arts and a sports facility. The thirteen-member board is appointed by the Mayor and approved by
the Urban County Council. The Government has statutory authority to impose a transient room tax, not
exceeding two percent of qualified occupancy rental to provide funds for payment of debt service. As
discussed in Note 5.C., the Government entered into a Lease Agreement that provides for an annual rental to be
paid by the Government if net revenues are not sufficient to pay all debt service costs.

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Airport Board (Airport Board) is responsible for the operation,
maintenance and planning of airport facilities designed to serve the general public of the Central Kentucky
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area. The ten board members are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the Urban County Council. The
Government has entered into a Contract Lease and Option Agreement, discussed in Note 5.D., which requires
an annual rental to be paid by the Government if net revenues are not sufficient to pay all debt service costs.

Parking Authority of Lexington (Parking Authority) was established to centralize all public parking functions
into one entity, to improve parking operations and ultimately to improve the availability of parking in
downtown Lexington. The Parking Authority has a five-member board of commissioners appointed by the
Mayor. The Parking Authority is financially dependent on the Government for both accounting and
administrative services.

The Parking Authority and the DDA are included in the comprehensive audit of the Government and do not
issue separate financial statements. The Parking Authority and the DDA each have one fund for financial
reporting. Complete audited financial statements for the other component units may be obtained from the
Commissioner of Finance of the Government or from the respective agencies.

B. Related Organization — A related organization is an entity for which the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government is not financially accountable. It does not impose will or have a financial benefit or burden
relationship, even if Lexington-Fayettye Urban County Government appoints a voting majority of the related
organization’s governing board.

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Housing Authority (Housing Authority) was created in order to develop and
operate decent, safe and sanitary housing for low income, elderly and disabled residents. The appointment of the
governing board by the Mayor and the scope of public service are not considered an adequate demonstration of
oversight and control. The Government has no responsibility for their budget, debt, financing deficits or fiscal
management. Additionally, the Government does not influence their operations in any respect. Therefore, the
Housing Authority is not considered to be a component unit of the Government.

Explorium of Lexington was established to provide a unique educational opportunity for Fayette County and Central
Kentucky children. The Government has no responsibility for their budget, debt, financing, deficits or fiscal
management. Additionally, the Government does not influence their operations in any respect. Therefore, the
Explorium is not considered to be a component unit of the Government.

C. Jointly Governed Organizations — The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government has some level of
representation in the following organizations. Since the Government does not retain an ongoing financial interest or
an ongoing financial responsibility for these organizations, these are not joint ventures and are not presented in the
financial statements.

The Bluegrass Regional Recycling Center (BRRC) is a non-profit Kentucky corporation whose purpose is to reduce
the volume of solid waste being placed in landfills and engage in activities that promote recycling. Pursuant to an
Interlocal Agreement, the BRRC is operated by the Government and fourteen counties. The Government has no
legal interest in or access to the resources of the BRRC nor does it have any legal responsibility for the deficits or
debts of, or financial support to, the BRRC.

The Valley View Ferry Authority is a legally separate entity that operates and maintains the Ferry on the Kentucky
River at Valley View. The board consists of seven members, two appointed by the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government, three appointed by the Madison County Fiscal Court and two appointed by the Jessamine County
Fiscal Court. The Government is not legally responsible for the Valley View Ferry Authority’s finances. The
Government contributed $14,000 to support the Ferry’s operations in fiscal year 2011.
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D. Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both the government-wide and the fund financial statements. The reporting
model focus is either on the Government as a whole or on major individual funds. The government-wide financial
statements report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Government and its component units. Both
the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-
type. Governmental activities normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type
activities rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the government-wide Statement of Net
Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities are presented on a consolidated basis by column.

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function
(Public Works, Police, Fire and Emergency Services, Parks and Recreation, etc.) are offset by program revenues.
Direct expenses (including depreciation) are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues are directly associated with the function and include charges for services and grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Operating grants include
operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while capital grants are capital-specific.
Occupational license fees applied to gross wages and net profits, other license fees and permits, taxes, interest
income and other revenues not included in program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Non-major
funds (by category) are summarized into a single column.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund (with the exception of the agency fund, which has no
measurement focus) financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities, including long-term assets as
well as long-term debt and obligations, are included in the Statement of Net Assets. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available.
"Available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the Government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the period. Revenues susceptible to accrual are intergovernmental revenues, investment earnings,
emergency medical services (EMS), insurance revenues and license fees. Major revenue sources not susceptible to
accrual include charges for services (other than EMS), fines and forfeitures and miscellaneous revenues. Such
revenues are recorded as revenues when received because they are generally not measurable or available until
actually received. Intergovernmental revenues received for specific purposes or projects are recognized when the
applicable eligibility requirements are met. Revenues received before the eligibility requirements are met are
reported as unearned revenue. Expenditures are recorded when the liability is incurred except: (1) principal and
interest on long-term debt is recorded when due and (2) compensated absences are accounted for as expenditures in
the period used.

Agency fund financial statements report only assets and liabilities and accordingly have no measurement focus.
Agency funds use the accrual basis of accounting to recognize receivables and payables.

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than
the government-wide statements’ governmental column, a reconciliation is presented on the page following each
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statement which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into the
governmental column of the government-wide presentation.

Internal service funds provide services primarily to other funds of the Government and are presented in summary
form as part of the proprietary fund statements. Since the principal users of the internal services are the
Government’s governmental activities, the internal service funds’ financial statements are consolidated into the
governmental column in the government-wide statements. To the extent possible, the costs of these services are
reflected in the appropriate functional activity. The internal service funds also provide services to the proprietary
funds. Therefore, a portion of the net assets of the internal service funds is allocated to business-type activities and
is reported as an adjustment on the Statement of Net Assets of the proprietary funds.

The Government’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements by type (pension and agency).
Since these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party (private parties, pension participants, etc.) and
cannot be used for activities or obligations of the Government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-
wide statements.

The Government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the primary operating unit of the Government and accounts for the revenues and
expenditures not specifically provided for in other funds. Most of the essential governmental services such as
police and fire protection, community services and general administration are reported in this fund.

The Urban Services Fund accounts for the taxes that are assessed on property within designated areas, or
taxing districts, based on the type of services available to property owners. These services include solid waste
collection, streetlights and street cleaning. Property taxes raised from the urban services taxing districts can
only be used to finance these services.

The Federal and State Grants Fund accounts for the receipts of intergovernmental funds that are restricted for
operational and capital use of a particular function.

The Government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Sanitary Sewer System Fund accounts for the construction activities, operation and maintenance and the
payment of principal and interest for the bond issues of the Government’s sanitary sewer system.

The Public Facilities Corporation Fund accounts for the acquisition, construction and operation of
government-owned facilities.

The Public Parking Corporation Fund accounts for the construction and operation of government-owned
parking facilities.

The Landfill Fund accounts for the operations and closure and postclosure care costs of the Government’s
landfill.

Additionally, the Government reports the following fund types:
Internal Service Funds account for the Government’s insurance programs for employee health, dental and
vision care insurance benefits and for workers’ compensation, vehicle liability and physical damage, general
liability and property damage coverage.
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other governments,

or on behalf of other funds within the Government. Trust funds account for assets held by the Government
under the terms of a formal trust agreement. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the
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Government holds on behalf of others as their agent, are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. Fiduciary funds are as follows:

Pension Trust Funds account for the revenues received, expenses incurred and the net assets available for
retirement benefits of the Policemen's and Firefighters' Retirement Fund and the City Employees' Pension
Fund.

Agency Funds account for assets held by the Government for others in an agency capacity. These are
funds collected from juvenile and adult offenders and disbursed to victims in accordance with court
decrees, funds collected from and disbursed for inmates who are on work release, funds collected from
special assessments for payment of debt service for neighborhood capital projects and funds collected
from noncustodial parents for child support and disbursed to the custodial parents.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the Government’s sewer, landfill and public
facilities and parking functions and various other functions of the Government. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or
privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include occupational license fees on wages and net profits, taxes and interest income.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Government’s enterprise and internal service
funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise and internal service funds include the
cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Government’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Budgetary Control and Encumbrances

Budget Policy — The Urban County Council annually approves the budget ordinance for all operating funds of the
Government, which includes governmental, proprietary, fiduciary, and agency funds. Federal and State Grant funds
and capital projects funds adopt project-length budgets. Additional special revenue funds which are not budgeted
include the debt service fund, the Industrial Revenue Bond Fund, Police Confiscated Funds and the Public Safety
Fund. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles except that budgetary
basis expenditures include purchase orders and contracts (encumbrances). Budgetary control is maintained at the
division level, e.g. Division of Police, Division of Parks and Recreation, etc. The Mayor may authorize transfers
within a division; however, the Urban County Council must approve by ordinance any other amendments to the
budget. All budgeted amounts presented in the financial statements reflect the original budget and the amended
budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).
Appropriations lapse at year-end; however, uncompleted capital projects may be re-appropriated at the beginning of
each fiscal year. The Council made several supplemental budgetary appropriations throughout fiscal year 2011. The
net effect of these supplemental appropriations was an increase of $2,751,617 in the General Fund and an increase of
$9,906,072 in the Urban Services Fund, which included re-appropriations of encumbrances from prior years and
various waste management and street light reappropriations, respectively.

Encumbrances — Encumbrance accounting is utilized during the year to facilitate effective budgetary control.
Encumbrances are treated as budgeted expenditures in the year of incurrence of the commitment to purchase.
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Budgetary comparisons presented in this report are on this budgetary basis of accounting. Adjustments necessary to
convert from the budgetary basis to GAAP are provided on the face of the budgetary comparison statements.

In governmental funds, encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent commitments related to unperformed
contracts for goods or services. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriations, is
utilized in the governmental funds. Encumbrances are not treated as expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. Outstanding encumbrances for the governmental funds at
June 30, 2011 were as follows:

General Fund $914,922
Urban Service Fund 1,791,376
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 6,398,638

Encumbrances are not recorded in the financial statements for proprietary fund types and Pension Trust Funds.
However, the purchase orders outstanding at June 30, 2011 for these funds are as follows:

Sanitary Sewer System $11,761,105
Public Parking Corporation 9,260
Landfill 401,490
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 3,359,758

F.  Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

Cash and Investments — Management has adopted written policies and procedures for cash and investment
management. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and cash with fiscal agents. Cash
balances of most Government funds are pooled and invested. Interest earned from investments purchased with
pooled cash is allocated to each of the funds based on the fund's average monthly cash balance, except as required
by ordinance for various restricted reserves. Funds that incur a negative balance in pooled cash and investments
during the year are not allocated interest. The Government has adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. This statement requires that
investments in interest-earning investment contracts, external investment pools, open-end mutual funds and debt and
equity securities be reported at fair value. Investments in the Pension Trust Funds and investments with a maturity
of more than one year at the time of purchase are stated at fair value. Fair value for securities traded on a national
exchange is determined by the last reported sales price. All other investments are stated at cost.

Receivables — Receivables are amounts due representing revenues earned or accrued in the current period.
Allowances for uncollectible loans in the Federal and State Grants Fund fully reserve loan balances due to the nature
of the individual projects and terms of the loans. Accounts receivable from other governments include amounts due
from grantors for grants for specific programs and capital projects. The majority of other receivables in the General
Fund are for taxpayer-assessed revenues that are collected 30 days after year end. Franchise fee revenues are
recognized if collected within 60 days after year end.

Property taxes for fiscal year 2011 were levied on September 14, 2010 on the assessed valuation of property located
in Fayette County as of the preceding January 1, the lien date.
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The due date and collection periods for all taxes exclusive of vehicle taxes are as follows:

Description Per KRS 134.020

Due date for payment of taxes Upon receipt

2% discount period By November 1

Face value amount payment dates November 2 to December 31
Delinquent date, 5% penalty January 1 to January 31
10% penalty plus 10% add on fee date April 15"

Per Kentucky statute, the county sheriffs are responsible for collection of property taxes. Vehicle taxes, collected by
the County Clerk of Fayette County, are due and collected in the birth month of the vehicle's licensee. During the
year, property tax revenues are recognized when cash is received. At year-end, a receivable is recorded for
delinquent property taxes but revenues are only recognized for taxes collected within 60 days of the close of the
fiscal year.

Allowance for Uncollectable Amounts — An allowance for Uncollectable Amounts relates to the projected
uncollectable balance of the revenues earned or accrued that have been included in Accounts Receivable at year end.
An allowance is taken on receivable balances based on historical bad debt experience related to the nature of each
receivable balance.

Interfund Receivables/Payables — During the course of its operations, the Government has numerous transactions
between funds to finance operations, provide services, construct assets and service debt. To the extent that certain
transactions between funds had not been paid or received as of June 30, 2011, balances of interfund amounts
receivable or payable have been recorded as “internal balances”. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances”.

Inventories and Prepaid Items — Fuel and vehicle parts inventories are stated at average cost. Other inventories are
valued using the first-in, first-out method. The costs of inventory items are recognized as expenditures or expenses
when used.

Payments made to vendors for goods and services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2011 are recorded in
assets as prepaid items.

In the governmental fund type financial statements, reported inventories and prepaid items are equally offset in the
fund balance as nonspendable, which indicates that they do not constitute “available spendable resources” even
though they are a component of total assets.

Restricted Assets — Restricted assets are liquid assets that have third-party (statutory, bond covenant, or granting
agency) limitations on their use. Certain proceeds of revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their
payment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet and statement of net assets since their use is limited
by applicable bond indentures. The other restricted assets are required to be maintained until the related bonds
mature. The Construction and Capital Acquisitions account is used to report proceeds of general obligation and
revenue bonds and notes that are restricted for use in construction and capital acquisitions. The Government uses
the Construction and Capital Acquisitions assets for their intended purpose before using unrestricted assets. The
Maintenance and Operations account represents the resources set aside to operate, maintain and insure the Sanitary
Sewer System for three full months. The Depreciation account represents the resources set aside to provide
reasonable reserves for renewals, replacements, improvements, extensions, extraordinary major repairs and
contingencies in the operation of the Sanitary Sewer System. The Debt Service account is used to report resources
set aside to prevent a default in payment of principal or interest on the bonds. The Sinking Fund account represents
the resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months.
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The balances of the restricted asset’s accounts in the governmental funds are as follows:

Various Purpose general obligation notes account $26,760,218
Equipment general obligation notes account 790,205
Federal Grants and Contracts 27,148

Total restricted assets $27,577,571

The balances of the restricted asset’s accounts in the enterprise funds are as follows:

Sanitary sewer system maintenance and operations account $5,854,664
Sanitary sewer revenue bond sinking fund account 5,235,067
Sanitary sewer revenue bonds construction account 3,626,461
Sanitary sewer depreciation account 3,432,225
Sanitary sewer debt service reserve account 8,612,473

Total restricted assets $26,760,890

Unrestricted Assets — Unrestricted assets represent unrestricted liquid assets. While Government management may
have categorized and segmented portions for various purposes, the Urban County Council has the unrestricted
authority to revisit or alter these management decisions.

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure (e.g. roads, bridges,
traffic signals and similar items) and intangible assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Expenditures for items having a useful life greater
than one year and having a cost greater than $5,000 for equipment and $25,000 for land, buildings and related
improvements are capitalized. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value and recorded as donations at the date
received. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the Government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Buildings and improvements 10-40 years
Land improvements 10-50 years
Public domain infrastructure 10-50 years
Sanitary Sewer System infrastructure 50 years
Vehicles and equipment 5-25 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5-7 years
Intangibles 3-5 years

Construction in progress (CIP) represents construction projects for capital assets that have not yet been placed in
service. Developments in progress (DIP) represent fees accrued on urban development projects currently underway
that have not yet been completed, where settlement of the fees by the respective developer is expected to be made
through contributing infrastructure type assets (e.g. roads, sewer systems, etc.) to the Government. CIP and DIP are
not depreciated until the projects are complete and placed in service.

Compensated Absences — Compensated absences include accumulated unpaid vacation, sick and holiday leave.
Government employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts in accordance with administrative
policy. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated holiday and vacation days.
Employees receive annual compensation for accumulated unused sick leave in excess of 600 hours (or 840 hours for
firefighters). Employees are reimbursed for all accumulated unused sick leave upon retirement. All accumulated
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leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In
governmental funds, compensated absences are not payable with available and spendable resources, and, therefore,
are only recorded when they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Long-Term Obligations — In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund Statement of Net Assets. The discounts, premiums and issuance costs related to bonds and notes
issued are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond or note using the straight-line method. Bonds and notes
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are reported as deferred
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported as other financing
uses. Issuances costs are reported as debt service expenditures.

The difference between the re-acquisition price (new debt) and the net carrying value of the old debt on refunded
debt of the proprietary funds, is amortized as a component of interest expense over the life of the old or new bonds,
whichever is shorter, using the straight-line method. The deferred amount is offset against the new liability.

Long-term liabilities include the following:
*  Principal outstanding on general obligation bonds, general obligation notes and revenue bonds.

e Unfunded Post-Retirement Health Benefits, which is the net retirement health benefit obligation for the
Policemen’s and Firefighters’ Retirement Fund and the City Employees’ Pension Fund.

e Landfill closure and postclosure care liability, which is the estimated total current cost to place a final cover on
the Government’s landfill sites and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions for thirty years
after closure.

G. Net Assets/Fund Balances

The government-wide and proprietary financial statements utilize a net asset presentation. Net assets are
categorized as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt — is intended to reflect the portion of net assets associated with
capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation), less outstanding capital assets related debt, net of unspent
bond proceeds.

Restricted Net Assets — represents amounts that are restricted to specific purposes when constraints placed on
the use of resources are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws/regulations of
other governments or constitutional provisions, or (b) resources resulting from enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets — This category represents net assets not appropriated for expenditures or legally
segregated for a specific future use.

In the balance sheet of governmental funds the difference between the assets and liabilities of governmental funds is
reported as fund balance. During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Government adopted GASB Statement No. 54,
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. Under this new pronouncement the
Government's fund balance is divided into the following classifications, as applicable:
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H.

Nonspendable — These resources include amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable in
form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The Government’s nonspendable funds
consisted of prepaid expenses and inventories as of June 30, 2011.

Restricted — Restricted amounts represent resources that are constrained for a specific purpose by external
parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The Government had restricted funds for various
projects: public works, public safety, capital projects, grants, and urban services as of June 30, 2011.

Committed — Committed amounts are constrained for a specific purpose by the Government using its highest
level of decision-making authority. For resources to be considered committed, the Urban County Council
issues an ordinance that can only be changed with another corresponding ordinance. The Government had no
committed funds as of June 30, 2011.

Assigned — Assigned amounts represent resources that the Government intends to use for a specific purpose,
but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Amounts may be assigned by the
Urban County Council or by a Government official given authority to assign amounts. The Government has
assigned funds for general government and economic stabilization as of June 30, 2011.

The Government developed and adopted an Unrestricted General Fund Balance (“Economic Stabilization
Fund” or “Economic Contingency Fund”) Policy on December 5, 1996. It is the Government’s policy to:

e  Maintain an Economic Contigency Fund balance of not less than $4,000,000,

e Generate additional revenues for the Economic Contingency Fund by adding a minimum of 5% of
actual General Fund revenues for the previous fiscal year and accruing interest earned from monies in
the fund,

e Utilize the Economic Contingency Fund for unanticipated emergencies consistent with the policy.
The Economic Contingency Fund balance may only be used if all of the following conditions exist:

e An unanticipated emergency of an extreme nature that cannot be remedied by reasonable budget
changes and/or the use of budgeted ending fund balance.

e The Government has made a complete and rational analysis, with justifying evidence that the
Economic Contingency Fund can be maintained in the future.

Unassigned — Unassigned amounts represent resources that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted,
committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund. The Government reports all amounts
that meet the unrestricted General Fund Policy described below as unassigned.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.
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I.  Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are billed and collected within the same
fiscal year in which the taxes are levied. Emergency medical service fees are billed and collected by Software
Development, Inc. (SDI) as an agent for the Government. Cash collected by SDI is remitted daily to the
Government. The Government records all revenues (net of an allowance for doubtful accounts) billed through the
end of the fiscal year by SDI.

The majority of the sanitary sewer user fees and the landfill user fees are billed and collected by the Kentucky
American Water Company (KAWC) as an agent for the Government. Cash collected by the KAWC is remitted to
the Government daily. All revenues (net of an allowance for doubtful accounts) billed by KAWC are recorded by
the Government.

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred except for the following permitted by
generally accepted accounting principles:

General obligation long-term debt principal and interest are reported when due.

Inventory costs are reported in the period when inventory items are consumed, rather than when purchased.

Compensated absences are recorded when payable rather than when earned.
Interfund transactions that would be treated as revenues or expenditures/expenses if they involved organizations
external to the Government are similarly treated when involving funds of the Government. Transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to
another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed fund. Transfers from funds receiving revenues to funds through which the
resources are to be expended and operating subsidies are classified as transfers. Transfers between governmental
and proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide columnar presentation.
NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Compliance with Finance Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

The Government has no material violations of finance related legal and contractual provisions.

B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations - The following divisions, in funds that have budgets adopted
annually, had excess expenditures over appropriations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011:
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Excess
Expenditures

General Fund:

Accounting $126,191
Building Inspection 49,699
Central Purchasing 58,975
Circuit Judges 14,127
Code Enforcement 31,798
Commonwealth Attorney 1,088
County Judge Executive 13,836
DEEM/Enhanced 911 346,069
Division of Water & Air Quality 316
Environmental Quality 117
Fire & Emergency Services 967,636
Government Communications 121,470
Historic Preservation 18,892
Office of Compliance 4,274
Office of the Mayor 48,029
Planning 11,582
Principal 214,569
Public Safety Administration 180,390
Purchase of Development Rights 904,134
Risk Management 2,283,661
Senior Advisor 120,843
Streets, Roads, and Forestry 313,726
Traffic Engineering 158,168

Urban Services Fund:

Finance Administration $1,193
Risk Management 558,964

Excess expenditures over appropriations were funded by available fund balances.

C. Fund Deficits

Capital Projects Funds — The Storm Water Bond Projects, Purchase of Development Rights Fund, and the Roads,
Parks, Open Spaces, Storm Water Exactions Fund had a deficit fund balance of $116,562, $357,604 and $500,318
respectfully. The deficit is a result of incurring costs before the collection of fees and the issuance of bonds that will
fund this project.

D. Prior Period Adjustments

Primary Government

Government wide net assets were increased by $225,143 as a result of adjustments to compensated absences, capital
assets, investments, and bonds payable. Business-type net assets were decreased by $5.2 million as a result of
adjustments to capital assets.
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The compensated absences liability was increased by $171,425 for police accrued sick time exceeding 600 hours at
June 30, 2010. In prior years, this estimate was calculated based on accrued sick time exceeding 840 hours. This
error affects fiscal years 2010 and prior. The adjustment is reflected in the Governmental Statement of Activities.
Capital assets for Governmental Activities were increased by $348,793 in fiscal year 2011 for amounts incorrectly
recorded as expenditures in the prior year.

The costs associated with the Eastern State Bond, Series 2009C, were incorrectly recorded as obligations of the
Government in fiscal year 2009. A prior period adjustment of $47,775 has been recorded in the Government-wide
Statement of Activities resulting from the decrease of bonds payable of $8,000,000 and associated investment
balances for unspent proceeds of $7,952,225. A prior period adjustment of $7,952,225 has been made to the General
fund financial statements to restate the beginning fund balance and net assets to derecognize the investment balance
as of June 30, 2010.

Revenue was incorrectly recognized in prior years related to the Exactions program. A prior period adjustment has
been made to the Roads, Parks, Open Space, Storm Water Exactions Fund statement of $11,039,139 to derecognize
receivable amounts representing credits for developments currently in progress, where settlement of the fees by the
respective developer is expected to be made through contributing infrastructure type assets.

Capital assets for Business-type Activities were decreased by $882,298. This amount was incorrectly capitalized as
construction in progess in prior years in the Sanitary Sewer System Fund but should have been expensed. Of this
amount, $826,557 was expensed in fiscal year 2010.

Capital assets for Business-type Activities were decreased by $4,332,155. This amount was incorrectly capitalized

as construction in progess in prior years in the Landfill Fund but should have been expensed. All of the expenses
were incurred prior to fiscal year 2010.

Component Units

An error resulting in an overstatement of previously reported state grants receivable was discovered during the
current year on the Lexington Transit Authority statement of net assets. This adjustment resulted in a decrease of
$306,669 to unrestricted equity and state grants receivable as of July 1, 2009. There were no effects on changes in
net assets for fiscal years 2010 or 2011.

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash, Investments, and Securities Lending

Primary Government

The Government’s bank balances at June 30, 2011 are entirely insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) and/or collateralized with a letter of credit or securities held by the Government’s agent in the Government’s
name. In accordance with Kentucky Revised Statute (KRS) 66.480 and the Government’s investment policy, the
Government is allowed to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies and instrumentalities,
repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, obligations of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and
its agencies and instrumentalities, shares of mutual funds or interest bearing deposits of insured national or state
banks. In addition, the Pension Trust Funds are allowed to invest in equity securities, corporate bonds and
international stocks listed as American Depository Receipts (ADR).
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Investments of the Government as of June 30, 2011 are summarized and categorized in the following table:
Investment Maturities (in years)

[nvestment Type Fair Value Less Than 1Year 1to5 6t0 10 More Than 10
Money Market Mutual Funds $142,764,808 $142,764808  $ - $ -8 -
Certificates of Deposit 24,271,814 12,238,814 7,317,000 2,736,000 1,980,000
U.S. Government Agency Obligations 3,000,584 584 3,000,000
Repurchase Agreements 5,687,720 5,687,720
Total Investments $175,724,926 $160,691,926 $10,317,000 $2,736,000 $1,980,000

Interest Rate Risk — the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. While
the Government has adopted an investment policy that recommends controlling interest rate risk through maturity
diversification, the policy does not place any formal limits of investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
Investments are made under the “prudent person rule” outlined in the Government’s investment policy. This rule is
defined to mean “investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which
persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital as well as the probable income to be
derived.” The prudent investor standard shall be applied in the context of managing the overall portfolio.

In accordance with its investment policy, the Government is permitted to invest in the following:

1. Obligations of the United States and of its agencies and instrumentalities, including obligations subject
to repurchase agreements, provided that delivery of these obligations subject to repurchase agreements
is taken either directly or through an authorized custodian.

2. Obligations and contracts for future delivery or purchase of obligations backed by the full faith and
credit of the United States or a United States government agency.

3. Obligations of any corporation of the United States government.

4. Certificates of deposit issued by or other interest-bearing accounts of any bank or savings and loan
institution which are insured by the FDIC or similar entity or which are collateralized, to the extent
uninsured.

5. Bankers’ acceptances for banks rated in one (1) of the three (3) highest categories by a nationally
recognized rating agency.

6. Commercial paper rated in the highest category by a nationally recognized rating agency.

7. Bonds or certificates of indebtedness of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and of it agencies and
instrumentalities.

8. Securities issued by a state or local government, or any instrumentality or agency thereof, in the United
States, and rated in one (1) of the three (3) highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency.

9. Shares of mutual funds, each of which shall have the following characteristics:

a. The Mutual Fund shall be an open-end diversified investment company registered under the
Federal Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended

b. The management company of the investment company shall have been in operation for at
least five (5) years; and

c. All of the securities in the mutual fund shall be eligible investments under this section.

Concentration of Credit Risk — the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Government’s investment in a
single issuer. Government securities and investments in mutual funds are excluded from this risk. In order to
reduce the Credit risk, the investments held by a financial institution in the Government’s name should be limited to
no more than 35% of the total investments, excluding that held in a Money Market Mutual fund.
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Pension Trust Funds

The Government’s Pension Trust Funds are made up of the Policemen’s and Firefighters’ Retirement Fund (PFRF)
and the City Employee’s Pension Fund (CEPF). The disclosures below are separate as the pension funds have
different investment policies and different objectives. The PFRF is an active growing fund, while the City
Employee’s Pension Fund has been closed since 1983.
Investments of the PFRF as of June 30, 2011 are summarized and categorized in the following table:

Policemen's and Firefighters' Retirement Fund

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1to5 61010 More Than 10
Debt Securities

US Agencies $41,089501  $ - $ - $25,747,423 $15,342,078
US Government Obligations 15,706,490 449,486 5,379,252 9,877,753
Municipal Obligations 6,078,886 2,554,290 2,861,115 663,481
International Bonds 9,160,166 4,257,830 3,802,374 1,099,962
Corporate Debt 67,665,397 4,598,415 26,220,625 25,745,895 11,100,461
Repurchase Agreements 16,266,296 16,266,296

$155,966,736 $21,314,197 $38,411,997 $58,156,807 $38,083,735

Other Investments

Equity Mutual Funds $88,468,594
Equity Real Estate 41,996,320
Equity Securities - Domestic 101,799,344
Equity Securities - International 105,628,400
__ 5493850304

The PFRF has contracted with external investment managers to manage all of the funds. The board has adopted an
investment policy that recommends the following target allocations based on asset class:

Target

Asset Class Allocation
US Large Cap Value Equities 12.5%
US Large Cap Growth Equities 12.5%
US Small Cap Value Equities 15.0%
International Growth Equities 10.0%
International Value Equities 10.0%
Real Estate 10.0%
Total Equities 70.0%
US Broad Market Fixed Income 20.0%
US High Yield Fixed Income 10.0%
Total Fixed Income 30.0%
Total Plan 100.0%
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Interest Rate Risk — the PFRF does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means
of managing its exposure to fair market losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — the PFRF investment policy manages credit risk by the limitation of certain investments within the
above asset classes. For US Equity asset classes up to 10% of each US Small Cap Value, 15% of US Large Cap
Growth, and 20% of US Large Cap Value portfolio’s current market value may be invested in ADR's. The US Broad
Market Fixed Income manager’s debt securities must have a minimum quality rating of Baa/BBB or above, while
the overall portfolio rating must be A+ or above. The US High Yield Fixed Income manager’s portfolio may have,
on average, no more than 20% of the portfolio in debt securities with a quality rating of CCC/Caa and below, while
the overall portfolio rating should be B or above.

Debt Securities by Investment Type

us
Government Municipal International Corporate
US Agencies  Obligations Obligations Bonds Debt Total %

Quality Ratings

AAA $13,005,888  $10,033,871 $2,212,057  $2,505,641 $2,154,538  $29,911,995 21%
AA 930,888 2,549,918 682,459 1,268,655 5,431,920 4%
A 653,430 614,196 11,861,503 13,129,129 9%
BBB 899,306 12,967,238 13,866,544 10%
BB 2,343,738 16,661,166 19,004,904 14%
B 1,766,176 18,414,632 20,180,808 14%
Cccc 2,455,655 2,455,655 2%
NR 27,152,725 5,672,619 663,481 348,650 1,882,010 35,719,485 26%
Fair Value $ 41,089,501 $ 15,706,490 $ 6,078,886 $ 9,160,166 $ 67,665397  $139,700,440 100%

Concentration of Credit Risk — Government securities and investments in mutual funds are excluded from this risk.
The PFRF places a restriction on equity managers that at the time of purchase they may not invest in more than 5%
of the outstanding securities of one issuer nor invest more than 5% of their portfolios’ assets in the outstanding
securities with one issuer. The US Broad Market Fixed Income manager may not invest more than 5% of the
outstanding securities with one issuer nor invest more than 5% of the portfolio's assets in the outstanding securities
of one issuer, except for Treasury and Agency securities.  The US High Yield Fixed Income manager may not
invest more than the greater of 1.5 times the index weight or 20% of the portfolio in any one industry. The US High
Yield Fixed Income manager may not invest more than 5% of the Plan’s assets in the outstanding securities of any
one issuer.

Securities Lending — the PFRF has a securities lending agreement with J.P. Morgan, a national banking association
(the agent). J.P. Morgan, also the custodian for the retirement fund, acts as an agent to lend securities held in the
retirement fund portfolios.

Per the agreement, the retirement fund has authorized the lending of domestic bonds and securities in return for
collateral. Collateral for loaned securities may be in the form of cash, securities issued or guaranteed by the United
States Government or its agencies or irrevocable letters of credit. The broker/dealer collateralizes their borrowing to
102% of the security value, plus accrued interest. If the broker/dealer fails to return the security upon request, then
the agent will utilize the collateral to replace the security loaned. The Government does not have the ability to
pledge or sell collateral securities without a borrower default.

Investment of the cash collateral may be in commercial paper that is rated in the highest category of at least two
nationally recognized security agencies, short-term obligations of banks, short-term obligations of the United States
Government or its agencies, repurchase agreements, funding agreements issued by insurance companies rated “A”
or higher by A. M. Best & Company or money market mutual funds. The investments of the collateral do not
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generally match the maturities of the securities lending arrangements themselves; they are typically very short-term
in nature and mostly invested in overnight repurchase agreements.

The agent agrees to indemnify the retirement fund for losses resulting directly or indirectly from the failure of the
borrower to return the loaned securities in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement, limited to an
indemnification amount equal to the difference between the market value of the loaned securities and the value of
the collateral. There are no restrictions in the agreement that limit the amount of securities that can be lent at one
time or to one borrower.

As of June 30, 2011, the securities loaned in the portfolio did not have credit risk, and the fair value of securities on
loan is $16,266,296.

Investments of the CEPF as of June 30, 2011 are summarized and categorized in the following table:

City Employees Pension Fund

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1to5 61010 More Than 10
Debt Securities
US Agencies $7,946,844 $ - $409,101 $2,591,852 $4,945,891
US Government Obligations 3,138,046 1,709,885 524,468 903,693
International Bonds 589,862 15,768 255,220 157,680 161,194
Corporate Debt 2,863,068 271,417 1,061,296 1,123,725 406,630
14,537,820 $287,185 $3,435,502 $4,397,725 $6,417,408

Other Investments

Equity Securities - Domestic 11,427,475
Equity Securities - International 815,551
___S26.780845

The CEPF has contracted with external investment managers to manage all of the funds. The board has adopted an
investment policy that recommends the following target allocations based on asset class:

Asset Class Target Allocation
US Equities 40%
US Broad Market Fixed Income 60%

Total Plan 100%

Interest Rate Risk — the CEPF does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means
of managing its exposure to fair market losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — the CEPF investment policy limits its equity manager to investments in ADR’s to 10% of the equity
portfolio’s current market value. The fixed income manager's debt securities must have a minimum quality rating of
Baa/BBB or above, while the overall fixed income portfolio rating must be A+ or above. No more than 10% of the
equity portfolio can be of quality rating Baa/BBB.
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Debt Securities by Investment Type

us
Government  International ~ Corporate

US Agencies Obligations Bonds Debt Total %
Quality Ratings
AAA $7,946,844  $3,138,046 $ - $285,817 $11,370,707 78%
AA 91,575 245,755 337,330 2%
A 281,642 1,407,699 1,689,341 12%
BBB 216,645 908,870 1,125,515 8%
NR 14,927 14,927 0%

$7,946,844  $3,138,046 $589,862  $2,863,068 $14,537,820 100%

Concentration of Credit Risk — the CEPF investment policy places a restriction on equity managers that at the time
of purchase, managers may not invest in more than 5% of the outstanding securities of one issuer nor invest more
than 5% of their portfolios’ assets in the outstanding securities with one issuer. The fixed income manager may not
invest in more than 5% of the outstanding securities of one issuer nor invest more than 5% of the fixed income
portfolio assets in the outstanding securities of one issuer, except for Treasury and Agency securities.

For complete information on custodial credit risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk, refer
to the individual reports on each component unit. Summarized investment information for the component units is
included in the table below:

Reported
Amount/
Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government
Agency Obligations $3,068,169
Investments not subject to categorization:
Certificates of Deposit 18,588,117
Money Market Funds 3,869,459
Total Investments $25,525,745

As of June 30, 2011, LCC had $451,190 and $1,430,364 in deposits and investments, respectively that were
uninsured and uncollateralized.
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B.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land

Purchase of Development Rights
Intangibles

Construction in Progress
Developments in Progress *

Depreciable Assets:

Buildings *
Intangibles
Vehicles, Equipment and Furniture
Land and Leasehold Improvements
Infrastructure
Sewer Lines

Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Vehicles, Equipment and Furniture
Land and Leasehold Improvements
Infrastructure
Sewer Lines
Intangibles

Total accumulated depreciation

Business-type Activities:

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land
Construction in Progress *
Developments in Progress

Depreciable Assets:

Buildings
Vehicles, Equipment and Furniture

Land and Leasehold Improvements *

Infrastructure
Sewer Lines
Sewer Plants
Intangibles
Totals at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Vehicles, Equipment and Furniture
Land and Leasehold Improvements
Infrastructure
Sewer Lines
Sewer Plants
Intangibles
Total accumulated depreciation

Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance, Restated * Increases Decreases Balance
$53,356,164 $3,100,299 ($139,680) $56,316,783
62,877,498 5,060,540 67,938,038
1,771,000 1,136,361 2,907,361
55,119,802 13,295,191 (38,947,248) 29,467,745
11,039,139 2,122,913 13,162,052
132,601,531 8,947,183 141,548,714
5,879,459 2,184,144 8,063,603
95,228,361 14,812,840 (6,294,364) 103,746,837
16,193,582 6,055,899 22,249,481
973,766,947 18,319,152 992,086,099
2,136,673 3,466,851 5,603,524
1,409,970,156 78,501,373 (45,381,292) 1,443,090,237
(36,848,108) (4,076,857) (40,924,965)
(67,007,771) (7,985,637) 6,070,655 (68,922,753)
(9,954,474) (1,653,861) (11,608,335)
(188,456,797) (32,104,880) (220,561,677)
(74,043) (80,394) (154,437)
(3,522,574) (868,647) (4,391,221)
(305,863,767) (46,770,276) 6,070,655 (346,563,388)
1,104,106,389 31,731,097 (39,310,637) 1,096,526,849
47,206,488 735,368 47,941,856
18,109,529 2,169,468 (17,212,562) 3,066,435
3,203,570 862,573 4,066,143
130,357,743 233,015 130,590,758
12,627,176 98,965 (11,292) 12,714,849
48,048,207 48,048,207
5,114,639 1,514,929 6,629,568
153,021,195 16,866,209 (1,222,483) 168,664,921
163,269,363 163,269,363
2,021,508 15,104 2,036,612
582,979,418 22,495,631 (18,446,337) 587,028,712
(64,506,448) (4,559,251) (69,065,699)
(9,674,809) (693,729) 11,290 (10,357,248)
(32,017,428) (1,903,792) (33,921,220)
(158,294) (106,463) (264,757)
(49,981,439) (3,163,026) (53,144,465)
(77,712,338) (3,199,082) (80,911,420)
(1,808,567) (197,566) (2,006,133)
(235,859,323) (13,822,909) 11,290 (249,670,942)
$347,120,095 $8,672,722 ($18,435,047) $337,357,770

*Restated beginning balance due to prior period adjustment and reclassification.
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General Government
Administrative Services
Chief Information Office
Finance
Public Works
Public Safety
Environmental Quality
Police

Fire and Emergency Services

Law

Community Corrections
Social Services

General Services

Parks and Recreation

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Sanitary Sewers
Public Facilities
Public Parking
Landfill
Right of Way
Extended School Program
Prisoners' Account System
Enhanced 911
Stormwater

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land
Construction in Progress
Other
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings and Improvements

Vehicles, Equipment and Furniture *
Land and Leasehold Improvements *

Intangibles *
Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Component unit activities
capital assets, net

$618,637
138,507
1,088,057
479,904
32,915,520
248,901
1,941,223
1,394,544
1,684,730
1,965
1,622,159
279,329
2,962,629
1,394,172

46,770,276

7,214,960
5,173,635
306,725
902,092
7,082
10,849
4,134
180,212
23,220

$13,822,909

Discretely Presented Component Units

Beginning Ending
Balance, Restated *  Increases Decreases Balance
$ 22774538 $ 131533 $ - $ 22,906,071
31,558,051 10,151,393 (36,812,828) 4,896,616
473,229 17,465 490,694
* 292,308,915 10,698,368 303,007,283
51,062,044 5,970,745 (1,068,612) 55,964,177
33,416,914 28,435,661 61,852,575
63,916 63,916
431,657,607 55,405,165 (37,881,440) 449,181,332
(178,078,922)  (16,892,324) 1,166,593 (193,804,653)
$ 253578,685 $ 38512841 $ (36,714,847) $ 255,376,679

* Beginning balances for depreciable assets were reclassified between categories in fiscal year 2011.
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Construction Commitments

The Government has active construction projects as of June 30, 2011. The projects include improvements to major
roadways, government buildings, sanitary sewer and stormwater systems. At year end, the Government had the
following commitments on construction contracts:

Project Commitment
Buildings $1,333,656
Capital Repairs and Maintenance 406,316
Land Improvements 819,468
Sanitary Sewer Collection System 5,208,063
Sanitary Sewer Treatment System 1,972,339
Storm Drainage 980,386
Street Resurfacing Maintenance 525,324
Streets and Roadways 7,866,268
Traffic Control and Markings 148,226

$19,260,046

Intergovernmental revenues and local contributions provide funding for the major roadway improvements. The
Urban Services Fund and intergovernmental revenues fund the renovations to government buildings. General
obligation bonds finance the commitments for stormwater system improvements. Intergovernmental revenues and
general obligation bonds fund the parks improvements.

C. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The principal purpose of the Government’s interfund transfers is indicative of funding for capital projects or
subsidies of various Government operations and reallocation of special revenues. Due to our practice of cash
management by concentrating the Government’s funds, interfund balances exist as of June 30, 2011. In addition,
Federal and State Grants revenues are based on reimbursable expenditures. The composition of interfund balances
as of June 30, 2011, is as follows:

Fund Description

Due from (to)
General Fund

Sanitary Sewer System $2,903,087
Public Facilities Corporation (14,959)
Public Parking Corp 276,940
Landfill 583
Other Enteprise Funds 455,321
Total due from Proprietary Funds 3,620,972
Urban Service (1,166,303)
Federal and State Grants (4,115,267)
Other Governmental Funds 5,304,219
Internal Service Funds 21,345,883
Total due from General Fund $24,989,504
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Receivable Entity Payable Entity Amount
Primary government - General fund Component unit - Explorium of Lexington $291,485
Primary government - General fund Component unit - Lexington Transit Authority 305,239
Primary government - General fund Component unit - Downtown Development Authority 4,039
Primary government - General fund Component unit - Parking Authority 268,390
Total 869,153
Component unit - Explorium of Lexington Primary government - General fund 97,501
Total $97,501

Interfund transfers:

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects or subsidies of various Government operations and
reallocation of special revenues. The following schedule briefly summarizes the Government’s transfer activity:

Total Total
General Urban Services ~ Fed StGrants~ Non Major Governmental ~~ Governmental Major Proprietary ~ Non Major Proprietary  Proprietary
General (8130,230) (8676,125) (82,330,765) (83,137,120) (869,794) (§740) (870,534)
Urhan Services 130,230 130230
Fed St Grants 676,125 676,125 (1,222,483) (1222483)
Non-Major Governmental 2,330,765 2,330,765 43129 43129
Major Proprietary 69,794 122483 (43,129) 1,249,148
Non-Major Proprietary 40 L)
Grand Total $3.207,654 (8130,230) $546,358 (82,373,804) $1,249,888 (81,249,148) (6740)  (81,249,888)

D. Long-term Debt
Revenue bonds and other directly related long-term liabilities, which are intended to be paid from proprietary funds,

are included in the accounts of such funds. All other long-term indebtedness is accounted for in the governmental
column of the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.
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Primary Government

Bonds payable, notes payable, compensated absences, landfill closure and postclosure care costs, and unfunded
pension liabilities at June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Bonds, notes, loans, and leases:

General Obligation, Series 2001B
General Obligation, Series 2002B
General Obligation, Series 2002C
General Obligation, Series 2004C
General Obligation, Series 2005B
General Obligation, Series 2005C
General Obligation, Series 2006B

General Obligation, KLC Series 2000

General Obligation, Series 2006C
General Obligation, Series 2006D
General Obligation, Series 2008A
General Obligation, Series 2009A
Pension Obligation,Series 2009B
General Obligation, Series 2010A
General Obligation, Series 2010B
General Obligation, Series 2010C
Pension Obligation,Series 2010D
General Obligation, Series 2010F
General Obligation, Series 2010G
General Obligation, Series 2010H

Total bonds, notes and loans
Other Liabilities:
Compensated Absences

Unfunded Other Post Employment Benefit

Liability
Unfunded Pension Liability
Total other liabilities
Total governmental activities
Business-type Activities
Bonds, notes and loans:
Sanitary Sewer, Series 2001A
Sanitary Sewer, Series 2001B
Sanitary Sewer, Series 2009A
Sanitary Sewer, Series 2010A
Public Facilities, Series 2006
Radcliff road A209-09
KIA Streetscape A209-8
So. Elkhorn A09-01
Total bonds, notes and loans
Other Liabilities:
Compensated Absences

Landfill Closure & Postclosure Care Costs

Total other liabilities
Total business-type activities

Original Interest Final Amount Due Within
Purpose of Issue Issue Rates Maturity Outstanding One Year
Purchase of Development Rights $7,635,000 3.80%-390%  Dec-2012 $735,000 $360,000
Building Renovation 2,330,000 3.00%-4.00%  May-2012 270,000 270,000
Storm Water & Road Construction 4,570,000 3.00% - 4.93% Dec-2022 2,220,000 340,000
Multi-Purpose Project 9,640,000 2.50% - 4.75% Jul-2024 7,470,000 405,000
Purchase of Fire Equipment 2,830,000 3.00% - 3.38% Apr-2012 440,000 440,000
PDR /Building Renovation 4,490,000 3.00% - 4.20% Jun-2025 2,985,000 280,000
Blvd/Stormwater/Fire Station/Cars 10,310,000 4.00% - 4.50% Jun-2026 6,620,000 670,000
Economic Development Project 360,000 3.97% May-2012 50,000 50,000
Purchase of Development Rights 2,055,000 3.50% - 4.20% Nov-2026 1,755,000 80,000
Refunding 56,850,000 4.00%-4.25%  May-2024 49,925,000 3,195,000
Equipment/HVAC/Vehicles 13,520,000 3.50% Feh-2014 7,175,000 3,370,000
PDR /Building Renovation/CIP 24,830,000 2.25% - 5.00% Feb-2029 22,070,000 1,430,000
Police/Fire Pension Fund 70,610,000 350%-6.00%  Apr-2029 65,465,000 2,395,000
CIP projects 69,320,000 1.00%-5.600%  Sep-2030 69,320,000 2,500,000
Refunding of 1999B and 2000A 7,735,000 1.00%-3.00%  Sep-2019 7,020,000 740,000
Refunding of 2000E 6,635,000 1.00%-3.00%  Dec-2020 6,025,000 555,000
Police/Fire Pension Fund 35,825,000  .95%-5.45% Jun-2030 34,630,000 1,285,000
CIP projects 6,305,000  1.00%-2.9% Dec-2016 6,305,000 45,000
CIP projects 8,950,000  3.2%-5.4% Dec-2025 8,950,000 -
Refunding of 2001B 4,465,000  1.00%-3.8% Dec-2021 4,435,000 55,000
349,265,000 303,865,000 18,465,000
22,382,594 3,133,563
44,645,362
1,576,734
68,604,690 3,133,563
372,469,690 21,598,563
Sewer Rehabilitation 25,150,000 4.00% - 5.00% Jul-2013 4,330,000 1,490,000
Refunding 16,860,000 4.00% - 5.50% Jul-2012 6,160,000 2,990,000
Sewer Rehabilitation 35,960,000 1.75%-5.875%  Jul-2024 35,960,000 1,385,000
Refunding 13,860,000 2.25% - 3.75% Jun-2021 13,605,000 125,000
Refunding 66,725,000 3.88% - 4.25% Oct-2031 61,990,000 1,970,000
SRF Loan 113,523 2% Jun-2030 109,330 4,782
SRF Loan 1,254,980 2% Dec-2030 1,229,309 52,115
SRF Loan 13,766,388 2% 13,766,388
$173,689,891 137,150,027 8,016,897
1,486,504 494,189
19,417,009 5,952,949
20,903,513 6,447,138
$158,053,540 $14,464,035
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Changes in Long-term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Bonds, Notes, Loans, and Leases
General Obligation Bonds, Notes and Leases
Total bonds, notes and loans

Other Liabilities
Compensated Absences

Unfunded Other Post Employment Benefit Liability

Unfunded Pension Liability
Governmental activities long-term liabilities

Business-type Activities
Bonds, Notes and Loans
Revenue Bonds
Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Notes and Loans
Total bonds, notes and loans
Other Liabilities
Compensated Absences
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs
Business-type activities long-term liabilities

*Prior period adjustment

Long-Term Liabilities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Beginning
Balance Ending Due Within One
(Restated) Additions Reductions Balance Year
$308,355,000 * $19,720,000 $24,210,000 $303,865,000 $18,465,000
308,355,000 19,720,000 24,210,000 303,865,000 18,465,000
21,263,698 * 2,186,200 1,067,304 22,382,594 3,133,563
31,827,030 12,818,332 44,645,362
1,642,079 65,345 1,576,734
363,087,807 34,724,532 25,342,649 372,469,690 21,598,563
64,565,000 4,510,000 60,055,000 5,990,000
63,890,000 1,900,000 61,990,000 1,970,000
15,134,891 29,864 15,105,027 56,897
128,455,000 15,134,891 6,439,864 137,150,027 8,016,897
1,321,136 277,635 112,267 1,486,504 494,189
18,256,560 1,160,449 19,417,009 5,952,949
$148,032,696 $16,572,975 $6,552,131 $158,053,540 $14,464,035

Internal service funds predominately serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are

included as part of the above totals for governmental activities.

absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund and the Urban Services Fund.
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Principal and interest requirements to maturity for the Primary Government’s bonds and notes are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

General Obligation Bonds,

Revenue Bonds, Notes and

Notes and Leases Leases Mortgage Revenue Bonds Total Primary Government

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Interest  Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal
2012 $12,888,024  $18465000  $2,554,848 6,046,898  $2513813  §1,970,000 $17,956,685  $26,481,898
2013 12,343.865 17,855,000  2,280430 7,356,201 2,435,925 2,050,000 17,060,220 27,261,201
2014 11812390 19275000 2,081,802 3,962,368 2,354,937 2,130,000 16,249,129 25,367,368
2015 11221636 17,820,000 1,983,099 4,048,558 2,269,369 2,215,000 15,474,104 24,083,558
2016 10628468 18375000 1890916 4,114,772 2,178,869 2,310,000 14,698,253 24,799,772
2017 - 2021 43057,921 86645000 7,635,825 22,042,941 9,401,243 13,035,000 60,094,989 121,722,941
2022 - 2026 24247252 75935000 4453989 15,999,315 6,461,828 15,965,000 35,163,069 107,899,315
2027 - 2032 6,538,681 49495000 1670287 11,588,974 2,850,580 22,315,000 11,059,548 83,398,974
Total 132,738,237 303,865,000 24,551,196 75160027 30466564 61,990,000 187,755,997 441,015,027
Less principal payable

within one year 18,465,000 6,046,898 1,970,000 26,481,898
Long term principal

due after one year $285,400,000 $69,113 129 $60,020,000 $414 533129
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Component Units

The Government is contingently liable for the Lexington Center Corporation and Airport Board’s debt. Principal
and interest requirements for component units’ debt are as follows:

Lexington Lexington Fayette Nonmajor
Center Airport County Board  Component

Fiscal Year Corporation Board of Health Units Total
2012 $3,541,722  $1,900,137 $134,377 $688,562 $6,264,798
2013 3,207,753 1,924,832 134,330 689,089 5,956,004
2014 2,683,948 1,912,360 134,118 632,130 5,362,556
2015 2,684,387 3,020,963 138,480 627,394 6,471,224
2016 2,678,484 3,574,364 137,599 631,742 7,022,189
2017 - 2021 13,382,219 19,040,594 145,600 3,130,850 35,699,263
2022 - 2026 2,669,742 18,102,584 3,147,361 23,919,687
2027 - 2031 16,920,307 1,714,882 18,635,189
2032 - 2036 15,086,872 572,346 15,659,218
2037 - 2041 3,212,374 3,212,374
Total 30,848,255 84,695,387 824,504 11,834,356 128,202,502
Less payable within one year 3,541,722 1,900,137 134,377 688,562 6,264,798
Less refinancing loss/premium-
discount 229,054 (1,452,750) (1,223,696)
Long term principal and interest
due after one year $27,077,479  $84,248,000 $690,127 $11,145,794 $123,161,400

General Description of the Government's Bonds and Notes Payable

Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds

The Sanitary Sewer System (the System) issues revenue bonds to finance improvements and expansions of the
sanitary sewer system operated by the Government. The Sanitary Sewer System has issued the following bonds:

1. $25,150,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A, to pay for the rehabilitation of gravity sewer pipe and
appurtenances at various locations throughout the Urban Services area. Of the original issue Series 2001A,
approximately $13,860,000 was partially refunded through the issuance of Series 2010A leaving a remaining
balance of $5,760,000.

2. $16,860,000 of Refunding Bonds, Series 2001B, to reduce interest rates on debt by refunding the $17,340,000
total principal remaining on the 1992 bonds. The refunded bonds were issued to provide funds for expansion of the
West Hickman Creek wastewater treatment plant and to finance the installation of the Lower Cane Run system.

3. $35,960,000 of Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A, (Taxable Build America Bonds) to be utilized
along with other available funds of financing for the construction of major additions, betterment and extensions to
the sanitary sewer system.  The 2009A Bonds were issued under the guidelines provided under the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). Under the Guidelines set forth in the ARRA the Government is eligible to
apply for an interest subsidy payment from the United States Treasury of 35% for Build America Bonds (BABS).
The Government received a subsidy for the year ended June 30, 2011 of $583,967.
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4.  $13,860,000 of Sewer System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A, to which proceeds were applied to the
advance refunding defeasance and legal discharge of the outstanding Series 2001A Bonds maturing on July 2014
through July 2021 for an annual savings of approximately $91,799.

The bond ordinances provide that the gross income and revenues of the System be deposited into the Revenue and
Operations Account. Monies in the Revenue and Operations Account are to be disbursed as follows:

. Each month to the Sinking Fund, 1/6 of the next interest payment and 1/12 of the next principal payment and, if
necessary, 1/24th of the required Debt Service Reserve which is 125% of the average annual debt service on the
2001 Series A and B Bonds, 2009 Series A, and 2010 Series A and any parity bonds until the Debt Service
Reserve equals the requirement.

o Pay, as they accrue, the proper and necessary costs of operating, maintaining and insuring the System as set out
in the "Current Expenses” contained in the annual budget and to accumulate and maintain an amount sufficient
to pay said costs for three months.

U Each month to the Depreciation Fund, 1/24th of the required Depreciation Reserve (defined as 5% of the
outstanding bonds or such larger amount as required by an Independent Consulting Engineer) until the required
Depreciation Reserve has been accumulated.

o To the Capital Projects Fund any surpluses after the Sinking Fund, Debt Service Reserve and Depreciation
Fund are fully funded and the Revenue and Operations Account contains an amount sufficient to operate,
maintain and insure the System for three full months.

The bond ordinances also outline parity provisions for the issuance of additional bonds for the acquisition or
construction of sewer system facilities. The "net income and revenues” of the System, as defined in the bond
ordinance, must provide coverage of 125% of Maximum Annual Debt Service. The bonds are insured by Municipal
Bond Insurance Association; and supplemental issues, if insured, must also be approved by the insurer.

The Public Facilities Corporation (PFC) was created by the Government to act as the agency and instrumentality of
the Government in acquiring, developing and financing public improvements and public projects. The PFC financed
various projects through bank and mortgage notes and the issuance of revenue bonds. The debt is collateralized by
the properties, a pledge of specified Government revenues and lease payments from the Government sufficient to
retire the debt and to provide for the operation and maintenance of the facilities.

The Government entered into various contracts, leases and option agreements with the PFC. These agreements
provide that the PFC receives title to the properties mortgaged as security for the revenue bond issues, the proceeds
of which have been used to finance the acquisition, construction and improvements to the properties. Upon payment
of the outstanding bonds, title to the properties will be conveyed to the Government. The lease agreements are
renewable annually, and the likelihood of the leases not being renewed is remote.

The Public Facilities Corporation issued the $66,725,000 Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2006, to
refund the $62,825,000 total principal remaining on the Series 1998 bonds. The refunded bonds were issued to
finance a court facility that includes a Circuit Court Building, a District Court Building and an adjoining parking
garage. The Government entered into a sublease with the Administrative Office of the Court (AOC) of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky which provides for lease payments based on the percentage of space occupied by AOC
functions in the courthouses and the AOC share of costs of the parking garage. The resulting AOC sublease
payments will account for approximately 89% of the debt service payments; the remaining debt service payments
will be paid by the Government.
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Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loans

SRF Loans are loans that are issued by the Commonwealth of Kentucky for infrastructure improvements. These
loans are 20 year loans with a 2% interest rate. The Government has qualified and received the following KIA SRF

Loans.

1. Radcliffe Road A209-09 issued in the amount of $113,523 for improvements to the storm water system along
Radcliffe Road in Fayette County.

2. KIA Streetscape A209-08 issued in the amount of $1,254,980 for improvements to the storm water system in
the city center of Lexington. These funds were used in conjunction with the Streetscape project that included
upgrades to the sidewalks, sewer and storm water systems. This capital project included South Limestone, East
and West Main Street and Vine Street.

3. South Elkhorn Pumpstation KIA A09-01 issued in the amount of $17,208,000 for the upgrade of the South

Elkhorn pump station and construction of a new 36 inch force main. As of June 30, 2011 the government had
received only a partial draw of $13,766,388 with the remaining balance of $3,441,612 to be requested in fiscal
year 2012. Until the remaining balance is requested the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority does not issue an
amortization schedule for the loan nor does the Government initiate payment of principle toward the loan.
Amortization estimation has been used based on information outlined in the Assistance Agreement between
KIA and the Government.

General Obligation Bonds and Notes

The Government issues general obligation bonds and notes to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of
capital assets used by governmental activities. The Government has issued the following general obligation bonds
and notes:

1.

$7,635,000, Series 2001B, to finance the Purchase of Development Rights Program (PDR), a program to
purchase conservation easements in Fayette County. This program is one component of an overall rural land
use plan to preserve and manage the unique agricultural, rural and natural lands of Fayette County. The PDR
program purchases and/or accepts donations of conservation easements from rural property owners in exchange
for removal of future development rights from rural land.

$2,330,000, Series 2002B, to finance the acquisition, installation, and renovation of the Government Center,
including replacement of the elevators and the HVAC system.

$4,570,000, Series 2002C, to finance the construction of various stormwater improvements and two lanes of a
four-lane boulevard.

$9,640,000, Series 2004C, to finance the costs associated with the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a
day treatment facility; the acquisition, renovation and equipping of a multi-use facility; and the acquisition of
rights of way and construction of road improvements.

$2,830,000, Series 2005B, to finance the acquisition and installation of certain fire equipment including fire
engines, EMS units, fire aerial units and other equipment.

$4,490,000, Series 2005C, to finance the costs of the Purchase of Development Rights Program, renovating and
upgrading space in two government office buildings, and making structural repairs to two parking garages
owned and operated by the Government.

$10,310,000, Series 2006B, to finance stormwater improvements, neighborhood redevelopment projects,
Bluegrass Aspendale Parkway, Veterans Park fire station and police cars.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

$2,055,000, Series 2006C, to finance the costs of the Purchase of Development Rights Program.

$56,850,000, Refunding Series 2006D, to refund the Public Facilities Corporation Series 1995 bonds for
$2,500,000 in principal amount and to partially refund the 1999 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1999A,
aggregating $52,885,000 in principal. The refunding resulted in annual debt service savings of approximately
$139,000 per year.

$13,520,000, Series 2008A, to finance acquisition of certain equipment and vehicles in addition to various
parks projects.

$24,830,000, Series 2009A, to finance the cost of the Purchase of Development Rights Program, Street
Resurfacing, Bluegrass Aspendale improvements and other various construction projects.

$70,610,000, Series 2009B, Taxable General Obligation Pension Funding Bonds to finance additional
contributions to the Policemen's and Firefighters' Retirement Plan.

$69,320,000, Series 2010A, (Build America Bonds) Taxable General Obligation Public Project Bonds, to
finance various projects for departments within the Government, including acquisition of equipment,
infrastructure projects and purchase of development rights. The 2010A Bonds were issued under the guidelines
provided under the ARRA. Under the Guidelines set forth in the ARRA the Government is eligible to apply for
an interest subsidy payment from the United States Treasury of 35% for BABs. The Government received a
subsidy for the year ending June 30, 2011 of $1,140,619.

$7,735,000, Series 2010B, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, for refunding the Series 1999B and 2000A
General Obligation Bonds with an annual savings of approximately $126,752.

$6,635,000, Series 2010C, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, for refunding the Series 2000E General
Obligation Bonds with an annual savings of approximately $56,322.

$35,825,000, Series 2010D, Taxable General Obligation Pension Funding Bonds, to finance additional
contributions to the Policemen’s and Firefighters’ Retirement Plan.

$6,305,000, Series 2010F, Various Purpose General Obligation Public Projects Build America Bonds, to
finance the acquisition of various equipment for Departments within the Government including but not limited
to Computer Services, Public Safety, Parks and Recreation and Solid Waste. The 2010F Bonds were issued
under the guidelines provided under the ARRA. Under the Guidelines set forth in the ARRA the Government is
eligible to apply for an interest subsidy payment from the United States Treasury of 35% for BABs. The
Government received a subsidy for the year ending June 30, 2011 of $18,828.

$8,950,000, Series 2010G, Various Purpose General Obligation Public Projects Recovery Zone Economic
Development Bonds (RZEDB), to finance the acquisition of various equipment for Departments within the
Government including but not limited to Public Safety, Purchase Development Rights, Recycling Center and
Public Works utility design. The 2010G Bonds were issued under the guidelines provided under the ARRA.
Under the Guidelines set forth in the ARRA the Government is eligible to apply for an interest subsidy payment
from the United States Treasury of 45% for RZEDB. The Government received a subsidy for the year ending
June 30, 2011 of $74,398.

$4,465,000, Series 2010H, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, for refunding a portion of the $7,635,000
General Obligation Bond Series 2001B resulting in an annual savings of approximately $8,133.
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General Obligation Lease Agreement

In FY 2002 the Government entered into a general obligation lease agreement as lessee with the Kentucky League of
Cities Funding Trust for the financing of the Webasto Roof Systems, Inc. economic development project. The
principal amount of the lease is $360,000 and is amortized over ten years.

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require the Government to place final covers on its landfills and to perform
certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the Haley Pike landfill for thirty years. Since the operations of the
Government’s landfill is accounted for in an Enterprise Fund, the accrued liability for these costs are reported in the
Landfill Fund as required by GASB 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure
Care Costs. The liability of $19,417,009 at June 30, 2011 is based on the use of 99.57% of the estimated capacity of
the Haley Pike landfill and 100% of the Old Frankfort Pike landfill. The Government will recognize this cost as the
remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and
postclosure care in 2011. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in
regulations. The Government expects to close the landfill in the year 2013.

NOTE 4. SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAM

A. Health, Dental, and Vision Care — The Government offers health, dental, and vision care insurance options to
employees of the Government. The self insured medical and pharmacy health plan is provided by Humana and CVS
Caremark. The fully insured dental and vision plans are provided by Delta Dental and Eye Med respectively. Third
party administrators are responsible for the processing of claims and cost containment. Premiums are paid through
payroll deductions and may be funded fully or partially by the Benefit Pool provided by the Government. The
Health, Dental, and Vision Care Insurance Fund accounts for these activities and is reported in an internal service
fund. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows:

Claims and changes in estimates - FY 2010 $32,574,990
Claims paid FY 2010 (32,574,990)
Surplus at June 30, 2010 0
Claims and changes in estimates - FY 2011 36,973,848
Claims paid FY 2011 (36,973,848)
Surplus at June 30, 2011 $ -

B. Insurance and Risk Management — The Government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft
of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These
risks are covered through the Property and Casualty Claims Fund (the Fund), a self-insured program established in
1982. There are five types of coverage provided by the self-insured program: auto liability, auto physical damage,
general liability, property (including boiler and machinery), and workers' compensation.

All assets and employees of the primary government are covered by the Fund. Premiums are paid into the fund by
the General Fund, the Urban Services Fund, and the Sanitary Sewer Fund and are based on both exposure and
experience factors. Premiums include amounts needed to pay prior and current-year claims and administrative costs.

Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). The
result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not exact as it depends on many complex factors, such as
inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to
consider the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends, and other economic and social factors. Estimated
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recoveries, from subrogation and excess insurance policies, for example, are another component of the claims
liability estimate.

Annually, as of June 30, the Fund has a third party actuary review the claim histories for all claim years for which
open claims are outstanding. The actuary projects the ultimate claim payment obligation (including the IBNR
claims) for each year's claim experience. The Government elected to establish the liability for these claims and loss
expenses at their present value with a discount rate of 3.5%. As of June 30, 2011 the undiscounted estimated liability
was $26,468,754. The discounted estimated liability as of June 30, 2011 was $22,045,593. Changes in the balances
of claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows:

Auto Liability
and Physical General Workmen's
Damage Liability Property ~ Compensation Total

Liability at June 30, 2009 $1,247,862  $5,826,050  $253,496  $14,971,691  $22,299,099
Claims and changes in estimates FY 2010 1,559,255 3,618,443 471,353 (202,843) 5,446,208
Claims Incurred FY 2010 (1,368,970)  (3,394,634)  (582,066) (1,230,957)  (6,576,627)
Liability at June 30, 2010 1,438,147 6,049,859 142,783 13,537,891 21,168,680
Claims and changes in estimates FY 2011 1,445,698 1,936,364 719,261 4,749,288 8,850,611
Claims Incurred FY 2011 (1,477,517)  (1,490,787) (573,062) (4,432,332)  (7,973,698)
Liability at June 30, 2011 $1,406,328  $6,495,436  $288,982  $13,854,847  $22,045,593

The Fund uses excess insurance policies, purchased from various commercial carriers, to reduce its exposure to
large losses on all types of insured events or for exposures that are difficult to self-insure. These insurance policies
permit recovery of losses above the self-insured retention limits from the insurance carriers, although it does not
discharge the primary liability of the Self-Insured Retention Fund as the direct source for payment of claims made
against the Government. Workers' compensation self-insured retention was $750,000 and property self-insured
retention was $250,000. The following schedule indicates the types of excess insurance purchased, the SIR (self-
insured retention level) maintained by the Fund, limits and some of the sub-limits of the excess insurance coverage:
Self-insured Retention

Line of coverage Per Occurrence Excess Reinsurance Annual Limit
Property $250,000 $500,000,000 Per Occurrence
Flood Loss 250,000 100,000,000 Per Occurrence
Flood Loss (Zones A,V, and 250,000 2,000,000 Per Occurrence

all other 100-year floodplains)
Earthquake Loss 250,000 100,000,000 Per Occurrence
Electronic Data Processing 250,000 Included in Property Limits
Traffic Control Equipment 250,000 Included in Property Limits
Cyber Coverage —Third Party 100,000 20,000,000 Aggregate
Cyber Coverage — First Party 100,000 2,000,000 Aggregate
Boiler and Machinery 100,000 100,000,000 Per Occurrence
Electronic Data Processing 100,000 10,000,000 Per Occurrence
Auto Physical Damage 100,000 Included in Property Limits
Auto Liability 2,000,000 5,000,000 Per Occurrence
General Liability 2,000,000 5,000,000 Per Occurrence
Public Officials Liability 2,000,000 5,000,000 Per Occurrence
Workers' Compensation 750,000 Statutory Per Occurrence
Employers' Liability 750,000 1,000,000 Per Occurrence
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NOTE 5. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A. Litigation — The Government is party to numerous legal proceedings where the ultimate outcome cannot be
determined with certainty or cannot be reasonably estimated, many of which normally occur in government
operations. Management does not anticipate such actions will have a material impact on the financial position of the
Government. The Government’s Department of Law estimates that there are pending cases in which there is a
reasonably possible likelihood that the Government will incur some liability. As of June 30, 2011 the Government
has accrued approximately $5,600,000 for potential liabilities for the cases covered by self-insurance (See Note
4.B.) and approximately $4,300,000 in the General Fund in the government-wide financial statementsfor matters not
covered by the self-insurance program.

In 2005, a case was filed by multiple firefighters alleging that their overtime wages, pension contributions, and
benefits were not calculated accurately. They seek compensatory damages and attorneys fees. The Government filed
a Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings on state wage and hour claims, and the Motion was granted by the Fayette
Circuit Court. The Court granted the Government’s motion to make the judgment final and appealable, and the
Plaintiffs appealed to the Court of Appeals. The Court of Appeals upheld the Circuit Court’s decision in favor of the
Government. The Plaintiffs have filed a Motion for Discretionary Review with the Kentucky Supreme Court and the
Government’s Response has been submitted. The Kentucky Supreme Court issued an Order holding in abeyance the
Motion for Discretionary Review until another firefighter wage and hour case is decided. The Plaintiffs claim could
be in excess of $1,000,000, depending on the form of calculation of back overtime wages. The Government intends
to vigorously defend the claims asserted in the lawsuit, but at the same time, and at the Plaintiffs’ counsels’ request,
has indicated a willingness to attempt to mediate the parties’ differences while continuing to litigate the
Government’s defenses.

B. United States Environmental Protection Agency Consent Decree — The United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) and the Kentucky Environmental and Public Protection Cabinet (KYEPPC) filed suit in
federal court against the Government in 2006 alleging various violations of the Clean Water Act. The Government
completed negotiations with EPA and KYEPPC to resolve the alleged violations. The resulting Consent Decree
agreement was entered in the United States District Court — Eastern District of Kentucky on January 3, 2011. The
settlement agreement requires the Government to undertake extensive studies, sewer improvement projects, and
management plans to correct the problems that were alleged. The settlement affords the Government up to 13 years
to correct the problems. The Government has estimated that the cost of remedial measures would approach $300
million over the life of the Consent Decree. The Government increased sanitary sewer rates to fund obligations
under the Consent Decree and also adopted a storm water management fee.

C. Federal and State Grants — The Government receives grant funds from various federal and state government
agencies to be used for specific designated purposes and are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authorities, the purpose of which is to
ensure compliance with conditions surrounding the granting of funds. If a grantor’s review indicates that the funds
have not been used for the intended purpose, the grantor may request a refund of monies advanced or refuse to
reimburse the Government for its expenditures. In management’s opinion, any liability for any refunds or
reimbursements which may arise as a result of audits of grant funds would not have a material impact on the
financial position of the Government. Continuation of the Government’s grant programs is predicated upon the
grantor’s satisfaction that the funds provided are being spent as intended and the grantor’s intent to continue their
programs.

D. Lexington Center Corporation — LCC is a non-profit, non-stock corporate agency and instrumentality of the
Government. The Government entered into a Lease Agreement that provides for leasing the Lexington Center from
LCC on an annual basis beginning June 15, 1993. This Lease Agreement replaces a Contract Lease and Option
Agreement that began October 1, 1974. The annual rental to be paid by the Government to LCC is an amount equal
to interest and principal on the bonds, plus costs of operating, maintaining and insuring the leased premises, less all
receipts of LCC that are not required to be otherwise applied. The agreement grants the Government an exclusive
option to renew the lease for additional one-year periods through June 30, 2022, but the Government may elect not

86



LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

to renew the lease with written notice to LCC. The Government may acquire title to the facilities on any interest
payment date by notifying LCC and the Trustee within sixty days before such date and by paying to the Trustee an
amount equal to principal, interest and redemption premiums on bonds outstanding at that time, plus costs associated
with the redemption of the bonds. The Government may also acquire title at the retirement of the bond issue if all
annual renewals of the lease were executed and all rental payments were made.

On July 13, 2001, LCC and the University of Kentucky Athletic Association entered into a lease agreement for a
term through the 2017-18 basketball season for the use of Rupp Arena.

An agreement between LCC and the Lexington Convention and Visitors Bureau, dated March 20, 2001, provides for
annual contributions of $948,000 to LCC for the period beginning 2001 and ending 2012. Contributions shall
decrease in the amount of $100,000 each successive fiscal year beginning in 2013, with a final contribution of
$48,000 in 2021.

On April 15, 2011, LCC and the Triangle Foundation entered into a lease agreement of the Triangle Park property
through August 15, 2011 for the purpose of renovation of the property. On May 16, 2011, LCC and Triangle
Foundation entered into a grant agreement in which the Triangle Foundation shall renovate Triangle Park in
accordance with the lease agreement for an approximate value of $1,300,000.

E. Lexington-Fayette Urban County Airport Corporation (Airport Corporation) — The Lexington-Fayette
Urban County Airport Corporation is a honprofit, nonstock corporate agency and instrumentality of the Government
and the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Airport Board (Airport Board). The Government and the Airport Board
have entered into a joint and severable Contract Lease and Option Agreement that provides for leasing the Bluegrass
Airport from the Airport Corporation on an annual basis beginning October 1, 1976. The annual rental to be paid
by the Government to the Airport Corporation is an amount equal to interest and principal on the bonds, plus costs of
operating, maintaining and insuring the leased premises, less all receipts of the Airport Corporation that are not
required to be otherwise applied. The agreement grants the Government the option to renew the lease for additional
one-year periods through June 30, 2024, but the Government may elect not to renew the lease with written notice to
the Airport Corporation. The Airport Corporation has had sufficient revenues to pay all debt service costs without a
lease payment from the Government. The financial status is expected to remain the same.

As of June 30, 2011, several uncompleted construction projects funded in-part by Federal grants remain open. Upon
completion and final approval by the Inspector General, these projects will be closed out and a final account will be
rendered. Outstanding construction contract commitments are approximately $3,126,000.

The Airport Corporation is subject to federal, state, and local regulations in regards to the discharge of various
materials into the environment. Costs are routinely incurred to remove, contain, and neutralize existing
environmental contaminates and these costs are generally expensed as incurred. Future costs for existing conditions
are not readily determinable and are not reflected in the financial statements.

The Airport Corporation is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; general liability claims; and natural disasters. The Airport
Corporatoin manages these risks through the purchase of commercial insurance.

F.  Lexington Public Library — The Library is a non-profit, non-stock corporate agency and instrumentality of
the Government. The former executive director of the Library has filed a suit against them seeking in excess of
$5,000,000 for damages. Due to the fact that the case is still in a preliminary stage, no evaluation of outcome or
estimate of loss could be reasonably established.

G. Lexington Downtown Housing Fund, LLC — On December 9, 2004 the Government passed ordinance 319-
2004 approving a lease and sublease for the purpose of creating, enhancing and extending market-rate housing in
downtown Lexington (the Project). The Ordinance authorized entering into one or more leases with the Kentucky
League of Cities Funding Trust to enable the Government to finance the Project for an aggregate principal amount of
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$2,000,000 outstanding at any one time. The lease is a general obligation pledge of the Government. The sublease
agreement between the Government and the Lexington Downtown Housing Fund, LLC (DHL LLC) assigns
administrative management and support of the loan programs to DHL LLC. Under the loan program, DHL LLC
makes loans to developers of approved projects. The loans made by DHL LLC are funded in part by the sublease
and in part from funds contributed or loaned from local participating banks. The interest on the loans are paid by the
developers and the principal of the loans are subsequently repaid by the revenues from the projects. In the event of
default by the developer on the loan payment, the portion of the loan funded by the sublease would become an
obligation of the Government. As of June 30, 2011 the total principal outstanding was $1,005,000.

H. Liens and Encumbrances — While the Government does have satisfactory title to all owned assets, there may
be some liens and encumbrances on such assets for matters unrelated to bond issues. Only a complete accurate title
search of all properties would disclose such liens and encumbrances.

I.  Conduit Debt — The Government has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to
private sector and nonprofit entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial facilities
deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable solely from
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired
facilities transfers to the private sector or nonprofit entity served by the bond issue. The Government is not
obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2011, there were 27 series of Industrial Revenue Bonds
outstanding with an aggregate amount payable of approximately $238,500,000.

To provide for the construction of a hospital facility, the Public Facilities Corporation (PFC) issued Lease Revenue
Bonds, Series 2011A (Eastern State Hospital Project). The bonds are a special limited obligation of the PFC,
payable solely from and secured by a pledge of rentals to be received from a lease agreement between the PFC and
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the PFC or
the Government, and accordingly have not been reported in the accompanying financial statements. At June 30,
2011, the Lease Revenue Bonds outstanding total approximately $138,600,000.

NOTE 6. THE SINGLE AUDIT ACT

The U.S. Office of Management and Budget's Circular No. A-133 for Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-
Profit Organizations requires non-federal entities that expend $500,000 or more a year in federal awards to have an
audit performed in accordance with the provisions of the Circular. A separate supplemental report will be issued on
active grant programs of the Government in accordance with applicable provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984,
P.L. 98-502 and the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, P.L. 104-156.

NOTE 7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Lexington Health Department — Effective July 1, 2011, the Primary Care Division of Public Health incorporated
as a separate 501(c)(3) entity under the name of HealthFirst Bluegrass, Inc. HealthFirst Bluegrass, Inc (HFB)
continues to operate out of the existing facilities under a cooperative agreement where HFB reimburses Public
Health for space and administrative costs. HFB continues to receive an allocation of Public Health tax funds.
NOTE 8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT

The Policemen’s and Firefighters’ Retirement Fund and The City Employees’ Pension Fund

A. Plan Descriptions — The Government contributes to two single employer defined benefit pension plans: The
Policemen’s and Firefighters’ Retirement Fund (PFRF) and The City Employees’ Pension Fund (CEPF).

The sworn personnel of the divisions of Police and Fire are eligible to participate in the Policemen’s and
Firefighters’ Retirement Fund. Benefits vest in this fund after twenty years of service. Employees who retire with
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20 years of credited service receive 2.5% of their average salary times years of service. Members may add unused
sick leave to service credit and average annual salary for purposes of calculating retirement benefits. In addition, the
plan includes post-retirement benefits where any retired member who has been retired one year or more, will have
an annual increase to his pension payment of between 2% and 5%, as determined by the Board of Trustees. The
PFRF also provides death and disability benefits. The costs of administering the PFRF are financed by a
combination of additional contributions as well as investment income.

Civil service employees of the City of Lexington were covered by the City Employees’ Pension Fund. In 1973, the
Governments of the City of Lexington and Fayette County merged to form the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government. In December 1973 the City of Lexington froze admission of new entrants into the CEPF, and in
January 1974 the new merged Government assumed the City of Lexington's liability for covered employees and the
CEPF was closed to any new members. A member who has attained age 60 and completed 20 years of service or
completed 30 years of service regardless of age may apply for retirement. Members who are 45 years old or older
with 10 years of service may request a deferred retirement benefit to be paid when they reach 60 years of age.
Retirees receive 2.5% of their average salary for each year of service up to 20 years plus 1% of average salary for
each year of service over 20 years, with a maximum benefit of 65% of average salary. Members may add unused
sick leave to service credit and average annual salary for purposes of calculating retirement benefits. Death and
disability benefits are also provided under certain conditions. In addition, the plan includes an annual cost of living
adjustment of 3% for any member retiring after July 1, 1981 that has attained age 61 or has been retired for one year.
The costs of administering the CEPF are financed by a combination of additional contributions as well as investment
income.

Both pension plans are included in the Government’s comprehensive annual report and do not issue stand-alone
financial reports.

Membership of each plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2011:

Number
Inactive Plan Participants:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 1,033
Active Plan Participants:
Active members 1,051
Total 2,084

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting — The preparation of the financial statements of the Policemen's and Firefighters' Retirement
Fund and the City Employees' Pension Fund conform to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 25. Benefits and
refunds of both plans are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan. The financial
statements are prepared on an accrual basis.

Investments — Investments are stated at fair value. Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the last
reported sales price. Gains or losses on the sale of fixed income securities are recognized using the completed
transaction method. There are no significant investments (other than U.S. Government and U.S. Government
Agencies & Instrumentalities) in any one organization that represent 5% or more of net assets available for benefits.

C. Contributions — The contribution requirements and benefit provisions for the Policemen’s & Firefighters’
Pension Fund and City Employees’ Pension Fund are established by state statute and Government ordinance. In
fiscal year 2011, the Government contributed 17.0% to the PFRF and 17.5% to the CEPF. Administrative costs were
financed by a combination of additional contributions as well as investment income.
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The required contribution rates are shown in the following table:

Policemen’s and Firefighters’

Pension Fund

City Employees

Pension Fund

Required Contribution Rates:

Government 17.0% 17.5%
Plan Member 11.0% 8.5%
D. Supplemental Information
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Value Liability (AAL) Unfunded AAL Funded Covered UAAL as a % of
Valuation of Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Date (@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) (b-a)/(c)
Policemen's and Firefighters' Pension Fund (3% COLA)
7/1/06 $373,314,278 $594,804,448  $221,490,170 62.8% $57,192,876 387.3%
7/1/07 397,712,302 627,939,926 230,227,624 63.3% 57,717,156 398.9%
7/1/08 418,311,038 664,935,356 246,624,318 62.9% 61,368,960 401.9%
7/1/09 441,772,820 699,851,128 258,078,308 63.1% 65,765,448 392.4%
7/1/10 502,259,967 724,140,738 221,880,771 69.4% 60,512,412 366.7%
71111 501,069,884 758,851,546 257,781,662 66.0% 64,258,162 401.2%
City Employees' Pension Fund
7/1/06 $27,003,663 $27,598,776 $595,113 97.8% $40,920 1,454.3%
7/1/07 28,801,253 26,081,614 (2,719,639)  110.4% 40,944 (6,642.3)%
7/1/08 27,299,997 22,917,270 (4,382,727)  119.1% 42,972 (10,199.0)%
7/1/09 24,865,567 20,179,074 (4,686,493) 123.2% 43,416 (10,794.4)%
7/1/10 25,529,868 16,080,311 (9,449,557)  158.8% 0= NA
7/1/11 27,052,395 15,068,768  (11,983,627) 179.5% 0= NA
*All city employees are currently retired, therefore covered payroll is $0.
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation
Policemen’s and City
Firefighters’ Employees’

Contributions made
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation

Annual Required Contribution
Interest on net pension obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual pension cost

Net pension obligation beginning of year
Net pension obligation end of year

Pension Fund

Pension Fund

$28,216,938 $0
(3,930,219) 114,946
(3,636,504) 180,291
27,923,223 (65,345)
14,408,809 0
13,514,414 (65,345)
(49,127,742) 1,642,079
$(35,613,328) $1,576,734
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Six-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contribution Contributed Obligation
Policemen’'s and Firefighters' Pension Fund
2006 $12,625,784 $14,114,178 111.8% $15,624,795
2007 17,633,647 16,504,722 93.6% 16,751,720
2008 27,080,947 18,791,796 69.4% 25,040,871
2009 28,839,699 84,023,573 291.3% (30,143,003)
2010 30,485,067 49,469,806 162.3% (49,127,742)
2011 27,923,223 14,408,809 51.6% (35,613,328)

City Employees’ Pension Fund

2006 $(53,056) $6,984 N/A $1,958,202
2007 (2,593) 6,729 N/A 1,948,880
2008 (71,777) 7,116 N/A 1,869,987
2009 (74,415) 7,864 N/A 1,787,708
2010 (71,141) 74,488 N/A 1,642,079
2011 (65,345) 0 N/A 1,576,734

The information presented in the supplemental schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the
dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is presented in the following table.

Policemen's and Firefighters' Pension Fund  City Employees' Pension Fund

Valuation date July 1, 2011 July 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Funding Entry Age Normal Funding
Amortization method Level Percent of Payroll Level Dollar - Open
Remaining amortization period 23 years open 15 years open
Asset valuation method Market Related Value Market
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8.0% 7.0%

Projected salary increases 5.0% N/A

Cost-of-living adjustments 3.0% 3.0%

Inflation 3.0% N/A
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The Government’s annual required contribution (ARC), amount contributed, and percentage of required contribution
to actual contribution for the last six years are as follows:

Fiscal
Year

. Percentage of ARC
Ending I .

ARC Contribution Contributed

Policemen's and Firefighters' Retirement
2006 $12,691,844 $14,114,178 111.2%
2007 17,541,055 16,504,722 94.1%
2008 26,980,795 18,791,796 69.6%
2009 28,689,989 84,023,573 292.9%
2010 30,665,280 49,469,806 161.3%
2011 28,216,938 14,408,809 51.1%
City Employees’ Pension*
2006 $21,275 $6,984 32.8%
2007 69,527 6,729 9.7%
2008 0 7,116
2009 0 7,864
2010 0 74,488
2011 0 0
*Closed plan

E. Other Post Employment Benefit

Plan Description — In August 1999, the Council passed an ordinance that authorized the Government to provide a
health insurance benefit to the retirees of both retirement funds, effective July 1, 1999. All retirees who continue to
participate in the Government’s group health insurance plan are eligible for this benefit.

Funding Policy — The Government pays the premiums for single coverage on a pay-as-you-go basis. In fiscal year
2011, 699 retirees of the PFRF received this benefit for a total cost of $2,888,026; and 17 retirees of the CEPF
received this benefit for a total cost to the Government of $61,958.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The Government’s annual other postemployment benefit
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.
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The following table shows the components of the Government’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the Government’s net OPEB obligation to the Retiree Medical Plan:

Retiree
Medical Plan
Annual Required Contribution $16,524,963
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,432,216
Adjustment to annual required contribution 1,298,151
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 16,659,028
Contributions made (3,840,696)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 12,818,332
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 31,827,030
Net OPEB obligation end of year $44,645,362

The Government’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2011 and the two preceding fiscal years were as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of Net
Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB

Ending Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2009  $13,901,103 23.1% $21,510,674
2010 13,946,155 26.0% 31,827,030
2011 16,659,028 23.1% 44,645,362

Funded Status and Funding Progress — The Government completed an actuarial valuation of the future unfunded
actuarial accrued liability of these benefits and it was determined that as of July 1, 2010 the liability was
$211,706,877. The annual required contribution to fund this liability over a period of 30 years is $16,524,963.
These figures represent the amount needed to provide benefits for 1,033 current retirees and beneficiaries and 1,051
active members. To date there has not been any funding of this liability.

Actuarial assumptions of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members
to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.
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The actuarial assumptions used for the calculations are listed below.

Valuation date July 1, 2010
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level Percent of Pay, Open
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Market Value of Assets
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return* 4.5%

Medical cost trend rate*

Pre-Medicare trend rate 10.5% - 5.0%
Post-Medicare trend rate 9.0% -5.0%
Year of ultimate trend rate 2017
* Includes inflation at 3.0%

Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Actuarial Value Liability (AAL) Unfunded AAL Funded Covered UAAL as a % of

Valuation of Assets - Projected Unit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
Credit
Date (@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) (b-a)/(c)
7/1/08 $0 $181,181,934  $181,181,934  0.00% $61,409,904 295.0%
7/1/10 0 211,706,877 211,706,877  0.00% 60,512,412 349.9%
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F.  Pension Plan Financial Statements

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Total Receivables

Investments, at Fair VValue:
Debt Securities
US Agencies

US Government Obligations

Municipal Obligations

International Bonds

Corporate Debt

Repurchase Agreements
Other Investments

Equity Mutual Funds

Equity Real Estate

Equity Securities - Domestic
Equity Securities - International

Total Investments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Securities Lending Transactions
Compensated Absenses - Current
Compensated Absenses - Non Current

Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011

Policemen's
and
Firefighters' City
Retirement Employees’ Total Pension
Fund Pension Fund Trust Funds
$10,131,317 $466,416 $10,597,733
1,566,999 111,326 1,678,325
2,086,596 2,086,596
3,653,595 111,326 3,764,921
41,089,501 7,946,844 49,036,345
15,706,489 3,138,046 18,844,535
6,078,886 6,078,886
9,160,166 589,862 9,750,028
67,665,398 2,863,068 70,528,466
16,266,296 16,266,296
88,468,594 88,468,594
41,996,320 41,996,320
101,799,344 11,427,475 113,226,819
105,628,400 815,551 106,443,951
493,859,394 26,780,846 520,640,240
507,644,306 27,358,588 535,002,894
2,354 2,354
16,266,296 16,266,296
2,494 2,494
2,494 2,494
306,193 306,193
16,273,638 306,193 16,579,831
$491,370,668 $27,052,395 $518,423,063
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer
Employer - Administration
Plan Members
Other
Total Contributions

Income on Investments:
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments
Interest
Dividends
Total Loss on Investments
Less Investment Expense
Net Loss on Investments

Income from Securities Lending Activities:
Securities Lending Income
Securities Lending Expenses
Borrower Rebates
Management Fees
Total Securities Lending Expenses
Net Income on Securities Lending Activities

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments
Administrative Expense
Total Deductions
Net Increase

Net Assets, July 1

Net Assets, June 30

June 30, 2011

Policemen’s and
Firefighters'

Retirement City Employees'
Fund Pension Fund Total
$11,465,988 $ - $11,465,988
2,888,529 61,958 2,950,487
7,896,777 7,896,777
54,292 54,292
22,305,586 61,958 22,367,544
78,966,529 2,445,875 81,412,404
7,428,214 670,295 8,098,509
3,903,520 213,711 4,117,231
90,298,263 3,329,881 93,628,144
2,502,932 59,250 2,562,182
87,795,331 3,270,631 91,065,962
30,850 30,850
(22,250) (22,250)
21,200 21,200
(1,050) 0 (1,050)
31,900 0 31,900
110,132,817 3,332,589 113,465,406
40,238,589 1,784,349 42,022,938
153,519 25,713 179,232
40,392,108 1,810,062 42,202,170
69,740,709 1,522,527 71,263,236
421,629,959 25,529,868 447,159,827
$491,370,668 $27,052,395 $518,423,063
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G. The County Employees' Retirement System

The Government contributes to the Commonwealth of Kentucky's County Employees' Retirement System (CERS)
pursuant to KRS 78.530 administered by the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement System. CERS is a
cost-sharing multi-employer public employee retirement system which covers substantially all regular full-time
employees of each county and school board and any additional eligible local agencies electing to participate in the
System. At June 30, 2011, there were over 1,400 local government agencies participating in CERS, which provides
for retirement, disability and death benefits. Beginning October 27, 1975, all eligible full-time employees of the
Government were required to participate in CERS. CERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the
Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, KY 40601, or by telephone
at (502) 696-8800.

Nonhazardous covered employees are required to contribute 5 percent of their salary to the plan. Nonhazardous
covered employees who begin participation on or after September 1, 2008 are required to contribute 6 percent of
their salary to the plan. The Government’s contribution rate for nonhazardous employees was 16.93 percent.

Hazardous covered employees are required to contribute 8 percent of their salary to the plan. Hazardous covered
employees who begin participation on or after September 1, 2008 are required to contribute 9 percent of their salary
to be allocated as follows: 8 percent will go to the member’s account and 1 percent will go to the KRS insurance
fund. The Government’s contribution rate for hazardous employees was 33.25 percent.

The contribution requirements and the amounts contributed to CERS were $15,277,032, $18,580,548, and
$13,512,097, respectively for the years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 20009.

Benefits fully vest on reaching five years of service for nonhazardous employees. Aspects of benefits for
nonhazardous employees include retirement after 27 years of service or age 65. Nonhazardous employees who
begin participation on or after September 1, 2008 must meet the rule of 87 (member’s age plus years of service
credit must equal 87, and the member must be a minimum of 57 years of age) or the member is age 65, with a
minimum of 60 months service credit.

Aspects of benefits for hazardous employees include retirement after 20 years of service or age 55. For hazardous
employees who begin participation on or after September 1, 2008 apsects of benefits include retirement after 25
years of service or the member is age 60, with a minimum of 60 months of service credit.

CERS also provides post retirement health care coverage as follows:

For members participating prior to July 1, 2003, years of service and respective percentages of the maximum
contribution are as follows:

% Paid by Member through Payroll

Years of Service % paid by Insurance Fund Deduction
20 or more 100% 0%
15-19 75% 25%
10-14 50% 50%
4-9 25% 75%
Less than 4 0% 100%

As a result of House Bill 290 (2004 General Assembly), medical insurance benefits are calculated differently for
members who began participation on or after July 1, 2003. Once members reach a minimum vesting period of ten
years, non-hazardous employees whose participation began on or after July 1, 2003, earn ten dollars per month for
insurance benefits at retirement for every year of earned service without regard to maximum dollar amount.
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Hazardous employees whose participation began on or after July 1, 2003, earn fifteen dollars per month for
insurance benefits at retirement for every year of earned service without regard to maximum dollar amount. Upon
the death of a hazardous employee, such employee’s spouse receives ten dollars per month for insurance benefits
each year of the deceased employee’s hazardous service. This dollar amount is subject to adjustment annually based
on the retiree cost of living adjustment, which is updated annually due to changes in the Consumer Price Index.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for particular purposes.

The County Aid Program Fund accounts for the allocation of county road funds from the
Commonwealth of Kentucky as provided by HB 973 and adopted by the 1980 General Assembly based
upon the motor fuels taxes collected.

The Municipal Aid Program Fund accounts for the allocation from the Commonwealth of Kentucky as
provided by KRS 174 for design, right-of-way acquisitions, utilities, construction and other municipal road
expenditures.

The Industrial Revenue Bond Fund accounts for receipts and disbursements of IRB issuance fees.

The Mineral Severance Fund and Coal Severance Fund account for receipts and disbursements of the
Coal and Mineral Severance Tax received from the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

The Police Confiscated Fund accounts for recoveries from federal criminal case settlements awarded to
the LFUCG Division of Police. Expenditures are restricted to police law enforcement programs.

The Police Confiscated State Fund accounts for recoveries from state criminal case settlements awarded
to the Government’s Division of Police. Expenditures are restricted to police law enforcement programs.

The Public Safety Fund accounts for revenues and disbursements of the House Bill 413 fees received
from the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
and equipment other than those financed by proprietary funds.

The Lexington Cultural Center is a project to construct performing arts and exhibit facility in downtown
Lexington.

The Storm Water Bond Projects is a storm water management project funded by general obligation
bonds.

The Public Safety Capital Projects include the construction and equipping of a new detention center and
a new fire station.

The Reynolds Road Project is the widening and renovations of Reynolds Road, funded by the
Commonwealth of Kentucky.

The 2001 Bond Projects are for the acquisition and renovations of a building to house Government offices
and the renovations of the Douglass and Tates Creek swimming pools funded by general obligation bonds.
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The 2003 Bond Projects are for acquisition of vehicles, equipment, the next phase of replacement of the
Government Center HVAC system and fire trucks.

The Golf Course Bond Projects are for the acquisition of and improvements to the Picadome Golf Course
and improvements to other golf courses funded by general obligation bonds.

The Purchase of Development Rights is a program to purchase conservation easements, funded by
general obligation bonds, grant funds from the Commonwealth of Kentucky, and General Fund revenues.

The Equipment Lease Notes are general obligation notes used for the acquisition of vehicles and capital
equipment for the various departments of the Government.

The 2004 Bond Projects are for the purchase of property and the renovation of a multi-purpose building,
roadway construction, and construction of a day treatment facility.

The 2005 Bond Projects are for the Purchase of Development Rights program, garage and building
renovation projects, and Neighborhood Development projects.

The 2006 Bond Projects are for storm water improvement projects, Police vehicles, and park improvement
projects.

The 2007, 2008, & 2009 Bond Projects are for park projects, computer equipment, and building
renovations and improvements.

The 2010 Bond Projects are to finance various projects for departments within the Government, including
acquisition of equipment, infrastructure projects and the Purchase of Development Rights program.

The 2011 Bond Projects to finance the acquisition of various equipment for departments within the
Government including but not limited to Computer Services, Public Safety, Parks and Recreation, Solid
Waste, Purchase Development Rights, Recycling Center and Public Works utility design.

The Public Works Bond Projects are for storm water and road improvement projects.

The Public Library Corporation is for the acquisition, construction, equipping and financing of public
projects to be used for public library purposes.

The Roads, Parks, Open Space, Storm Water Exactions are for improvements necessary to provide

roads, parks, open space and storm water management in the Expansion Area funded by developer and
property owner exaction fees.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the year ended June 30, 2011
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Accrued Accrued
Federal Direct/ (Deferred) (Deferred)
CFDA Pass-through Revenue at Revenue Revenue at
Grantor/Program Title Number  Grantor's Number July 1, 2010 Received Expenditures June 30, 2011
US Department of Agriculture:
Direct Programs:
National School Lunch 10.555 034-038-999 $1,292 $1,292 - $ -
Child Care Food Program 10.558 034-1.95-999 4,565 23,236 18,671 0
Child Care Food Program 10.558 034-1.95-999 53,298 57,944 4,646
Summer Lunch 10.559 034-X75-999SU (2,436) (2,436) 0
Summer Lunch 10.559 034-X75-999SU 88,570 124,586 36,016 0
Urban Forestry 10.664  07-DG-11083121-004 483 3,153 2,670 0
Purchase of Development Rights (PDR) 10.913 68-5C16-9-152 325,687 306,487 (19,200) 0
Purchase of Development Rights (PDR) 10.913 68-5C16-9-152 1,701,666 1,962,176 260,510
Passed through Commonwealth of Kentucky:
Total US Department of Agriculture 420,597 2,211,282 2,055,841 265,156
US Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Direct Programs:
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B08MC210004 32,859 32,859 0
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B09MC210004 193,942 2,078,116 1,884,174 0
Community Dev Block Grant 14.218 B10MC210004 67,338 160,973 93,635
Emergency Shelter 14.231 S09MC210003 12,688 12,688 0
Emergency Shelter 14.231 S10MC210003 62,250 66,585 4,335
HOME 14.239 M08MC210201 80,313 205,647 125,334 0
HOME 14.239 M09MC210201 621,104 621,104 0
HOME 14.239 M10MC210201 66,052 66,052
Housing Opp for Pers with AIDS (HOPWA)  14.241 KY-H08-0007 8,300 373,165 456,147 91,282
Community Dev Block Grant-R 14.253 B-08-MY-21-0004 4,075 128,861 130,418 5,632
HPRP_R_2010 14.257 S-09-MY-21-0003 6,589 290,177 293,841 10,253
Passed through Commonwealth of Kentucky:
Neighborhood Stabilization Program-Land 14.228 09N-043 290,245 518,606 236,199 7,838
Neighborhood Stabilization Program-REACH  14.228 09N-042 28,680 28,681 1
Total US Department of Housing and Urban Development 629,011 4,419,491 4,069,508 279,028
US Department of Interior:
Direct Programs:
Passed through Commonwealth of Kentucky:
Historic Preservation 15.904 21-09-21823 12,000 12,000 0
Total US Department of Interior 12,000 12,000 0 0
US Department of Justice:
Direct Programs:
Police Confiscated Funds 16.000 NA (1,686,983) 782,265 1,143,872 (1,325,376)
Safe Havens 16.527  2010-CW-AX-K013 3,867 21,709 17,842
Arrest Policy 16.590 2006-WE-AX-0053 54,739 160,995 173,642 67,386
SCAAP 16.606 2008-AP-BX-0101 (18,000) 18,000 0
SCAAP 16.606 2008-AP-BX-0951 (67,379) 67,379 0
SCAAP 16.606 2009-AP-BX-0454 (6,024) 6,024 0
SCAAP 16.606  2010-H5414-KY-AP 143,243 143,243 0
Bulletproof Vests 16.607 06133999 287 287 0
Bulletproof Vests 16.607 07037695 3,774 7,914 4,355 215
Bulletproof Vests 16.607 2009 BOBX 080 41220 6,758 326 326 6,758
Bulletproof Vests 16.607 2009 BOBX 090 47311 2,665 2,665 2,019 2,019
Bulletproof Vests 16.607 2010-BOBX-10051351 1,815 1,815
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 2007-GP-CX-0068 15,594 50,452 34,858 0
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 2008-GP-CX-0060 25,756 52,231 37,843 11,368
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 2010-GP-BX-0020 17,910 17,910
Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2007-DJ-BX-0457 199 199 0
Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2009-DJ-BX-0469 36,536 280,214 363,528 119,850
Anti Gang Initiative 16.744 2007-PG-BX-0094 3,807 81,737 77,930 0
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Recovery 16.804 2009-SB-BP-1627 572,832 1,304,746 291,462 (440,452)
Redeploy-ARRA 16.808 2009-SC-B9-0104 56,193 220,868 239,794 75,119
Passed through Commonwealth of Kentucky:
Cold Case Squad 16.738  PON252510000025561 16,526 65,700 49,174 0
Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws 16.727 2009-AH-FX-0089 1,292 16,304 15,012 0
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA  N/A G10AP0001A 1,702 1,702 0
Juv Accountability Block Grant 16.523 2007-JB-FX-0041 (101) 4,010 8,725 4,715 0
Juv Accountability Block Grant 16.523 IABG-2011-LFUCG-00011 4,677 9,224 4,547
PALYEP 16.541 2009-DD-BX-0249 5,639 5,639 0
Police Activity League-ARRA 16.541 2009-SC-B9-0162 4,704 19,129 14,425 0
Domestic Violence Prevention Board 16.588 WA-2010-LFUCG-ST-00166 4,979 4,979 0
Safe Havens Recovery-ARRA 16.588  VAWA-ARRA-2009 5,229 54,261 52,134 3,102
Safe Sun 16.588 /AWA-2010-LFUCG-ST-0 4,406 4,406
Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) 16.588  VAWA-2008-00046 2,666 (2,666) 0
Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) 16.588 \WA-2009-LFUCG ST-0( 11,704 30,529 18,825 0
Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) 16.588 \WA-2010-LFUCG ST-00132 15,792 15,792
Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE2) 16.588  VAWA-2008-00012 1,357 (1,357) 0



LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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Accrued Accrued
Federal Direct/ (Deferred) (Deferred)
CFDA Pass-through Revenue at Revenue Revenue at
Grantor/Program Title Number  Grantor's Number July 1, 2010 Received Expenditures June 30, 2011
Street Sales 16.579 .0-JAG-LFUCG-STRE-00655 36,201 99,877 63,676
Street Sales (Confiscated Funds) 16.579 .0-JAG-LFUCG-STRE-00655 21,472 21,472 0
Street Sales 16.579 JAG-LFUCG-STREET SALES 81,123 81,123 0
Street Sales (Confiscated Funds) 16.579 JAG-LFUCG-STREET SALES (11,334) 11,334 0
PALYEP 16.726 2010-JU-FX-0025 3,066 3,066
Total US Department of Justice (880,753) 3,442,450 2,972,246 (1,350,957)
US Department of Transportation:
Direct Programs:
Passed through Commonwealth of Kentucky:
Air Quality Planning 20.205 0800020840 19,124 19,124 0
Air Quality Planning 20.205 0800020840 947 42,248 53,053 11,752
Air Quality Planning 20.205 0800020840 8,000 8,000
Alexander Drive/Stone 20.205  P02-628-0600003013 6,640 11,006 4,366 0
Bike Projects 20.205 C-99006967 14,137 14,137 0
Brighton East 20.205 C-05031709 2,416 2,416 0
Brighton Rail Trail Bridge 20.205 P0O2-628-0900022378 15,869 15,869 0
Citation Boulevard 20.205 C-05396856 1,609,518 2,467,515 1,023,960 165,963
Clays Mill Road 20.205 C-03328686 4,740 502,332 820,894 323,302
Coldstream Trail 20.205  P02-628-0800015657 3,944 44,687 40,743
Federal Highway Planning 20.205 0900025284 168,171 168,171 0
Federal Highway Planning 20.205 1000005192 193,982 296,856 102,874
Fiber Optic Cable Installation 20.205  P02-628-0700013795 (31,502) (24,407) 249,476 242,381
Fiber Optic Cable Installation 20.205  P02-628-0900022383 2,049 2,767 718
Grimes Mill Bridge 20.205 C-05354512 7,288 7,288 0
Hazard Elimination & Safety 20.205 0340027001003 1,577 6,758 5,181 0
Healthway 20.205  P02-628-0900024481 262,231 336,950 74,719 0
Intelligent Tranpor. System (ITS) 20.205 900024330 33,154 32,400 (754) 0
Intelligent Tranpor. System (ITS) 20.205 1000001289 7,615 312,223 339,935 35,327
Intelligent Tranpor. System (ITS) 20.205 1000002782 5,977 5,977
Liberty Road/Todds Road 20.205 C-00021586 200,336 205,661 3,732 (1,593)
Liberty Road/Todds Road 20.205 C-04073306 64,437 4,676 59,761
Loudon Avenue Project 20.205 C-02279716 400,993 335,931 65,062
Maine Chance 20.205 P0O2-628-0700013769 10,678 121,354 110,676
Maxwell Bike Ped 20.205 P0O2-628-0700008015 49,102 53,263 4,161
Newtown Landscape 20.205 P0O2-628-0800015658 1,800 7,800 6,000
Newtown Pike 20.205 C-00343167 433,803 459,032 62,205 36,976
Newtown Pike 20.205 C-01261650 962,357 1,148,463 1,093,499 907,393
Newtown Pike Supplement #2 20.205 076-2011 12,333 12,333
Reversible Lanes 20.205 P0O2-628-0600003022 137,795 137,795 0
Share The Road 20.205 P0O2-628-0900022380 12,872 14,228 1,356 0
South Elkhorn Bike 20.205 KYTC Item 7-229 1,280 3,520 2,608 368
South Limestone 20.205 800015399 9,360 23,760 14,400 0
Tates Creek Sidewalks 20.205 P0O2-628-0900022382 75,821 84,984 9,163
Town Branch 20.205 C-02182950 109 24,354 24,245 0
Traffic Control 20.205  P02-625-0700012692 97,426 97,426 0
Versailles Road Corridor 20.205 P0O2-628-0600003375 24,991 24,991 0
West Hickman 20.205 C-04482975 111,061 242,640 353,701
MCSAP 20.218 M-00800718583 20,406 73,572 53,166 0
MCSAP 20.218 No Number 13,604 13,604
Tact 20.218 No Number 24,574 24,574 0
Fed Transit Admin Section 5303 20.505 GO3MP03Z 8,593 8,593 0
Fed Transit Admin Section 5303 20.505 KY-80-0003-02 35,835 43,975 8,140
Mobility Office 20.505 MA-0800020840 2,397 2,397 0
Mobility Office 20.505 MA-0800020840 71,761 71,775 14 0
Mobility Office 20.505 MA-8418201N 38,574 90,392 51,818
Traffic QC 20.600 K9-11-06 8,896 10,000 1,104
Traffic Safety 20.600 AL-10-20 10,287 22,550 12,263 0
Traffic Safety 20.600 AL-11-23 90,648 99,036 8,388
Traffic Safety Supplement 20.600 K2-10-31 25,000 25,000 0
Traffic Safety Supplement 20.600 K2-11-46 23,380 23,380
Traffic SP 20.600 PT-11-26 20,527 24,231 3,704
Total US Department of Transportation 4,694,032 7,154,184 5,071,328 2,611,176
US Environmental Protection Agency:
Direct Programs:
Environmental Justice 66.604 EQ-95416209-1 3,212 19,444 16,232 0
South Elkhorn Pump Station 66.604 XP-95438509-0 752,632 1,090,229 387,890 50,293
Brownfield Assessment Project 66.818 BF-95461610-0 950 17,219 16,269
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Accrued Accrued
Federal Direct/ (Deferred) (Deferred)
CFDA Pass-through Revenue at Revenue Revenue at
Grantor/Program Title Number  Grantor's Number July 1, 2010 Received Expenditures June 30, 2011
Passed through Commonwealth of Kentucky:
Radcliffe Road Drainage 66.458 A2-09-09 237,000 237,000 0
StreetKia 66.458 A029-08 2,464,117 2,620,000 155,883 0
Wolf Run 66.460 €9994861-09 1,552 36,883 55,199 19,868
South Elkhorn Pump Station - KIA 66.458 A09-01 13,766,388 14,090,151 323,763
Total US Environmental Protection Agency 3,458,513 17,770,894 14,722,574 410,193
US Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct Programs:
Runaway Youth 93.623 04CY0792/03 (2,000) (2,000) 0
Runaway Youth 93.623 90CY236401 (18,236) 14,379 32,615 0
Runaway Youth 93.623 90CY236402 77,309 118,468 41,159
Passed through Commonwealth of Kentucky:
Senior Citizens 93.044  AS-2010-2011-2015 89,078 89,078 0
Local Governance-Cab for Families 93.558 PON2 736 0800008771 16,499 16,499 0
Mentoring-Cab for Families 93.558 PON2 736 0800008771 9,802 9,802 0
New Chance-Cab For Families 93.558 PON2 736 0800008771 82,705 82,705 0
New Chance-Cab For Families 93.558 PON2 736 1000001491 384,158 422,257 38,099
Home Network 93.597  2008-2009-PUBLIC-R (163,588) 163,588 0
Home Network 93.597  2009-2010-PUBLIC-R (129,649) 77,870 153,653 (53,866)
Home Network 93.597  2010-2011-PUBLIC-R 252,108 (252,108)
Total US Department of Health and Human Services (204,467) 1,001,908 979,659 (226,716)
US Department of Homeland Security Office of Domestic Preparedness:
Passed through Commonwealth of Kentucky:
Flood Mitigation Assistance 97.029 PON209509000115091 73,849 73,849 0
Hazard Mitigation Grant Prog.(HMGP_Plan ~ 97.039 PON209511000015691 607 607
Hazard Mitigation Grant Prog.(HMGP_Shan) 97.039 PON209511000007591 167,206 759,647 592,441
Hazard Mitigation Grant Prog.(HMGP_South) 97.039 PON209511000014261 1,935 745,219 743,284
Sugarmill 97.039 PON2-095-0600003029- 671,248 1,019,604 478,569 130,213
Chemical Stockpile Emergency (CSEPP) 97.040 PON2 0700005552 3,648 16,088 12,440 0
Chemical Stockpile Emergency (CSEPP) 97.040 PON209508000112861 88,344 105,668 105,521 88,197
Chemical Stockpile Emergency (CSEPP) 97.040 PON209510000009491 10,209 183,755 265,630 92,084
Chemical Stockpile Emergency (CSEPP) 97.040 PON209511000014051 547 547
Emergency Management Assistance 97.042 PON209510000004871 65,954 106,221 40,267 0
Emergency Management Assistance 97.042 PON209511000006691 80,794 80,794
Search and Rescue 97.042 90ON209511000020731 13,062 13,062 0
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 EMW-2009-FO-06135 7,890 7,890
Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG_IFE) 97.044 EMW-2009-FP-01190 3,200 3,200 0
Fire Prevention & Safety 97.044  EMW-2008-FP-00190 1,233 1,210 (23) 0
Bomb Squad 97.067  P0209409000231341 20,904 120,573 99,669 0
Bomb Squad 97.067  P0O209411000022141 69,691 82,708 13,017
Critical Infrastructure 97.067  P0209408000212151 2,372 2,372 0
Hazard Devices 97.067  P0O209410000025171 64,459 80,656 16,197 0
State Homeland (FIRE) 97.067 P02 094 1100002237 1 17,207 17,207
State Homeland Dive 97.067 P02 094 1100002216 1 1,539 1,539
State Homeland Police 97.067 P02 094 1100002230 1 18,818 18,818 0
State Homeland Security 97.067 P02 094 0800020862 1 55,319 55,319 0
State Homeland Security (FIRE) 97.067 P02 094 1000002544 1 116,898 116,898 0
State Homeland Security (TRAINING) 97.067 P02 094 1000002541 1 79,306 79,187 (119) 0
State Homeland Security Communications 97.067 PO2 094 0800020544 1 107,484 107,484 0
Metro Medical Response System (MMRS) 97.071 PON2 094 0800020954 1 44,436 77,044 32,608 0
Metro Medical Response System (MMRS) 97.071 PON2 094 1000002389 1 137,852 249,732 111,982 102
Metro Medical Response System (MMRS) 97.071 PO2 094 1100002296 1 24,126 35,290 11,164
Total US Dept. of Homeland Security Office of Domestic Preparedness 1,362,182 2,693,698 3,110,602 1,779,086
US Department of Energy:
Direct Programs:
Energy Efficiency & Conservation Bl.Grt (EEBCG_R) 81.128 DE-EE0000728 18,572 785,673 826,067 58,966
Total US Department of Energy 18,572 785,673 826,067 58,966
Total Federal Financial Assistance $9,509,687 $39,491,580 $33,807,825 $3,825,932

Note:

Per generally accepted accounting principles, grant revenues received but not earned with purpose restrictions only are recognized as revenues and

fund balance in the financial statements.
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are established to account for the acquisition, operation and maintenance of the
Government's facilities and services which are entirely or predominantly self-supported by user charges or
where the Government has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and
net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability and
other purposes.

The Right of Way program was established in 2003 to account for fees levied to monitor and manage
public facilities located in public rights-of-way.

The Extended School Program was established in 1994 to provide before and after school care for
children in participating elementary and middle schools.

The Prisoners’ Account System was transferred to the Government in 1994 and accounts for the
operations of the commissary at the Fayette County Detention Center.

The Enhanced 911 Fund was established in fiscal year 1996 to account for the revenues and expenses of
developing and operating an enhanced 911 system.

The LexVan Program was transferred effective July 1, 2003 from the Transit Authority to the
Government to provide commuter van pool service to the Lexington metropolitan area.

The Small Business Development Fund was established in fiscal year 2000 to promote and assist the
growth and development of business concerns. This program was previously administered by the Urban
County Development Corporation, a component unit of the Government, which was dissolved in March
2000.

The Stormwater Fund was established in fiscal year 2009 to account for the revenues and expenses of
developing and operating storm water related activities.
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Investments
Receivables:
User Fees Receivable
Other Receivables

Less Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Internal Balances
Inventories and Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Land
Land Improvements
Sewer Lines
Vehicles, Equipment, and Furniture
Intangibles
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Construction in Progress
Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts, Contracts and Retainage Payable
Accrued Payroll
Internal Balances
Compensated Absences
Bond Payable Current
Interest Payable
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Bond Payable Non Current
Compensated Absences
Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Extended Prisoners' Small
Right of School Account Enhanced LexVan Business
Way Program System 911 Program  Development  Stormwater Total
$476,200 $71,253 $252,064 $183,774  $171,226 $131,761 $5,927,219 $7,213,497
1,400,743 34,509 985,410 2,420,662
798,265 798,265
24,775 515 95,813 1,676 35,867 158,646
(35,867) (85,539) (121,406)
157,133 650,359 54,952 862,444
23,880 23,880
658,108 71,768 252,064 2,330,689 227,854 166,270 7,649,235 11,355,988
358,185 358,185
10,000 10,000
1,368,773 1,368,773
56,650 94,530 188,900 1,615,487 19,999 1,975,566
152,726 1,382,184 1,534,910
(31,867) (73,383) (333,027)  (2,930,694) (23,221) (3,392,192)
70,332 70,332
24,783 31,147 8,599 66,977 0 0 1,794,068 1,925,574
682,891 102,915 260,663 2,397,666 227,854 166,270 9,443,303 13,281,562
1,079 17,999 298,115 37,037 574,072 928,302
8,319 74,179 54,664 83,595 220,757
5,666 119,644 281,813 407,123
5,912 1,078 36,432 99,557 142,979
56,898 56,898
2,194 2,194
15,310 98,922 417,759 128,133 0 0 1,098,129 1,758,253
1,281,741 1,281,741
5,912 34,745 36,432 99,556 176,645
5,912 34,745 0 36,432 0 0 1,381,297 1,458,386
21,222 133,667 417,759 164,565 0 0 2,479,426 3,216,639
24,783 31,147 8,600 66,977 455,429 586,936
636,886 (61,899) (165,696) 2,166,124 227,854 166,270 6,508,448 9,477,987
$661,669 ($30,752) ($157,096)  $2,233,101 _ $227,854 $166,270 $6,963,877  $10,064,923
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Operating Revenues
User Charges
Fees
Licenses & Permits
Gross Profit-Commissary
Other
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Right of Way
Extended School Program
Prisoners' Account
Inmate Trust Account
Enhanced 911
LexVan Program
Administration
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income on Investments
Interest Expense and Fiscal Agent Fees

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Income (Loss) Before Contributions
and Transfers

Transfers Out
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - July 1

Net Assets - June 30

LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Extended  Prisoners' Small
Right of School Account Enhanced LexVan Business
Way Program System 911 Program Development  Stormwater Total
$ - 8 -8 - $ -8 -3 - $11,596,442 $11,596,442
2,038,391 3,749,329 140,699 5,928,419
483,196 483,196
1,089,129 1,089,129
32,670 80 8,127 40,877
483,196 2,038,391 1,121,799 3,749,409 140,699 0 11,604,569 19,138,063
305,688 305,688
493,984 493,984
446,874 446,874
836,131 836,131
2,903,594 2,903,594
84,242 84,242
1,702,477 6,242,768 7,945,245
7,082 10,849 4,134 180,212 23,220 225,497
312,770 2,207,310 1,287,139 3,083,806 84,242 0 6,265,988 13,241,255
170,426 (168,919) (165,340) 665,603 56,457 0 5,338,581 5,896,808
477 90 14 778 171 527 (11,302) (9,245)
(14,093) (14,093)
477 90 14 778 171 527 (25,395) (23,338)
170,903 (168,829) (165,326) 666,381 56,628 527 5,313,186 5,873,470
(740) (740)
170,903 (168,829) (165,326) 666,381 56,628 527 5,312,446 5,872,730
490,766 138,077 8,230 1,566,720 171,226 165,743 1,651,431 4,192,193
$661,669 ($30,752)  ($157,096)  $2,233,101 $227,854 $166,270 $6,963,877 $10,064,923
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing on a cost-reimbursement basis of services
provided by one department to other departments within the Government and outside agencies associated
with the Government. Individual funds included in this fund type are as follows:

The Health, Dental and Vision Care Insurance Fund accounts for the Government’s self-insurance
programs for employee medical, dental and vision care benefits.

The Insurance and Risk Management Fund accounts for the Government's self-insurance programs for
workers' compensation, vehicle liability and physical, general liability and property damage coverage.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
June 30, 2011

Health Insurance
Dental and and Risk
Vision Care Management Total
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $140,400 $2,752,091 $2,892,491
Due from Other Funds 2,151,886 19,193,997 21,345,883
Receivables 174,683 174,683
Total Current Assets 2,292,286~ 22,120,771 ~— 24,413,057
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 94,286 75,178 169,464
Claims Payable:
Reported 9,591,099 9,591,099
Incurred But Not Reported 2,198,000 12,454,494 14,652,494
Total Current Liabilities 2,292,286 ~— 22,120,771 ~— 24,413,057
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted (Deficit) $ - 8 - $ -
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Operating Revenues
Premiums

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims and Benefit Payments

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues
Income on Investments

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - July 1

Net Assets - June 30

Health, Dental and Vision Care Insurance Insurance
and Risk
Health Dental Vision Care Total Management Total

$35,077,178 $1,818,171 $78,499 $36,973,848 $7,221,625 $44,195,473
35,077,178 1,818,171 78,499 36,973,848 7,221,625 44,195,473
35,019,760 1,877,736 76,352 36,973,848 7,994,145 44,967,993
35,019,760 1,877,736 76,352 36,973,848 7,994,145 44,967,993
57,418 (59,565) 2,147 0 (772,520) (772,520)
15,156 15,156
0 0 0 0 15,156 15,156
57,418 (59,565) 2,147 0 (757,364) (757,364)
314,871 (323,400) 8,529 0 757,364 757,364
$372,289 ($382,965) $10,676 $ - $ - $ -
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash Flows from Operations:
Receipts from Customers
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided
Refunds from/(Payments) to Suppliers
Payments for Claims
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Income on Investments
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used In Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Due from Other Funds
Other Receivables
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Claims Payable
Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

Health Insurance
Dental and and Risk
Vision Care Management Total

$36,973,848 $ - $36,973,848
(2,280,940) 10,079,589 7,798,649
87,940 (225,122) (137,182)
(34,775,848) (7,117,532) (41,893,380)
5,000 2,736,935 2,741,935
15,156 15,156

0 15,156 15,156

5,000 2,752,091 2,757,091
135,400 0 135,400
140,400 2,752,091 2,892,491
0 (772,520) (772,520)
(2,151,886) 2,923,865 771,979
56,266 (65,901) (9,635)
87,940 (225,122) (137,182)
(185,320) (185,320)
2,198,000 876,613 3,074,613
5,000 3,509,455 3,514,455
$5,000 $2,736,935 $2,741,935
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Government in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, or other funds. These include pension
trust, expendable trust, and agency funds. Individual funds included in this fund type are as follows:

AGENCY FUNDS

The Neighborhood Sewer Projects Fund is an agency fund that accounts for the collection of special
assessments and debt service payments on financing for neighborhood capital projects.

The Juvenile and Adult Probation Fund accounts for funds collected by the divisions of Youth Services
and Detention Services from juvenile and adult offenders and disbursed to victims in accordance with court
decrees and funds collected from and disbursed for inmates on work release.

The Domestic Relations Fund accounts for the child support payments collected by the Government from
non-custodial parents and disbursed to custodial parents.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 June 30,2011
NEIGHBORHOOD SEWER PROJECTS FUND
Cash and Short-Term Investments $43,252 $714
Accounts Receivable 17,496
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts (17,496)
Total Assets 43,252 714
Payable to Property Owners 43,252 714
Total Liabilities 43,252 714
JUVENILE AND ADULT PROBATION FUND
Cash 348,355 331,363
Total Assets 348,355 331,363
Accounts Payable 348,355 331,363
Total Liabilities 348,355 331,363
DOMESTIC RELATIONS FUND
Cash 314,745 314,740
Total Assets 314,745 314,740
Accounts Payable 314,745 314,740
Total Liabilities 314,745 314,740
TOTALS - AGENCY FUNDS
Cash and Short-Term Investments 706,352 646,817
Accounts Receivable 17,496
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts (17,496)
Total Assets 706,352 646,817
Liabilities 706,352 646,817
Total Liabilities $706,352 $646,817
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deductions June 30,2011
NEIGHBORHOOD SEWER PROJECTS FUND
Cash and Short-Term Investments $43,252 $714 $43,252 $714
Accounts Receivable 17,496 17,496 0
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts (17,496) 17,496 0
Total Assets 43,252 18,210 60,748 714
Payable to Property Owners 43,252 719 43,257 714
Total Liabilities 43,252 719 43,257 714
JUVENILE AND ADULT PROBATION FUND
Cash 348,355 39,820 56,812 331,363
Total Assets 348,355 39,820 56,812 331,363
Accounts Payable 348,355 39,820 56,812 331,363
Total Liabilities 348,355 39,820 06,812 331,363
DOMESTIC RELATIONS FUND
Cash 314,745 5 314,740
Total Assets 314,745 0 5 314,740
Accounts Payable 314,745 5 10 314,740
Total Liabilities 314,745 5 10 314,740
TOTALS - AGENCY FUNDS
Cash and Short-Term Investments 706,352 40,534 100,069 646,817
Accounts Receivable 17,496 17,496 0
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts (17,496) 17,496 0
Total Assets 706,352 58,030 117565 646,817
Liabilities 706,352 40,544 100,079 646,817
Total Liabilities $706,352 $40,544 $100,079 $646,817
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NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

The Lexington Transit Authority is authorized to promote and develop mass transportation, including
acquisition, operation and extension of the existing mass transit system.

The Lexington Public Library provides educational, informational and recreational service needs to
Lexington and Fayette County through circulating and reference materials.

The Lexington Convention and Visitors Bureau promotes recreational, convention and tourist activity in
Fayette County.

The Downtown Development Authority acts as an agency of the Government in various economic
development, redevelopment, and physical improvement activities associated with downtown.

The Parking Authority of Lexington acts as an agency of the Government in the provision, maintenance

and operation of parking facilities, structures, and meters along with the enforcement of non-moving traffic
violations.
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables:
Accounts Receivable
Other
Due from Other Governments
Inventories
Prepaid Items
Pension Assets
Restricted Current Assets:
Cash
Investments
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable (Net)
Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts, Contracts Payable and
Accrued Liabilities

Due to Primary Government

Due to Component Units

Unearned Revenues and Other

Non-Current Liabilities:

Due Within One Year
Compensated Absences
Bonds and Notes Payable

Due in More Than One Year
Compensated Absences
Bonds and Notes Payable

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in Capital Assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for:
Pension
Governmental and Program Funds
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

June 30, 2011

Lexington Lexington Lexington
Transit Public Convention and
Authority Library Visitors Bureau
$9,125,046 $2,468,427 $1,090,887
4,567,941
23,776 67,668 1,101,943
147,441
6,532,003
957,270 16,659
1,212,860 78,684 54,802
533,940 146,619
993
600,000
4,230,957 4,017,023 13,514
16,929,468 16,601,129 44,618
135,297
39,692,761 28,082,788 2,923,416
3,749,130 639,140 84,388
305,239
172,157
993
144,172 318,287 68,000
323,013
268,343
7,452,097
4,466,884 8,732,537 325,538
21,160,425 12,843,042 58,132
533,938
171,408
13,531,514 6,335,801 2,539,746
$35,225,877 $19,350,251 $2,597,878
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Downtown Parking Total Nonmajor
Development Authority of Component
Authority Lexington Units
$9,586 $917,678 $13,611,624
4,567,941
1,193,387
8,879 156,320
6,532,003
973,929
762 8,522 1,355,630
680,559
993
600,000
8,261,494
417,095 33,992,310
135,297
10,348 1,352,174 72,061,487
3,727 117,021 4,593,406
2,602 268,390 576,231
172,157
993
3,000 1,277 534,736
323,013
649 1,277 270,269
7,452,097
9,978 387,965 13,922,902
417,095 34,478,694
533,938
171,408
370 547,114 22,954,545
$370 $964,209 $58,138,585
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NONMAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Lexington Transit Authority
Transit Operations $21,047,573 $2,877,165 $5,011,837 $4,603,772
Depreciation 1,947,802
Total Lexington Transit Authority 22,995,375 2,877,165 5,011,837 4,603,772
Lexington Public Library
Library Operations 12,180,347 770,180 851,030 105,000
Depreciation 1,223,164
Total Lexington Public Library 13,403,511 770,180 851,030 105,000
Lexington Convention and Visitors Bureau
Convention and Tourism Operations 5,904,875
Depreciation 22,895
Total Lexington Convention and Visitors Bureau 5,927,770 0 0 0
Downtown Development Authority
Downtown Design Center 209,833
Total Downtown Development Authority 209,833 0 0 0
Parking Authority of Lexington
Parking Operations 907,298 1,444,744
Depreciation 77,936
Total Parking Authority of Lexington 985,234 1,444,744 0 0
Total nonmajor component units ~$43521,723° $5,092,089 $5,862,867 $4,708,772
General Revenues:
Taxes

Payment from/to Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Income on Investments
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets
Miscellaneous
Total General Revenues
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, July 1
Adjustment to Opening Net Assets (Note 2D)
Net Assets - Restated, July 1
Net Assets, June 30
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Net (Expenses) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Total
Lexington Lexington Lexington Downtown Parking Nonmajor
Transit Public Convention and Development Authority of Component
Authority Library Visitors Bureau Authority Lexington Units

($8,554,799) ($8,554,799)
(1,947,802) (1,947,802)
(10,502,601)
($10,454,137) (10,454,137)
(1,223,164) (1,223,164)
(11,677,301)
($5,904,875) (5,904,875)
(22,895) (22,895)
(5,927,770)
($209,833) (209,833)
(209,833)
$537,446 537,446
(77,936) (77,936)
459,510
(10,502,601) (11,677,301) (5,927,770) (209,833) 459510 ~— (27,857,995)
15,500,288 13,287,501 5,680,598 34,468,387
234,700 (57,564) 177,136
7,600 99,683 12,182 9 1,443 120,917
7,702 (1,099) 6,603
749,868 9,641 7,676 767,185
15,507,888 13,394,886 6,442,648 243,251 (48,445) 35,540,228
5,005,287 1,717,585 514,878 33,418 411,065 7,682,233
30,527,259 17,632,666 2,083,000 (33,048) 553,144 50,763,021
(306,669) (306,669)
30,220,590 50,456,352
~ $35225877 19,350,251 $2,597,878 $370 $964,209 ~ $58,138585
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STATISTICAL SECTION



The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures and required supplementary information says about the Government’s overall financial health.
Financial Trends: Tables1 -6

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Government’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity: Tables 7 — 12

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Government’s most significant
local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity: Tables 13 - 17

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
Government’s current level of outstanding debt and ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic & Economic Indicators: Tables 18 — 20
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the Government’s financial report relates to the services the Government provides
and the activities it performs.

Operating Information: Tables 21 —24
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the

information in the Government’s financial report relates to the services the government provides
and the activities it performs.

128



JusWUIBA0D AJuno) uegln aneAe-uoibuixa ‘soueUIH JO JuswLedaq :82IN0S

‘7€ 9Sv9 031 uensind ‘ainjonansesgul Buipnjoul ‘siasse [ended jje pauodas 9N Jeak 1siiy Yy sem 9002

176'T6L'9ET'TS  TEE'Z90'6LT'T$  2L0'6€6'022'T$  690'8rT1'092'T$  LvG'8E6IE'TS  6¥6'007'9TE'TS  260'08ECH$ 126'2.6'T0V$ ZrE'v0S'2LES G0T'8£6'656$
(526°620°21) 900'20L%T 00£ 6 £66'GYS'0€ 1028287y 888'7/Y'T9 €/ETIT'SE £95'889'GT 0T6'680'8 0S8'69£°CT
8.¥'702'c8 1T6'¥SL'E T/2'9€6'0€ €eT'TLE'9T 9/1'2€8'65 210'GL0'Sy 008'700°GE G9/'828'2¢ 1G6065°€E £9¥'65.'12
PPP'ETS'0ET'T  80V'S09'09T'T  TOG'8S0'68T'T  €¥6'0S2'€0Z'T  0.G°2/2Z'0TZ'T  686'0S8'602'T  616'ST2TLE £65'G57'€5E T87'€28°0€¢E 261'828'6T€
165'2£6'262 195'179'682 2€0'6v€'982 0T2'251'88¢2 989'825'862 8/T'697'162 821°€00'€82 €01'8£9'9/2 €9Y'8LT'67C G/E'T62'2hT
€92'/66'2€ 900'20L'7T 7€0°66€'L €1G'ST9'vC 228'020'vT ¥08'780'TT 208'7€9'S (81€'702) (526'€66'9) (095'€5'G)
09.'€99°0S 860'6v2'SE 6£8'089'7C (A4 TARZA 9/2'%16'6€ T¥6'G9S V€ G0£'889'cE ¥6T'GLG'TE ¥70'2GE'TE G29'EVY'vT
895'9/2'602 £9%'999'6€2 61692752 GTZ'L0v'6€ET 885'€65 772 €€7'818'hC 120'089'€¥Z 128'192'Sv2 Y¥€'028'v2e 0TE'T6€'€22
9GE758'Er8 ¥9.'vv7'688 0v0'0657E6 658'G66 7.6 198'607'9T0'T T/LTE6'720T  ¥96'9LE'6ST 8TCvE€'SeT 6/8'G28'€2T 0£L'9v9'LTT
(8€z°€20°0TT) (CIRETA)) 027'026'S 6/€°208°0€ ¥80'06€'0G T1/5'925°6¢2 188'268'GT G£8'€80°GT 0TY'€T6'LT
8TL'079'2E (18T'v6¥'1€) 2€7'52'9 TTL'T92'C 005'8T6'6T TET'605'0T G6Y'9TE'T T15'€52'T 106'8€2'C 8£8'G62'C
9/8'9€Z'126$ G76'866'026% Z7E'68L'VE6S 821'€28'€96%$ 286'€89'G96% 955'2€0'796% 868'¢€5'82T$ 99/'/81'80T$ LET'E00'90T$ 287'LEV'96$
1102 0102 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 7002 €002 2002
Jea A |edslq

S19SSE 18U JuawuIaA0b Arewnd [e10]
paloLIsaIun

paloLIsay

109p Pale|al 40 18U ‘S)1assy [eiideD Ul JusWISaAU|
JUBWIUIBA0SD Asewllld

S19SSe 18U SBINAIE adA)-ssaulsng [e10 L

(no1ap) parornsaIun

palLISey

1G3p Pale[al JO 18U ‘S}ssy [exide) ul JusWISaAU|
SaIANY adAl-ssauisng

S19SSE 18U SDIIIAIIOR [eIUBWUISN0B [e10 |
pajoLIsaIuN

pa1oLISaYy

109p palejal Jo 18U ‘s1assy [ende) Ul JusWISaAU|
SANIAIOY [EIUBWUIBAOS)

T37avl

SHVAA TVOSI4d NAL 1SV

S13SSV 13N

LNINNYIAODO ALNNOD NvEadN ILLFAVI-NOLONIXI

129



86'€21'805$ 090'682'08v$ 150'929'S/v$ ¥SG'€69'087$ 08E'625'€0V$ G9/'199'20v$ Yy1'111'€2ES 16.768'06€$ €1G'/28'/2€$ 869'622'862$ uswuIen0b Arewnd jeoL Q

[}
¥0L'LS6'EL 18T'TYe'2L ¥88'TTT'E9 888'T0L'E9 S9T'6.6'Sh SPE'STY v 9£S'6V T’ TV6'8Y9'LY ¥28'L2S'Sy 2.5'vS0'0F saniAnoe adAi-ssausng felol

180'082'9 £07'82S' Y SL6'TY8'T Jalemwiols
8e8'8 295' £7€'80T swdojanaq ssauisng ewS
we'vs v19'LS 205'€9 LYE'YS 822'29 cer'se 96207 SYS'LT weiBoid Uepxs]
908'€80'E 2E0'VE9'E 6VT'VIE'E 192'0/8'€ 616'250'C 265'20T'C 815211’ ¥IT'00€'C Sv2'059'T L18'8TY'C TT6 paoueyug
6ET'L82'T €25'Ter'T 951'829'T vZe'rel'T €16'€LC'T ¥02'€9E'T €69'2LY'T 60L'09€'T ¥80'€50'T TLE'€69 WasAS JUN022Y SIsU0SHd
0T€'202'C v18'95Y'C 1SE'EEE'T 22r'180'C €15'296'T €18'8/8'T S8E'2SY'T €0C'L8€'T Sv8'0€2'T 0€5'ST2'T weiBoud |004dS papusixy
0LL'2TE €8E'ETE 865'66C £zL'eee 210208 ¥82'262 ££6'992 ¥67'192 S99'GL Kem 3o by
529'185'9 T08'TY9'9 619'602'9 59€'0Se'L 8TE'TS9'T 8/5'T6€'T cIv'eee’y £Ir'eey's 29T'299'Y 979'288'% jpue]
926'906 006'226 66€'210'T LLT'E9Y 86T'TTS ¥v5'606 158'168 128'Tv6 256296 G9.'L66 Buptred a11and
SCT'TYL'0T 192'908'0T €0T'TL6'0T ¥62'6SE'TT €05'vvY'0T S00'SLT'CT ¥82'12T'CT T95'00S'€T 160'89S'€T Stv'9v0'6 san|Ioed d1qnd
085'2LY'2y 09€'eSY' TP 920'8EY'SE 690'595'9E T0S'€0L'92 S0E'€SS' YT 965'7SS'€C 8EL'LYE'TT ¥L2'61€'TC 820'008'02 WaIsAS Jomas Areyiues

DAY adAl-ssaulsng

¥v2'99T vEY £18'L¥0'801 L9T'v9S'CTY 999'T66'9T STZ'0SS'25€ 02v'2G2'€9€ 802'829'2.C 058'Gre'€8Z 6v.'662'28C 921'6/9'85¢ S3IIANJE [R)UBIUIBA0G [e10 ]
6.1'950'T 682'950'T 046'0v0'T ¥02'192'T 8ES'VYY'9 9v2'L56'S 152'709'8 J3YI0 - INBS 1920
LTO'TET'ET 9T¥'269'0T 9€Z'L8€'9 §66'L2L'S 697'8L€'9 215'T62'9 082'9€2'9 SOT'6€L'S 129'0v8'S 956'2¥9'S 199@ w13 1-Buo uo 1sasu]
62E'YY0'C spaloid [e1oads
199'8LT 916292 £79'81L'LC £9v'v0L'2E £7L'162'2E sa19uabY apISINO
892'L22'0T 672'T0'6 €T1'€08'0T 60T'€65°CT TPE'STT'C 98L'9v6'T 6TL'Tv0'C 0zZ'zy9'T 815'728'T 1£2'229'T JusLaBeuRI SIY pue meT
862'790'6T 905'02€'8T 907'556'6T ¥TL'196'T2 970'82Y'6T 086'6£L'9T 0£E'0V8'YT 9Ev'08E'ET ST8'2T0'VT TYE'LT6'ET uoneasosy pue sxed
869'2vCvT 8EZ'629'VT SE8'YY6'ET YrE'TESTT 2Tv's68'0T L£S'€6Y'8T 980'866'9T 662'2v2'9T 29€'vS8'2T €08'€€L'TT SDINIBS [eIBURD
188'2£9'0T €0L'9€8'TT 8ST'6TLYT €LT'26€'9T ¥08'€6Y'ST 8LV'6LE'ET ¥6€'625'0T 2rr'0L0'6 ¥69'T€6'8 S99'615'8 SBDIAIBS [BI00S
£90'00S'€2 ¥€0'9T5'T2 0TT'62L'v2 T€8'LV6'EC Auend [eyuswuoIAUT
218'728'T uonoadsuj uipjing
T8L'V0T'TE T92'768'0€ 6€€'0L9'0E 162'989'0€ 92€'820'62 816'6€5'8C (AN T4k 099'8L'vT 0£9'50S'v’2 L¥8'65'2C SU0NYALI0D ANUNWWOD
Trv'90T'29 000'9TT'€9 08T'2L0'99 09€'L6Y'8S 280'2ve'eS £70'697'LY 2rS'06€'6€ £75'TY8'9e 200°'202'9¢ 89L'2€9'vE sao1/Ies Aoushiew3 pue ailg
STV'YTLTL CLE'V69'0L 589'£0S'69 958'E€G'E9 159'086'9S 150'885'9S 859'02€"'LY 0LT'v6L'2h 99/'66€'Ey ££9'680'0% 3d1jod
S9L°29T'TT 189'652'TT TST'SYT'ET TL2'LTL'9T 865'L€6'TT v2'€9e'8 620'700'6 €9€'2€2'L 6L€'8L0'L 9zz'ves'e Aijes anjand
9EV'TLI'E9 960'T¥8'T9 885'206'29 204'569'TL 867'968'89 22L'66T'€6 §69'02€'SE 6£6'096'€E ¥05'v8Y'LE S¥0'LY6'6C SHIOM dlqnd
§59'G1S'82 £22'LY0'vT 618'8LE'ET ¥29'92€'CT ¥0Z'v9y'0T 127'629'9 050'029'9 879'9/8'9 912'082'9 652'81T'9 doueuly
9zzT'eTL'6 119'T9T'6 ¥2€'228 YT STE'9TZ'TT 180130 UOHBWLIO] J8IYD
LT¥'SSL'vE 26V'TTL'9C 112've8'se 90€'v9S'YT 8S0'TOE'ET 28T'OVL'YT 280'TT0'YT 060'265'0T TEV'08Y'0T 0£8'706'9 9dUeINSU UOISIA pue [ejusq ‘LijeaH
070'98€'T 28E'662'T 90€'STE'E 6£9'2€8'e 09Z'Svy've [443210k4 0zz'zes'ee 97.'8€6'8T L15'€66'vC S6T'780'7C S3OINIBS dARRASIUILPY
6EZ'L6T' VTS 1£5'92L'22$ 90€'90L'2Z$ 156'099'0€$ TLL'L26'EC$ 125'LL6'T2$ T2L'0v8'ees 800'€62'12$ 6E0'VYL'6$ BLT'ETL'ES JUBWIUIBAOY) [eJ8UD

1SANIANDY [BIUSWIUIBA0D

sasuadx3y

1102 0102 6002 8002 2002 9002 5002 002 €002 2002
Jea [edsly

(6ununoddy 0 siseg [eniddy)
SYVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
S13SSV L3N NI SIONVHD
LNIWNYIAOO ALNNOD NvadN ILLIAVA-NOLONIXIT
c3navl



JUBLWILIBA0D AIUN0D eI aNake-uojBuIxaT ‘aoueuld Jo Juswleda@ :89In0S

(v8€'0.2°2vS) (TrL'9.8'TvS) (266802 6€$) (817°062'SS) (2ov'29v'18) 158'020'7.8% TLT'L0V'0r$ 615'89v'62$ 1£2'995'21$ 2L£'508'52$ Juawiwianob Arewnid fero)
(esr'v1e’9) 092'6E 000°02 sanIANAY adAl-ssausng-juawisnipy poLiad Jotid
ev1'sez (821'559'21) sev'ler Lpv'802'206 (6vT'0rT'T) SANIAIOY JUBLIUISAOS - JUBLISNIPY PoLIad Jotid
L17'7ES'8 SE5'897°E (8L1°€08'T) (oLv'9L£°0T) 872020, 050'97'8 S2r'p9e'9 0v2'09'LT 880'288'9 688'502'2 e adAl-sseuisng

(165'5T8'GY) (8v7'06Y'2€) (618'50%'2€) (200'7TY'vY) (see'656'8) (0v9'8v9'9€) vL'Zv0'vE 88Y'8YT'E 6v1'619'S £87'665'8T SOINAIOR [EALILINOD
s3assy 19N Ut abueyD

29v'eeT'282 T.9°685'892 68L°€82°LLT. 01'968'6.2 087°€9T°L92 680°£E6'252 ¥28'TL2'66C 109°665'922 L118°710°8T2 15L'6.9'702 uawusanob Arewnd feloL
(2v0'0L9) (992'€702) 0L6'SvT 1BETYST S9T'/26'S 617'9.0C 29'889°C G21°295°0¢ 898288 98Y°ST saniAnoe adA)-ssauisng eoL
(888'6v2'T) (v58'2€L'T) (928°219) T€0'029 ¥50'80E'E (¥sz'09) €80'182'T €GE'9ET'T (81E'76) (019°228T) siajsuel]
000'092'8T Buipunyay puog
6vT'6E (269'T0%) 168'€6 90T'ST (g25'€81) 618'T 05€'6 185' vIE'T 1SSV JO 3les
269'075 82'96 §56'699 052'206'T €9'208' 58'82L' 626'L6€'T S8Y'299 98T'LL6 05.'058'T SIUBLUISBAU] UO BWOOU|
:s8NIANOY adA)-ssauisng
605'€08'282 1€6'285°042 618'LET°LLT €8EVSE'LLT GTE'982'192 0/9'098'052 29°€85'9€C 28180902 600°SET"LTZ 1€2'S0L 02 SeNIAIOR [eUBWILIAOE B10L
888'672 T vS8'LELT 9/8'LT9 (T€0'029) (v50'80€'E) 52029 (e80'82T) (eSE'9ETT) 8IE"6 019'2/8T siojsuelL
(088'9TT'2) 1955/ JO 30UBABAUOD
926'296 620228 LYS'29L £26'816 222886 656'280'T SN0BUR|[39SIN
(000'G8T'6T) Buipunyay puog
ZrZ'00e' (e88's) 09v'T79 915'L5% (298'T90'T) 0vE'956 8'62S 6v8'LSY €LL219'T 98T'28 SIaSSY JO 3[es
6€8'62T 6vT'008 015'708 602285 6921219 125'568'E 605'6€8'T 898'20S 195'708 YET'709' SIUBLUISBAU] UO BWO0U|
S95'SLT'T 612052 TE9'LLST 9vL'EI'T 818'92T' 6177922 959'05C STE'29G'E 821758 0€0'78L'T 1e19 20|19 Juawdojanag Anunwiwod
:swieiBold 914198ds 0} PajoLIsay JON SUONNGLIUOD pUR SIUBID
998'66€'v2Z 8€8'961'STZ £65'761'81Z 892'ST0'022 9€1'869'0TZ 0PT'298'26T S82'€L6'88T S5L'276'8LT Tr2'500'59T £1'090'09T SHWIa Pue Sa5UB01
60T'8v5'2S 66T'EVT'TS 6vL'T0E'YS S8T'SSY'TS 198'T6L'LY 196'688'v¥ L0L'68T'EY SZY'Y96'TY 99T'22T'0Y SbL'€02'L€ saxe) Apadoid

SANIANDY [BIUBLULIBAOD
1955V 18N Ul $3BUBYD 1310 PUE SBNUBASY [BIBUID

(9eS'vTv'61€) (v82°T92°162) (981°26°9TE) (8v2'189'7EE) (295°201°692) (629'6ET T82) (€59°'798'86T) (6.8°066'S6T) (0v9'157°502) (62€'728'82T) Juawiianob Arewnd o)
veSv02'6 T08'TTE'S (@rT6v6T) (€98'8T6°21) €80'€60'T TEI69E'D €90'929°C S18'68'9 0227009 SLETECL saniAnoe adAr-ssauisng
(090'619'82€) (580°€L0°€0€) (889'€VS'¥TE) (s8e'892'12€) (059'561°022) (01€'605'282) (912°'0v5'202) (v69'888'202) (098'557°112) (v52'50T'98T) SANIANOE [EJUBLIUIBA0D

anuanay/(asuadx3) 19N

TCIV60L88T  91/2SeBT  _G9CEBT6ST _ _Q0E'900'9YT €18'92V' VET 980'825'92T T60'€T6 72T ZT6' €06 VET €66'SLE 22T 6TE'5S8'61T JuaLIEA0 Arewid ejoL

822'29T'€8 886'255'LL 9€L'29T'T9 520'€8L'0S 8v2'2L0'LY 916'v82'0S 665'628'6 9SL'9vS'¥S ¥v0'2€5'TS 1v6'582'LY saniAnoe adAl-ssaulsng [eoL
YyL'SeT 0v8'LTT SOE'ETH suonnqUIUOD pue syuels Bunessdo
695'709'TT $0T'18S'S 892'89 JI3yemMuiIolS
88T V8E'ET 852'9 Juswidojanaq ssauisng |[ews
669'07T 060'T6 SY0'v8 09€'T9 609'9 (k4 weiboid ueAXxa]
60v'6v.'E 120'690'% 0TE'ESH'E ¥6€'129'C 2€€'e8E'T ¥92'698'2 TT6 paoueyu3
66L'T2T'T 0T6'ST6'T 62v'920'C T9€'990'C 982'0S6'T 9ST'2SK'T WasAS JUN02Y ,SIBUOSLd
T6€'8E0°C SPT'260'C T2T'808'T TLL'€02'T 605'022'C §56'V67'T weiboid |00yds papuaix3
96T'€8Y 2T0'6LY TLL'EOY 056'0TE SOL'ETY 62Ty Kem Jo by

0T9'€02'2 29L'0ve's LET'66V'8 022'955'8 £6v'0.8'L 159'666'2
¥18'658 20T'€02'T LE0'ELE'T £2526T'T 566'€6S 866'C0E'T

880'L5T'L TES'S0P'9 TL2T¥8'9 9€8'2E2'9 86€'06€'S 600°'TSZ'L 1984 211qNd
£65'€08'8Y S0E'0LY' LY 1¥€'509'9€ eey'ees'Le 1£0'66T'92 YY6'TLY'8C wasAs Jamas Areyiues
665'G28'6Y 210'Teh'vS Y02 YTV TS 2v9'zLE 9y $301ABS 10} S3BIRYD

:saNIANOY adA)-ssauisng

¥8T'L¥S'S0T 88L'%.6'V0T 625'020'86 182'€22'56 G95'¥SE'L8 OTT'EVL'SL 267'280'SL 9ST'2SE'08 688'EY8'0L 2L€'695'2L SONIAIE [BJUBWIUIBAOD [e10L
62.'8.0'L 665'vEY'0T £6€'9.2'0T 85’888, T8E'8ET'E €V6'67E'ST STL'0L6'CT £V2'9ST'ET r'L09'TT 182'810'€C SUoNINGLIUOD pue SIueID [ended
225'6V8'ET 219'26T'02 £88'TSC'ET S06'005'2T 790'886'T€ 266'162'6T 656'8£8'02 86€'T0T'EE T1L'08E'ce 99T'0€2'8T suonnquIuod pue suelo bunesado
8yv'eL ¥0€'S8Y 1810 - 30IAI3S 1990
0zy'ee6 sa1ouaby apIsiNO
L12'8T vrY'vE 82512 S€6'C SLy SYT'T uawaBeuRyy ¥s1 pue me
160852y €ES'T69'Y 956'T8E'S 855'995't TTT'02S' ¥ G62'8EE'Y uo1EaI0RY pue syed
868'L6 867'ETT ry'voT 650'TL 887'69 S30IAIAS [BJaUD)
ST6'2YS'e £L¥'8V8'C €6LVSL'E 62E'79E'E 95¥'7T20'C 9€6'SSE S80IAIBS [BI00S
166'90%'C 187'058'T £6€'692'T L0v'SST'e Angend [e)uswuoAug
TS€'620'L Y8Y'6TE'9 BVE'ETY'9 985'228'L 1£5'656'9 S6v'G66'S SUORVB1I0D ANUNWIWOD
80T'8LY'9 £16'T6T'9 0V0'€LL'9 ¥19'989'% TrL'99T'Y 08T'Sv9'e s301n8g Aouabiawg pue aii
or8'zor'e 886'200'C £79'TE0T 80V'¥T9 66.'60€ SEZ'880'T adllod
097'62€ 620ty T67'€07 000'28%'T 6YT'6TV'C L1S'v6E'T Kiages a1jand
8E€'880'Y 809'0LL'S 96'SLLE ¥17'88E'vT LT2'70E'T SSE'LS'T SYI0M 211and
£P0'SPT'E 110'208' 009'S8E'Y §¥5'925'T 96L'€€2'T 518998 30uBUI4
9.8'0¢ 89E'VT Yre'9s 006'LL 1391440 UONRLLIOM] JAIYD
LTY'SSL'VE 26Y'TTL'9C 112'v28'se 90€'795'¥T ¥86'L62'€T §19'9.9'7T UOISIA pUe ‘[eusd ‘yiesH
000'T 050'29T'2 1€2'148'T S80IAIBS SAIRAISIUIWPY
28E'YY9'STS ECT'TYS'ETS LTS'00E'YT$ 158'295'V1$ 1SE'80L'8S 8S0'€0T'E$ JUBLIUIBAOY) [BIBURD)
818°LL2'TV$ ST5'666'CES 9EL'506'GES 616'02€'TES S89IAIBS 40j sabreyd

SBIIAINY [EIUBWIUIBAOD

sanuansy weibold

1102 010Z 600¢ 8002 2002 9002 G002 002 €002 2002
1e3A [eds14

UIUNOJDY JO Siseq [en1ddyy)
('PIu02) SHVIA TVISI4 NIL LSV
S13SSV L3N NI S3ONVHO
LNINNYIA09 ALNNOD NVEHN ILLIAVA-NOLONIXIT

131



JBWIUIBAOS) AIUN0Y UBQIN aNake4-UuoiBuixsT ‘adueuld Jo Juswedaq :824n0S

"uolrewoul Jolid palyIsse|aal Jou sey 9N ‘2104aIaY L "UONISS [eaNsIelS Y} Ul AjaAndadsold Ajdde o) A1us ay) smojfe Juawaels iy |

G2/'795'Sv$ 110'7£8'29% 0/1'22£'92$ £99'680'7T$ 956'.G7'0E$ 672 915 7v$ 208'T92'€E$ 161'209'7T$ £28'2L0'€Z$ £vS'eee v
(¥8Y'7.6)
YrS'0TY
19%'9YS G8Y'9TT Z78'00T ¥8T'6TT 097'€TE £0€'562 €86'71S £67'62 GGY'69T'T 90'v62'T
1S2'760'2€ 158'212'9€ 256'8ET'9 (z€6'82L'€T) 212'288'rT 196'678'G2 8€6°0TH'6T 296'710'T 182'€88'S €16'T05'6
0L0'ZyL'€T Y16'LET'CT T/£'692'6 0T8'0LL'8 ¥60'68.'9 ¥26'STE Y 1¥8'98Y'E YIv'Zor's TL0'€S6'T
207'LTT'E
9/T'/SE'0T
69
699'20.'2T 297716, 0v0'0Y'8T YIv'125'9 G88'TV9'TT 1S6'6TT'6 688'0LL'6 £19'295'2T €IS'Y8Y'TT
2LLvey'0T 128'€86'SC T99'2/6'€E G68'860'€E 258'655'8¢C 19V VEL'ET G0T'T08'T2C GES'6388'6T 92Y'85v'8T T9E'987'0C
6TT'652°0C
229'181
1€0'Y
096'986'9T 161°2€2'8¢2 89T'GE6'TE 8€.1'2598'92 2LE'TLL'0T 182°1€9'LT G21'19T'8T 162'€6T'ST 290'02L'9T
229'vST 229'/21 10766 00L'St 50529 ¥59'208 668'€€2 TT0'T6T
GY2'Tv8's 882°219'S 92€'790'T YI'799'T G60'€96'C £TE'96L'E 9ST'6TY'T 0v2'1e0'e 882'G25'e
GE8'/8T'Ve ¥11'025'TE ¥16'62T €E 9791872 8YS 'S ey 8€7'888'L€ G60'T90°9€ €/0'009'62 92€'9€€°2C 882'8ET'22
09€295
8€£/'002'8T
000'TE6'E
181'E6Y'T
£87'90T'C 91'598'y 105'029'7 86C'€TL'ST 06T'vEL'LT T/9'89%'LT G90'2LT'CT YST'vL9'E L0T'6LT'Y
081906
209'7€9'6 082'920'2 052'¥68'c 0£8'798'c 09€°009‘c GT6'/GL'Y
69T'€26'C 69T9TT'C 612'€62'T 007955 £21'092'7 8T#'00'E 295068'C ¥55'658'C
695'0LY' VT 69S0LY'YT 029'6T2Z'€T LYT'¥68'TT 180'2.2'8 0T.L'966'S 95£'8/8'S 89Y'528'S 9€6'Gv7L'S
- $  €68'6T0'ZTS 0EV'LLT'2TS S ZALTA TOT'LE9'V$ 18E'SY8'7$ T7L'076'v$ v2T'eLy'es 28L'GVE'9$ 919'G65'7$
1102 0102 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 7002 €002 2002
Jea A [edsid

*TT0Z Jeak [easiy Ul ‘suomuiyaq adAL pund [eIusWUIBA0S ay) pue Buiioday souejeg pun4 ‘vG "N JUsWaNRIS 9SO 1awajduwi 01 paldss 9oN4T

[el0L
paubisseun
JUBWUIBAOS) [2JOUIS)

:0) paubissy
sjasfoid siues
s108lold [ended

spun4 anuanay [e1oads
Aiayes a1jand
SYHI0M 211qnd
110§ PaYoLISaY
a]qepuadsuoN
:u1 payodal ‘pareubisspun
paniasay
SpuUN4 [BIUBWILIBA0D 1BYIO |1V

leloL

paubisseun
s108[01d 891AIBS URQIN
110} PaloLISay
9|qepuadsuoN
pareubisapun
110Aed 1o} pareubisaq
panIasay
S9IIAIBS UBgIN

[e10L
paubisseun
uonezI[Iqels d1Wouod3
JUBWUIBAOD) [eJBUID
:01 paubissy
a]qepuadsuoN
payeubisapun
syuawisnlpy Aed 1o} pajeubisaq
1ended Buiopn Joy pareubisag
1101Aed 1o} pareubisaq
Aouabunuo) s1wouod3 1oy pareubissg
panasaIun
paniasay
pun4 [elause

€31avl

LNINNYIAOD ALNNOD NvEadN ILLFAVI-NOLONIXI

(bununo2ay Jo siseq [enJooy PalpoiA)

SYVAA TTVOSId NAL 1SV

SANN4 TV.LNIANNYIAOD ‘SIONVIVE ANNS

132



JUBWILIBA0S AUN0Y Uk 8x1aAe--uoibuixsT ‘soueul JO Juswipedsq :80In0S

‘saInpuadxa 301AI8S 1Gap 4O sleusuodwod 1saisiul pue [ediourid AJuo spnjoul 0} pareINa[edal SOkl Jeak Jolidx

%701 %L'6 %Ly %99 %€E'8 %T'L %Z'L %9'G %L'S %T'S
(2z€'281'TT$) €12'806'92% 2r5'€S8'1ZS (16T°228'62$) (662'589'7'$) 199'8LL'YT$ €02'2€T'L2$ y12'612$ (209'5€6°2$) (962'055'7$)
612'0T2'ST 989'22TH1T 9/8'LG'LTT (066'2€9) 2G5'6GE'T 128'885'SC 876'L8€'TC 795'280'9 817.'886'0T TET'Z88'ET

(552'085'1) (89T'0€T'2) 896'0TC 81Z'6€ 0€L'€8T T21'59 (z8L'8¥T)
665'L £18'v0 18T'Sty
000'02.'6T 000'STS'6TT 000'096'9TT 909'299'v 000'00L'v2 000'52€'22 0000659 00006101 000'ST#'ST
8GY'6LY'T
(ezt'eLL'e) (059'86'7) (697'029'€) (€27'800°2) (160'750'2) (e€T'2€T'9) (626'000'2) (¥18'956'2) (#€1'999'€) (989'761'2)
1S9'EY8'E ¥05'€2L'9 GYE'8ET'y €8Y'SLE'T 1€0'9¥L'E 18€'108'9 9Y8'6TL'S T97'028'T €0£'029'C 665018
(109'26€'92) (eT'yTZ'L8) (ve€'vzL's6) (19T'¥¥2'62) (T5€'5%0'9) (¥ST'0T8'0T) GGZ'ryL'S (05€'€98'S) (55€'v26'€T) (2z6'zer'8T)
626%99'L1€ 95/ °26V'vEY 8G/°1SE' vy ¥0T'216'/8E €99 T/6'TVE 165'662 22 £12'085'€62 952'T8L'V0E 0/6'€8L'26C TIv'v.1'G82
8£0'0T0'6Y €25'TV6'0L 689'GEY Sy v8E'SLY LY €88'T98'0€ 998'68€'TC 6GT°L26'CT 981'€88'LT 690'891'22 856'72€'2C
EY2'E0L'ET 215'607'6 286'G67'S 815'206'9 291'765'L €6Y'78€E"L 9€8'7€9'L 109'0ST'2T 269'716'TT 965'8VE"vT
000'5€0°02 000°0€Z'92 000°092'€T 000°0%29T 199'26.'8T €12'0€0'ST 12€'9ST'vT 82€'707'0T 6T2'TIL'6 89G'€YL'L
62€'v70°2
STE'YZ'6T 162'€21'8T 602'9€Z'6T 8v9'060'02 087'€T9'GT 870'9¥8'ST 957'9/8'8T 900°/85'22 209'€T5'2€ G85'0V8'TE
102'2€2'0T 198'22€'6 08.'158'0T 965'TSS'€2 G28'790'C 1€9'G/G'T 69.'798'T 997'0€9'T 62€'6/8'T €2€'9/5'T
0TT'€9.'GZ £YY'0LE'92 02L'9vZ'62 €1.'082'82 9050082 £62'612'0S 08.'969'+Z Y9v'15L'eT G16'0/2'ST 16.'095'SC
Y12'vrS'ze 1S¥'86€02 899'9/0'TZ TYE'THY'6T
¥50'207'8 £27'ST9'6 Y76'€29'TT L€1'900'2T TL0'LVE'ET LA A GET'68E'ET 166'29T'TT 165'626'6 818'882'6
912'255'09T 995°€€Z'T6T 9v0'268'L22 22L'26Y'€ST OvL'v9L'2rT 9T0'2€Z'LET ¥T0'20€'8TT 99/'ST€'90T 857'908'€0T S02'7vL'86
966'858'TC 928'%15'22 1€8'80L'1Z G9E'ETO'ET 0v9'258'vE 609‘0EY'0V 18'LV2' TV 18€'G/T'9€ €16'SEZ'2Y 220'.E'0
vS8'1L2'6 G9Z'6/6'TT 8788y TT 60T'T9S'TT 29%'068'6 188'GYT'L 8G7'€65'9 86.'88Y'9 2LY'8IT'9 ¥61'960'9
829'05'8 §02'282'0T 18T'99G'€T 2€£'616'6
¥05'602'T 505'860'T [ATAATAS GIT'SK8'T 8€L'TEV'ST 226'70T'SC ¥8€20'7C 6T9'726'62 TYT'E89'LT 9T2'T96'ST
095°Z8€'L £18796'9 286'T92°9 Y9v'TS'ET 6689029 6Y2'GE9'8 025'218'6 ¥29'0€€'TC 205°255'6 9/1'698'6
82€'7.2'TGE EVE'8LT LYE ¥2r'€E9'8YE £v6'2€L'85€ 21€'926'GEE 16€'681'TTE 897'72€'66¢C 988'/76'862 G19'658'8.C v8r'TrE'L92
£15'866'8 ¥86'886'6 8v8'826'L 117'SvT'8 1S7'09Z'L T12°18L'S €62 7YS'S €£6'0£C'Y 950°299'G £06'7S5'E
6£8'62T 671°00€ 015708 60.°285'€ GY6'/€1'S T9€'99€'E G85'0ZY'T €2T'ISY 2€0'€LL T0.'298'T
€97'189'C 61T 661 28¢'€08 T1.0'L85 €10'58L 0v€'956 T¥8'€2S 678'/SY GTE'8ET 98728
£5€'619'C EEY'VEL'T T25'60L'T 62€'8LT'C 62€£'952'C 96£'620'C 0T2'05v'2 6£8'992'C ¥29'1/2'C
£19'96 £66'T09 G/G'6.L€E ¥52'282'T 66T¥8S'T 268'€28'C 89Y'191'v 886'7S.'T 9eT¥SL'T 0/9'T9G
999'229'€€ 818'880'TH 68€'297'9€ GBE'/8G'GY GlY'6T7'ZE 955'¥8.'T€ GEB'TZE0E 261'08¢'Ly 0£¥'2€9'TY 188'692'8€
000'52€'2
67022 657892 S02'€0€E 681081 26T'LS £90'€Z€ Y0T'¥8T 0ST'SKZ 922'9€T 2€5°28¢
¥22'8ST'Ve 5002811 S0v'€L0'22 209'1G€'TZ 106'05€'22 1ST'8¥9'0Z 260'T95'TZ YST'6V1'0C 128'681'0C 9TY'¥0r'0Z
60T'8Y5'2S 66T'EVT'TS 6v2'T0E VS G8T'GSY'TS 198'T6L' LY 196'688 't 102'68T'EY SZh'v96'TY 99T'22T 0V GY1'€02'L€
257'918'82¢% ¥92'985'612$ 826'T78'222$ v56'7.8'v2e$ ¥18'092'GT2$ L9Y'€59'86T$ L11'98L'68T$ 269'€€S'6LTH 885'V/2'G9T$ 928'LT2'09T$
1102 0102 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 7002 £002 2002
Jes A |edsiH

xSaInypuadxa [eyndesuou

40 afejuaatad e se 331AISS 198Q

saouejeg pun4 ui abueyd 18N

(sasn) seaunos Buioueuld Jayo [e10L
panss| spuog uo (Junodsiq) wniwsaid

810N uonedidpuy puog

(Buipunygas puoq 40 18u) SpPaad0Id 193a

sajes Auadold
O slajsues
U] siaysuel |

(sasn) seaanog Buroueuld 18y10

sainypuadx3 (Japun) Jano

SaNuUanay Jo (Kouaidla() sseax3

sainmipuadx3 [e10L
[ended
J18U)Q pue 1s8I3U]
ledidund
1801M8S 199
s109(01d [e10ads
salouaby apisino
Juawabeue| Xsiy pue meT]
S3IINIBS [BIBUSD
Alend [euswuoiAug
S9IIAIBS [€100S
Kyoges o1jand
SHIOM diand
30ueUI
189130 uonewlogu] J31YD
S3IIAIBS SAITRIISIUIWPY
JUBWUIBAOD) [BIBUSD
saanyipuadx3

Sanuanay [el0L
EEliTe]

SJUBLISAAU] U0 BWOodU|
saes Auadoid

Yore welo
suopoex3
leluawiuianobisul
suonNQLIUOY [8307]
S31N}194104 pue Sauly
S32IAIBS 40} SabseyDd
saxe |

SHWIad pue Sasuadl]
sanuansy

y3navi

(Bununo22Y 40 SIseg [eniddy PaLLIPOIA)

SHVIA TVOSId NIL LSV

SANNH TVLNIANYIAO9 ‘SFONVIVE ANN NI STONVHO
AININNYIAO0O ALNNOD NVadN FL1IAVI-NOLONIX31

133



JUBWILIBA0D AlUN0D UegiN 8NaAe4-uoifuixsT ‘soueuld Jo Juswpedsq :924n0S

9v6'6T9$ (008'609'T$) 692'2v.'8% (970'599'81$) 621'GeL'v$ (609'852'T$) G80'v9v'S$ GE8'T./8'6% 9TT'SY.$ (STE'SEE YD)
¥S2'ev.'082 685292892 8Y2'er. 292 615'T66'16C 9/1°€20°092 192°/85°evC 101°189°/22 0£2'99€°602 1€€°212'702 /0T°500°66T
(¥59'202'€) (608'591'0%) (¥8€'259'8L) (105'589) 82€'202 798'0¥T 796098y (802'6L) (£90'186'T) YOv'€L6
692'T0L'€€ 902'6vL'LC 9£6'98€'6T 080°¢9T'€C 198'299'Ge 027'G85'TC 179°208°02 098'L¥¥°02 099'1S8'8T 82'09€'6T
€1€'GE6'9T 002'982'9T 0/5'€T6°9T 18L'e¥8'9T 608'v9¥'ST ZIS'6YEYT ¥85'852'8T G/0'818'2C 206'925'¢C SYS'9TY'EC
80€'209'6 196'T09'8 G26'209'6 ¥€6'2€0°02 800'Z8L'T 826'c26'T 219'9/8'T v2L'eT9'T ¥85°028'T v1€'065'T
GST'YTY'Ge T2T'Y9¥'9C 966'T0%'82 958'2€0'8¢2 291'81€'82 95'662'Ge 819'L16'VC 8v8'vr9'TC S08°0T¥'22 190'GEL'TC
L0¥'9 AYAS 902'€S 25%'20'2
0501089 SOV'6EYL £99'709'6 Sz A 998'/T9°0T 916'V/2'6 192'¢¥T'6 ¥80'T/8'L 16°065'9 109'v¥2'9
922'1T0'YST 185'816'€8T G52'GLT'612 9/0'8LL'9YT 06€'ZET'8ET 0ST'6L0'TET Ger'192'TTT 069°0£L'66 9TH'v0L'V6 879'8.1°26
Gp'829'9T £96'062'8T 8TT'86T'LT GTH'eS5'8T YS9'TLLTT LT¥'1€9°2T ¥€5'68€'2T 966'902°0T YT LIETT TL9'VS6'TT
685'9€6'L 16€'262'8 19€'/50'6 1€6'G56°L 286'SYL'L 190'952°L 2€€'ell'9 0T6'€L¥'9 1871909 LTS'TT6'G
118°028'L 116'99€'L 102°0T9'L G59°2TS'9
¥05'602'T G05'860'T ¥15'250'T 092'T80'T 687'9/2'GT 89€'285'GT G21'822'eT 0578587 T 95T'96€'GT ¥61'96.°0T
112'2/8'S 658'902°¢ T28'/6€'e 628°0SY'TT 120'870°'S £9T'85'Y G02'899°'¢ 108°089'€ 612'€15'S 8ez'ev8'y
002'€9€'182 68/°€ST°/92 115'S8V'T/2 £/%'92€°¢/2 S0€'87. V9T 259'82€2hT Z6T'TST'E€T 595'8€2'612 £5v°/70°502 261699761
GTL'6ST'Y 858°079°'G GY5'655°€ 126'902°€ /72°880°Y G6EErLT ¥90°€/8°T €T6'8ET'T GGL'E8Y'T 099°'TT.T
(18€'2) 106'29 02.'882 769'228'T Ir6'TL6'T €9v'1I8Y'T L09'€ES 6£9'06 82L'121T 20€'vee
8T€'G86'T v8L'ely 100'9¥9 268'76€ 1£5'59% GTL'6YE 9£5'9T§ 60.'8Y 8SK'6.7'T L19'€€
LTV TYY'2 G80'9ST'T 811'50%'2 0£9'GTE'S 0SE'eeT'Z ¥29'39%'2 0L9'8T¥'2 9€2'269'c v¥1'6.0'2 18L'TY6'T
€67'STC 0v0'292 865'0LC 659'LET 26T'LS £€90'€2€ Y0T'v8T 0ST'SYZ 922'952 2€5'28¢
650'780'7C 080°200°'TC 819'G96'TC 126'STE'TC v15'12'22 962'¢00'TC ¥56°092'T¢ v1¥'622°0C T6%°20%°0C 958'T/9'LT
G¥8'266°0C G¥6'222°0C FAZARINVA 6T2'605'6T 618°0ST'8T 999'0STLT 18L'T€L'LT 8G'622'GT 067 L¥S'YT T76'6€5'€T
vEL'98Y'L2T$ 960'€EE'8TTS 600'219'T22$ 1€6'229'€2C$ 719'G99'v12$ 0£v'S08'L6T$ 0.1'2€9'88T$ 9v0'€29'LLT$ T9T'T99'¥9T$ 160'750'65T$
1102 0702 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 002 £002 2002
Jea A [edslq

"S80IAIBS [e190S 0} Jajua) Bulures ) sJoAeln 8yl paaow 00z Ad Ul uoneziuebioal Juswiedsq (T)

aoueleg pun4 ul abuey) 18N

(sasn) sea4nos Buroueul4
J18y1Q pue sainypuadx3 [ejo L
slajsues ] Aunb3 jenpisey
sasn (s824nos) Buroueuld Jsyro
90IMIBS 1080
sa1ouaby apIsSINnO
meT
S3IINIBS [eJaUsD
Airend euswuoiiaug
S3IIAIBS [B190S
AKiages 211gnd
SHIOM d1idnd
aoueul
1891JJO UoleWIOU] JBIUD
S3IIAIBS BAIRIISIUIWPY

(0]

o) JUBWUIBAO0Y) [elausD)

(sasn) s8a4nos BuroueuiH
18410 pue saunupuadxg

Sanuanay [e10 L
1BYI0

SJUBWISAAU| UO BWIOJU|
sajes Auadoid
Jejuswulanobiau|
S3IN}IaI04 pue saul
$301AIBS 0} sabieyd
saxe |

SHWIad pue Sasuadl|
EIVEYEN|

S31gvl

(Bununoday jo siseg Areabpng)
SYVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
ANN4 TVY3INID 'FONVIVE ANNL NI SIONVHO
LNINNYIAO0D ALNNOD NVEdN FLLIAVA-NOLONIXIT

134



JUBWIUIAA0S AlUN0D UegJN aNaAe4-U0IBUIXaT ‘ouRUI JO Juswedag :82IN0S

€1€'9/9'G$ TT.'G6T'S$ 786'692'T$ (912'99+'83) 686'868% £G5'9£8'7$ 6.0'7TZ'S$ TG9'€€Z'9$ 07.'S6T'9$ 807'9£0'7'$
(vve'esz'y) (698'76€) (622°888) (G22°968) (557'016) (L12'67T'T) (zg6) (0ov'y) (¥10'T)
662'0T0'€ v16'€Sy T€E'18 TOV'€ES 000°0T 000°0T 000°0T
77688 ZIe LT S0E'ET6
(L6T'981'2) (69€'6062) (orT's52'T) (z88'90t) (822'6.2) 09G'56S (e0T'v085) (€8T'720'T) (Gze'8eT'T) (608'756)
GT9'GEY'6 676'667'8 GE6'656'C (068'e¥S'2) T/2'GSG'T 0/z'0zy's vET'60L'S 062'€TZ'L 191'172'L 216'L.0'Y
0ZF'ETr'6E 7£0'888'8€ ZTr'765'EE Z1£'9.0'SE 191'€v9'vT ¥19'TS0'€C 182'6V6'TC SLLWyI'0C v.T°9TE'6T €15'ST0'8T
096'7T2'L YY6'ETT L 9T8'€6£'9 95972179 TISTIE9 662'G2¢'9 905°€L£9 286'T62°9 vET'806'S 69€19.'S
€8T'EVC'8T 06€'7.6'8T G89'GZE VT 660'€80'ST 67£'982'9 00%'656'S €€7'200'9 G76'959'% 86T'TE6'E 627'LGS'E
v8T'PYS's 99T'262'% €98'L27'y 2T TIr'S 66T'982'Y 860'09.'€ zL2's8r'e 189'6.T'E eYT'8Y0'e 62T'T00'€
€60'TTY'8 1€5'205'8 8v0'LvY'8 SYE'YIT'8 804'652'L 118'90T'L 9/0'880'9 19T'919'9 669'827'9 985'269'S
GE0'6V8'8Y 086'L8E'LY LYE¥SG'9E 2er'2es'LT 8£0'661'9C Y76’ TLY'8 127'859'2C G90'856'22 TY6'€€5'9C G2r'e60°2C
6E€°9LL 088'8YY €62°€6 29%°08 TELTY G96'LY ¥02°0S 769°€6T oYT18T 0S8'T€C
01588 119182 ¥16'86T 866'CYE 6ES'ETS 962'09T'T 099'7/6'T G£0'8.8 096'928 219'S6T
69T'€2S'T 257'2L0'T ¥98'8v0'T 028'€22'T €15'629'T ITP'T99'T TYE'v8S'T 677'82r'T TIT222T 150°0v2'T
161'€99'Sv$ 116'8/5'Sv$ 9/2'€T2'SES ZrT'v88'sT$ G6T'VI0'vZ$ 992'209'52$ 9T2'6v0'vZ$ 188'1GY'S2$ v21'862'77$ 258'S27'02$
1102 0T0Z 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 002 €002 2002

1ea A [edsid

s1assy/ 18N U1 aBueyD/awiooau] 19N

INO siaysuel |

Ul siajsuel |

suonnqLiuo) [ended
(sasuadx3)/sanuanay BuneladouoN 18N
awoou| Bunresado

sasuadx3 BunesadQ [e10L
uoneroaidag
uonensiuIwpy

wasAS uondsj0D

ue|d Juswieal |
sasuadx3 Bunesado

SONUBASY [e10 L
awoau| 18YI0
suonoex3

$934 U0 de] Jamas
safiseyD 901AIBS Jomas
sanusney

931avlL

S3SNIdX3T ANV SINNIATYH 40 AIVININNS

NTLSAS 43M3S AUV LINVS
LININNIIA0O ALNNOD NVEdN FLIFAVI-NOLONIXT]

135



WBWUIBA0D AIUN0D uegin 8NaAe4-uoibuixaT ‘sourulH J0 awledsg 8203

"802°2ET dnielS pasinay Aonmuad Jad 900z ‘T Arenuer Jo se pajeadas sem arel xey Aladoud ajqibueiul 8yl ‘anjeA 19xew Iiey 9400T 1. passasse Si Aladoid :910N
GESC0 1€2'8L2'LC$ 1eC'8LT LTS L20'G.6'$ A ATA 8T¥'LLE'9$ 672'088$ 9CE'er0'ST$ 1102
GESZ'0 LEE'EVT LT LEE'EVT LT 909'9.0°S 0gS'T €€2'01€'9 856'998 015°2881T 0102
GESC0 T1S'29v'LC T1S'C9v'LC L18'€eL'S 915’7 291'612'9 8£.'9€8 81218971 600¢
¥692°0 ¥20'65.'S¢C ¥20'65.'S¢C SZ6'TE6'Y ST 690'068S €T0'618 ELY'ITT'VT 800¢
¥0L2°0 6EE'60E VT 6EE'60E VT €26'0£0'S ves'T 2L6'rY'S 216729 800°202'€T £00¢
¥0.2°0 6.2'129°C2 T06'GSC'Y 089'€88'9¢ T06'GSC'Y 906'GT9'Y 6€8 60T'0TT'S 06.'965 GET'VOE'CT 900¢
¥0L2°0 €29'090'T¢C €Cy'Les'e 970'885'¢ €ey'Les'e €20'GTEY 0LL 8152681 6¢8'655 €Cy'L82'TT §002
70620 8ET'9CT'0C 8EV'E8T'E 9/5'60€'€C 8EV'E8T'E 0€9'26E'Y 908 675'G69'Y L68'SvS 952'98%'0T 7002
S¥62°0 0S6'9€T'6T €€6'802'1 €88'GrE'EC €€6'802'1 6TC'€0E'Y 0.8 LIT'EVS'Y 169'59% 166'€28'6 €00¢
S¥62°0 GTE'8CT'8T$ 85€'€L0C$ €,9'102'0¢$ 85€'€L0C$ Zr9'eTe'v$ - $ SSz'9cE'r$ €55'9vv$ G98'TYT'6$ ¢00¢
(anfen passassy anfe/\ passassy a|qibuelu ssa [el01 a|qibuelu| a|qibue sybIy [e12J8WWOoD Swed [enuapisey Tea A
40 00T$ J3d) arey dlqexel [eol Jaquil L [easi4
Xe] 19911Q [e101L 79 [RJBUIN

L37avl

(spuesnoy uj)
ALd3d0odd IT9IONVLINI ® ‘IJ19IONVL Tv3d

JINTVA A3SSASSV 13N

ININNHINAOD ALNNOD NVEHN FLLIIAVA-NOLONIXIT

136



JUBWIUIBA0S) AJUNOD URgIN aNaAe4-uolBuixaT ‘adueuld Jo Juswuedsq :924n0S
"TTOZ J3quisnoN yBnoay) suonas||od s108148l TT0Z A4 2
"0TOZ Jea A [easi Jo) parepdn usaq aAeY SIes A Juanbasgns ul suondLjoDd ‘I
uoday Juswamas xe] sylays ayl Ag papinoid ereq 910N
%9°'66 €70'950°2S$ ¢ 9g0'cees %0'66 116'2EL'TS$ 0¢¢'v9¢'2S$ 1102
%166 €91'926'05 T 6.2'068 %/.'L6 ¥88'380°05 2TT'292'1S 070¢
%S'T0T 087'TS9'1S €9¢'2/8 %6°'66 LTT'6LL'€S ZrT'€e8'es 6002
%6°'66 €68'C0T‘TS 8€8'qe %666 GG0°//0'TS 086'8ET'TS 800¢
%0007 88€'C6C LY 829've %666 9Te'Sye' Ly €0g'28e LY ,00Z
%T'00T EET'VLS'VY 2T LY %9°'66 v8Y'Zve v €9/'92S' Vv 900Z
%/.'T0T 8T0'TY9'CY 679'TEC %€E'86 0LE'TTC'TY TEV'ST6'TY 500C
%/.'86 GEV'VLETY 879'62Y'T %G°L6 296°L/8'0v €9¢2'0€6'TY ¥00¢
%066 ¥6T°'209°6E €Lv'96Y %86 LT8'9TT'6E 6TE'/66'6E €00z
%Z'86 68€'099°'9€$ LLE'06V$ %5°L6 00T'6T¥7'9€$ 82€'05¢E'LES 200¢
>>w|_ JO 0p junowy SIea A >>w|_ JO 0 junowy Jea A |edsiH ayl Jea A
Ew:_uwmgsw 10J PaINaT] Sexe | |edsiq
3leq 01 SUoI193]|0D [€101 Ul SUondd[|0D AnaT Jo

Jea A [E3S14 U} UIYNM Pa)2a]|0D

831avl

SHUVIA TVOSId N3IL LSV

SNOILO3T10I ANV SIIATT XVL ALd3d0dd

INIANHIAOD ALNNOD NVEdN FLIIAVI-NOLONIXIT

137



WBWUIBA0D AlUN0D uegln anaAe4-uolbuixa ‘aoueulH 4O Juswpedaq :82.1n0S

*9]0A ]934 & 01 103[QNS SI %1 JAAO0 1UNOWE AUY "SS3] IO Upf 8C 1SN ‘SIUBLLISSASSE Mau Buipn|oxa ‘anuanal xe) Aladoid [eal Ul asealoul [enuue ay L

"S89IAIBS Ueqin [Ny uey) ssa| Buialgdal siaAedxe] asoyl 4oy paonpal aq
pInoMm sajey "SadlAIeS Ueqin 818]dwiod Bulaladal sieAedxe) oy SI 81el 19841 [€101 "81el 82IAISS [eIBUD) ay) 01 19algns ase Ajuno) aneke ul siskedxel ||V ;910N

TS60°T 00900 08200 ¥#000°0 2e00'0 02¢1°0 08290 GeSC'0 7600°0 0T200 TEVT0 00800 T10C
TS60°T 00900 08200 ¥#000°0 2e00'0 02¢1°0 08290 StAerAl) ¥600°0 0T200 TEVT0 0080°0 0T0C
0880°T 00900 08200 ¥#000°0 2e00'0 02¢1°0 0S09°0 ¥692°0 ¥600°0 07200 06ST°0 00800 600¢
68.0'T 00900 08200 ¥#000°0 T€00°0 0¥¢T'0 07650 ¥692°0 7600°0 07200 06ST°0 00800 800¢
60€0'T 00900 08200 ¥#000°0 T€00°0 08¢T°0 0T¥S'0 ¥0.2°0 ¥600°0 07200 00970 00800 1002
60€0°T 00900 08200 ¥#000°0 T€00°0 0TET'0 08€5°0 ¥0.2°0 7600°0 07200 00970 00800 900¢
08960 08200 ¥#000°0 2€00'0 0TET0 0S€S°0 ¥0.2°0 ¥600°0 07200 00970 0080°0 S00¢
00960 ¥#000°0 2€00'0 0€ET0 0€€S0 ¥062°0 ¥600°0 09200 0S.T°0 00800 7002
G/G6°0 0SET0 08250 S¥6¢°0 7600°0 TT€0°0 0S.T°0 06,00 €00¢
G856'0 09€T0 08250 S¥6¢°0 7600°0 TT€0°0 0S.T°0 06,00 200¢
[e101 uenxa Wawyedsg  UONEBAISSUOD ERINES Aonmuay |ooyas 122110 Buiues|d syb1 asnjoy [elausD) IEEIN

YjesH JEIIYY uoIsuIX3 o Auno) [e101 199115 199118 [eosi

%9 |10S Y)eamuowiwio) a119ke S9OIAISS URQIN
sajey buiddeano saley 10211d 9ON41
(00T$ ¥3d 3LVY)

63719VvL

SYVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
S31Vd XV1 AL43d0dd ONIddVTIIAO ANV LO03d1d
INIFNNEIAOCO ALNNOD NVEdN FL1LIAVS-NOLONIXTT

138



JUsWUIBA0S) AJUNno) uegin anaAe4-uoibuixaT ‘@aueuld Jo juswliedsq :92in0S

0TOZ Ul D717 3dS IIeIN 8nake 01 sweu pabueyod - aInjus A JUlor uolBuIxe

%9/.°2 002'162'GS€$ %86'T 00/'89€'TvS$ [e101
%02°0 6 000'000'GZ [eroueulS UoIBUIXaT
%120 8 00%'G.T'92 00 A8 UpL LB [eM
%120 L 006°26€'/L2 aIMuaA AD
%20 9 000'9TG'0€ UOIBID0SSY 819 UL
"oul MOHD
%92°0 S 00%'295'€€ "oul BUNOA 1 M
%6€°0 T 000'86.'6% x8IMUBA I0f U0IBUIX3T
211 mc_mmo‘_o UMOIWMBN
%020 0T 000'09.'tZ %ZT0 0T 000'00L'Z€ 27171 Sidy uedLIBWY PIN
%ZT'0 6 009'€.5'€E P17 S8.01S JalIs N
%ET'0 8 000'056'GE UI1ID >d0ipuoweld
%8E°0 z 00S'220'€S %bT0 L 00T'881'8€ ou| Aijeay |leg
%GT0 9 000°'000‘0¥ 07171 SAIND eze|d anakeq
%9T°0 S 006'0L6'tY 07171 928 [eAWpY JeA
%8T°0 14 002'7.2'8Y "ou| Ajeay usiebuIs A
%EE0 v 00S'S.T'ZY %02°0 € 009'908'GS "0U| [BUOITRUIBIU| YJBWXST]
%PE0 € 005'8.8'2Y %GE0 Z 00£'509'v6 seluadoud Jaend) yuno4
%EY0 T 000'000°2TT 07171 3dS 11BN 8nake
9neA juey oNnjeA 1174 quey InjenA sWweN
PosSassy s|gexe | [P9SSassy ajgexe | [poSSassy ajgexe | PosSassy s|gexe |
A1 18101 J0 % AuD 1101 J0 %
2002 1102

0T 3719vL

09OV SHVIA ANIN ANV dV3IA LNIJHAND
SHYIAVd XVL ALd3d0dd TVdIONIYd
ININNHIAOCOD ALNNOID NVEHN FLIIAVA-NOLONIXT

139



JUBWIUIBA0D) AUN0o) UegN a1aAe--uoiBuixaT ‘aoueuld 4o Juswuedaq :82inog

%S.C %050 %G¢'¢C 1702
%S¢ %050 %G¢'¢C 070¢
%S.LC %050 %G¢'¢C 6002
%S.C %050 %G¢'¢C 800Z
%S.C %050 %G¢'¢C 1002
%S¢ %050 %G¢'¢C 900¢
%S.LC %050 %G¢'¢C (o[04
%S.C %050 %G¢'¢C ¥00¢
%S.C %050 %G¢'¢C €00z
%S¢ %050 %G¢'¢C 40[014
[e101 Jooyas A&luno) anaheH arey IEYN

10211 90N41 [edsiH

SYVIA TVOSId N3L 1SV
S31Vvd 334 ISN3OI1
ONIddV1d3A0 ANV 103d1d
ININNHIAOCOD ALNNOID NVEHN FLIIAVA-NOLONIXT
171371avL

140



JUBWIUIBA0D AUno) Uegin a1aAe--uoifuixa ‘aoueuld 4o Juswedag :82inos

8 s19npoud uolew.oul NG|
6 pJepuels uedLIBWY
"ou] ‘puelysy

21u1]D uolBuIXaT]

SUOIRIIUNWWOD €7

aseoyyeaH 1sndeg

[endsoH ydasor 1S

(sirelw sueialoA Jo 1da@ Apiawio)) wisisAs B109y 79 adueulH asuajeq
1UBWUIBA0S AUn0) uegin anaAe4-uoibuixa

uo1eanp3 Jo pleog Auno) anaAeH

[euOIT_UIBIU| YJBWXDT]

Apomusy] 1o AlisIsAluN

o
—
o
—

AN M < N~ W0 O
AN M 0O O~ 0,

Juey 2002 Jqued TT0Z aweN

09V SYVIA IANIN ANV dV3IA LNIHHND
SYIATOHHLIM XV1 TVNOILVYdNIIJ0 HOIVIN N3L
ININNHINAOO ALNNOD NVEdN FLIIAVS-NOLONIXTIT
¢ranavi

141



JUsWUIBN0D) \QCJOO uegin wﬂw\?‘_u_-coumc_le_ ‘3oueuld Jo Juswedag .921N0S

'8002 J9)Je 3|ge|IeAR 10U Blep aW0dUl [eU0SIad
"e1ep uonejndod Joy /T abed aag

"SJUBLLBYE]S [B1oURUIL BU] 01 SB10U 31 Ul punoy ag uea 1gap Bulpuerisino 9N Bulpiebal sjreleq 910N
eu eu 6€9'8v¢ L2v$ 000'066'T9$  6E£9'€6ETIS - $ - $ - $ 000°G98'c0c$ TT0C
eu eu 000°0T8'v¥¥ 000'068'€9 000'59S'79 000°000'8 000°GSE'80¢ 0Toz
eu eu 000°G6G'2¢E 000°0.1'99 000'098'TE 000°G9Z'6¢¢ 6002
978 %Z'C 000'G.6'6¢¢ 000'S6T'89 000'ST.'SE 000°G90'9¢T 800z
006 %EC 000°060°'TS¢ 000'G88'89 000'001'6€ 000°G082PT 1002
2.6 %9°¢C 199'221'89¢ 000'G29'69 000'ST6'CY 000'0S. 199'¢. 000°09.'¥ST 900z
0.6 %L'C GEE'SYT'V9¢ 000'089'T. 000'09S°9Y TOv'evL 4 WAT4 000°G06'PPT 5002
896 %8¢ GGC'v.16'09¢ 000°0v6'€. 000°0170°'0S GGe'vey 000°09G'9€T ¥00Z
T20'T %T'E G8G'8TE'elC 000'02¢'86 000'G.E'€S G8G'EYS'T 000'G8¢ 000'G6.'6TT €00z
€90'T %E'E G//'9T12'182$ 000'0€.'€0T$ TES'0TL'9G% - $  PPC'166'T$ 000'G88% 000°006°'LTT$ 200¢
ende) awoau| 1USWUIBA0D) spuog spuog S9I0N 3|geAed SBION  SpUOg anuUaASY Sasea] TN
1ad198@ [euos.ad Arewld e101 anuanay anuanay uonedidnuy  ANUBAJY 8SeaT] abebLIoN ‘saloN ‘spuog [easi
JUSWIUIBA0D) 10 % abebuon puog uonebigo
Arewid [eJaus

SaIANOY adA1-ssaulsng

SANIANDY [RIUSWIUISA0D)

€T 31avl

SHVIA TVOSId N3L LSV

JddA1l A9 193d ONIANVLS1LNO 40 SOILVY
ININNHIAOD ALNNOD NVEdN FL1IIAVI-NOLONIXT

142



1UsWUIBA0S) AUNno) uegun andAe4-uoibuixaT ‘aaueuld Jo Juswliedsq :92in0S

8007 Ja1Je a|qe|IeAR 10U Blep aWO09ul [eU0SIad
erep uonendod Joy 0GT abed pue arep anjea Ausdoud Jo) ofT abed aas
"SJUBWIAJEIS [e1oURULY 3] O}

S3]J0U 3y} Ul punoy aq ued 1gap Buipueisino 9N47 Buip.sebai sjrereg

eu %IT'T 000'598°€0€$
eu %YT'T 000'G5€80¢€
€Ll %€80 000'G92'62¢
VA% %670 000'G90°9¢T
¢18 %650 000'508°2YT
T9S %890 000'09. VST
43 %690 000'G06'7T
90S %890 000°095'9ET
vy %€9°0 000'S6.°6TT
s %590 000'006°LTT$
eude) Jad Auadoud Jo anfeA spuog
passassy JO % uonebqo [essusn

'S310N

1102
0102
600¢
800¢
L00¢
900¢
G00¢
¥00¢
€00¢
¢00¢

IEENN
[eas14

SUVIA TVOSId N3L 1SV
ONIANVLS1NO 193d d3dNOd Tvd3INE9 40 SOI1vy
ININWNHIAOO ALNNOD NVEHN FLIIAVA-NOLONIXTT
¥13719vL

143



LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
SCHEDULE OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING INDEBTEDNESS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2011

TABLE 15

Lexington Center Corporation
Refunding and Improvement Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1993
Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A

Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Airport Corporation

Fixed Rate General Airport, Revenue and Refunding Bond 2009A (non-AMT)
Variable Rate General Airport,Revenue and Refunding Bond 2009B (non-AMT)
Variable Rate General Airport,Revenue and Refunding Bond 2008B (non-AMT)
Variable Rate General Airport Taxable Revenue and Refunding Bond 2008C

Fayette County School & Kentucky School Commission Bonds

Lexington-Fayette Urban County Department of Health

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt

LFUCG, Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Indebtedness

Notes

Estimated Estimated
Percentage Share of
Debt Outstanding Applicable Overlapping
(1) (1) Debt
$4,934,216 3.38% $166,692
20,370,000 3.38% 688,157
31,880,000 2.99% 954,211
16,420,000 2.99% 491,473
11,140,000 2.99% 333,435
725,000 2.99% 21,700
309,985,013 100.00% 309,985,013
$730,000 100.00% 730,000
313,370,682
303,865,000
_$617,235,682_

(1) Industrial Revenue Bonds, Industrial Development Bonds, Multi-Family and Single Family Housing Bonds are not included in this
schedule of overlapping debt as they are not secured by the full faith and credit of Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government.

(2) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in overlapping unit to valuation of property subject totaxation
in LFUCG or by ratio of total revenue of overlapping unit to total revenue of LFUCG.

Source: Department of Finance, Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
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LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
U.S. CENSUS BUREAU STATISTICS

TABLE 21

Source: U.S. Census Bureau

1990 Census 2000 Census 2010 Census
Value % Value % Value %
Population and Number of Households

Population
Under 18 years 50,416 22.4% 55,533 21.3% 62,633 21.2%
18 - 64 years 152,638 67.7% 178,805 68.6% 202,032 68.3%
65 years and over 22,312 9.9% 26,174 10.0% 31,138 10.5%
Total 225,366 100.0% 260,512 100.0% 295,803  100.0%

Number of Households 89,529 108,288 123,043

Economic and Education

Family Income
Less than $10,000 5,979 10.5% 3,587 5.6% 4,407 6.3%
$10,000 - $24,999 12,365 21.7% 8,947 14.1% 8,791 12.7%
$25,000 - $49,999 20,889 36.7% 17,124 26.9% 15,164 21.8%
$50,000 - $74,999 10,790 19.0% 14,759 23.2% 12,913 18.6%
$75,000 or more 6,850 12.0% 19,231 30.2% 28,149 40.5%
Total Families 56,873 100.0% 63,648 100.0% 69,424  100.0%

Median Family Income $35,936 $53,264 $63,086

Mean Family Income $44,467 $52,261 $76,373

Per Capita Income $20,355 $23,109 $25,561

School Enrollment
Elementary/Secondary 32,858 36,938 43,918
College 28,339 31,508 41,238

Education for Individuals 25+ years of age
Less than 9th grade 11,760 8.3% 8,539 5.1% 8,813 4.6%
High School, No Diploma 16,365 11.5% 15,213 9.1% 13,986 7.3%
High School Graduate 33,238 23.4% 37,448 22.4% 43,875 22.9%
College 1 - 3 years 37,299 26.2% 46,420 27.8% 54,796 28.6%
College 4 or more years 43,454 30.6% 59,615 35.6% 70,124 36.6%
Total 142,116 100.0% 167,235 100.0% 191,595  100.0%

Unemployment Rate 3.7% 1.8% 7.0%
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